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GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
F B I8

31 March 2016 NORTHERN CHINA 21t | EASTERN CHINA 258
201 6353@ 31 B Self-operated &% & : 30 (14) Self-operated B %% : 26 (19)
Licensed RAEJE : 429 (422) Licensed fHEJE : 163 (170)

No. of shops JE4HEH : 459 (436) | No. of shops JE#EH : 189 (189)

1,365 (1319 SOUTHERN CHINA £ | CENTRAL CHINA #eh

MAINLAND CHINA Self-operated H&JE : 1 (0) Self-operated B &5 : 48 (46)
Ep [79 f@ Licensed GAESE : 456 (441) Licensed mh&JE : 212 (207)

No. of shops JE&EXH : 457 (441)  No. of shops JEFEH : 260 (253)

CANADA
EX
20

THE UNITED STATES

E6
20

2rmcy1,428 (1,383)

Worldwide total number of shops

® HONG KON
MACAU 25

w3 47
10 (10) o

Figures as at 31 March 2015 are shown in brackets

BN C20155F 383152815

* This network included Lukfook shops only

g R\ 18I5 8

Shop in Korea was undergoing relocation in March 2016 and

was re-opened in May 2016 SH\LGAPORE AUSTRALIA
BEAIEI016FFEITHE - WH2016F55 EXHIR AR SR
1 1) 1 )
NUMBER OF SHOPS | E8&8
Sym 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Y-0-Y Change
Lukfook Shops 738 J& 201653A31H 2015434318 REE
Hong Kong &% 47 48 -l
Macau J2FS 10 -
Self-operated B & &
—Tier | —#&3 ™ 20 +7
—Tier | &R H 32 +8
—Tier Ill & IV E&?&Mﬁﬁ? % +; é
b-total /N5 +
Mainland China eiatotly)
R B A Licensed fhf& 5
—Tier | —&&k T 212 +2
—Tier | 4@ 410 -12
—Tier Il & IV =4 & U438 17 618 +30
Sub-total /N5t 1,240 +20
Sub-total /N5t 1,319 +46
Other locations Self-operated B 2[5 5 +1
Hitvih[E Licensed faf&/E 1 -
Total &£ 1,383 +45
31 March 2016 31 March 2015 Y-0-Y Change
3D-GOLD Shops & Z &5 2016435318 2015%3 4310 REE
: . Self-operated B & &
'XJ':%E China —Tier Il =43 - +5
2 —Tier Il & IV =48 F PR3 17 - +4
Total &%t = +9

Remarks: During the year under review, the Group opened 9 3D-GOLD self-operated shops established by a new joint venture (the Group held 51% equity) with a licensee in Mainland China. As at
31 December 2015, total number of 3D-GOLD points of sale operated by China Gold Silver Group Company Limited through self-operating and franchising models was approximately 370.

B ROBFEN - 2EEUHSENT (FE@IG51% &H) FRRERTEEEEBES - 1220155128318 » PAEREGAERATUEELNBERHRHRMI70BEE
ETE -



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

SERE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS (HK$ million) | U AR @R DI (FesEm)

Revenue by Market

WA — BHiSE S

Hong Kong, Macau

& Overseas

& AP RS

72.1:A> 10,119
(74.9%) 115.1%

(gﬁ:ﬁ) Mainland China

BN

12.3%

Segmental Profit by Market
SERF — LmE#s

Hong Kong, Macau

i & Overseas

HE RPN

56.0% 729
(i) 144.9%

44.0% )
(33.7%:) Mainland China

FEIRH
572

Revenue by Business

WA — LR

Retailing

TE

10,941

78.0% 112.8%
(78.8%)

Licensing

TR TS

528

18.6%

3.8%
(3.6%)

18.2%
(17.6%)

Wholesaling
# 3

2,562
18.3%

Segmental Profit by Business

SERF — LURBRS

Retailing
€
721

(55.5"7) 142.2%
62.6%

Licensing
e RS
22.9% 298
(18.1%) 117.6%

Wholesaling

21.6% fis
(19.3%)

282

Sales' by Product
#HE' —DERKBS

Gold & Platinum

e RA®

60.9;% 8,225
(Er2ga) 110.9%

39.1%
(39.8%) Gem-set
®E

5,278
113.7%

Gross Profit? by Product
E£72 —DESES

Gold & Platinum

B ESRES
1,122

171%

Gem-set
61.9% HE
(CERTA)

1,827

114.8% 126.7% 118.8%
Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2015 ' Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
are shown in brackets THE = WA — RREREFIA
gt HE2015F3831BLLFE 2 LB IRIERNER

2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

EA = 5 E5EF - EREBWAERN

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | EEHERXRIR

Overall 288

Gold & Platinum &4 & &
Gem-set TKE

Hong Kong & Macau & & #F

Gold & Platinum =4 K&
Gem-set ZRE

Mainland China F1 B it

Gold & Platinum &% & &
Gem-set Tk &

*

For the year ended 31 March

BE3AMALFE
2016 2015 2016 2015
Y-o-Y Change SSSG*
BEEE REHERE
-11% -28% -17% -34%
-16% -8% -24% -14%
5% 22% -28%

-13%
-19%

+7%

+2%
+29%

and such data did not include sales of licensed shops and Mainland China’s e-commerce business.
BEHEIERAE—HBEERIYEEIANTEOEENHERE - SRAFIBINIEREELPENNESTHENHES -

-28% -17% -34%
-9% -25% -15%
20% T a0%

-36%

-33% -13%
+16% +9% +10%

Same store sales growth (“SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RS I 22

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | #F5&%IR

HK$ m BEBT

Revenue $A

Gross Profit FEFl|

Operating Profit A4 % 7

Profit for the Year 4 A5 F)

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders #zx535 B A FE{5 % A

Basic Earnings per Share &A% & AN 2 F
Final Dividend per Share &K HA% 5.
Special Dividend per Share &I pIlf% 2.

Annual Dividend per Share & F% S
Dividend Payout Ratio j& 8.t &

Gross Margin E7 &
Operating Margin £ %4 &l 5%
Net Margin JF7 %=

EBITDA R&tFI2 ~ $i18 - 38 R# A1 & A
EBITDA Margin AR&HFLE ~ BiIE - 78 R SH AT &A=

Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio
RIS B BB ALL =
Effective Tax Rate BFEFi R

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS |

Inventory & (HK$ m) (B&#T)

Average Inventory Turnover Days' F#17 &A% A £ 1
Cash and Bank Balances & & $R77456% (HKS m) (B &8 7T)
Bank Borrowings & Gold Loans

RITERREBESEE HKSm) (BEET)

Net Cash JF#I £ (HK$ m) (B EBIT)

Net Gearing Ratio JF{&E#5 L & 2

Debt-to-Equity Ratio & &gzt %

Return on Equity (ROE) A% ER i 25 6137 K

Current Ratio ;8 Lt &

Net Asset Value per Share FHF & EE

CAPEX EZARX (HK$ m) (B &)

For the

year ended

31 March 2016
HZE2016%F
3H31H

IEFE

HK$1.63/ 7T
HK$0.347& 7T

HK$0.217& T

HK$1.10/# T
67.5%

ZHFIEIR

Financial
Year 2016
20168 R E

6,345
238
2,432

711

1,721

21.5%

11.1%

5.3
HK$14.948 T
113

For the

year ended

31 March 2015
HZE2015%F
3H31H
IEFE

15,923
3,832
1,976
1,621
1,615

HK$2.7478 7T
HK$0.557% 7T

HK$1.10% 7T
40.1%

24.1%
12.4%
10.2%

2,112
13.3%

13.1%
18.3%

Financial
Year 2015
20158 R [E

7,395
209
2,090

1,713

377

34.1%

18.9%

3.6
HK$14.60/8 7T
255

1 (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory)-+-2--Cost of Inventories Sold*Number of Days for the Year

(BFE + BAFER) -2+ BEFERA *FRBEH

Y-o-Y Change
REZL

-11.9%
-156.1%
-38.7%
-40.7%
-40.6%

-40.5%
-38.2%
N/A NE

+27.4p.p. [EE 5B

-0.9p.p. 8B 5 2h
-3.8p.p.[HE D2
-3.3p.p. BB 5 &

-39.9%
-4.3p.p.fEE DB

+21p.p.EE DB
-1.1p.p. BB S 2

Y-o-Y Change
RESE

-14.2%
+29
+16.4%

-58.5%

+356.5%

N/A TNEH
-12.6p.p. [EE D
-7.8p.p.[HE S B
+1.7

+2.3%

-55.7%

2 (Long-term Bank Loans + Short-term Bank Loans + Bank Overdrafts + Gold Loans —Cash and Bank Balances)=-Capital and Reserves Attributable to

Equity Holders of the Company

(REROTES + BHRTER + RITEX + BEEE R RRTER) - FAARREIE ARGERRHE
3 (Long-term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities)+Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

(RPEE + EHAH) - AARERE ARIEERR#E

4 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders =+ Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

A AREEN - AR DVERTEARBIGESTLEE

Annual Report 2016 £ 1



CORPORATE PROFILE
EREN

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the - ' 1_
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the o e
“Group”) is one of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group principally engages in the sourcing,
designing, wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a
variety of gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery
products, with a total of over 1,400 shops in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China, Singapore, Korea, the United States, Canada
and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NEEE(EFR)BRAR(ARA ] REMB AT (5 [ K%
B DRIZN1991F - REENPEAMTIZRETER 2 — -
AEEFZNERREATEHMAREEMER KB - R
e BRRELTEER - AKEREERE R PEA
Mo RTONN - FEE - B MEAKRM K EEEB,400/
JE# o

ARRN1997 5 AEBBMERZMER AT TR ET -

CORPORATE VISION

N A =
EE=

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

[FERE e BFREZE| RAKENEXRBR Km0 EE -
AEE-—EHEHTEH  BLOBNEAERAZERRALEED
mhE - EREBEBNLECRE AEERNAEHETRHER
BEAH  E—PETHERBERTS ENBE -

2 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 B (B L) R A



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwE

WONG Wai Sheung £{&%
Chairman and Chief Executive 3 & 31T A2 %L
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

During the year under review, the continued slowdown in the
economic growth in Mainland China, the tightening of Individual
Visit Scheme Policy, the devaluation of currencies of popular
tourist destinations and Renminbi, all imposed negative impacts
on the desire of visitors to travel to Hong Kong and Macau.
Furthermore, the disappointing performance of the property and
stock market in Mainland China also affected the domestic retail
market. The Group’s revenue for the financial year 2015/16
therefore declined. Moreover, the adjustment to diamond price in
accordance with market price leading to the decrease in gross
margin of gem-set jewellery products, the continued increase in
overall rental expenses and the profit in relation to the investments
and operating activities in Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited and its subsidiaries turned into a loss during the
year under review. Profit attributable to equity holders for the
financial year 2015/16 therefore reduced when compared to last
year.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to HK$14,031,302,000 (2015: HK$15,922,708,000),
representing a decrease of 11.9% over last year. Profit attributable
to equity holders decreased by 40.6% to HK$958,692,000 (2015:
HK$1,614,805,000), with earnings per share of HK$1.63 (2015:
HK$2.74). The board of directors of the Company proposed a
final dividend of HK$0.34 per share (2015: HK$0.55) and a special
dividend of HK$0.21 per share (2015: Nil), totaling HK$0.55 per
share for the year ended 31 March 2016. Together with the
interim and special dividends of HK$0.55 per share in total paid in
December 2015, the total dividend for the financial year 2015/16
amounted to HK$1.10 per share (2015: HK$1.10 per share). The
dividend payout ratio reached 67.5% on a full year basis (2015:
40.1%).

BAR

AAEARRABEER(BEB)BRAR(TAR
AIDREMBAR (B ALE])ZELIES
AEBEEHE2016FEIANHILFE 7 BFHEE -

REEEER  hEAMEEERNEER
& EABECROKE - BFRER N E
BEMAREHEE  &ARIKREHEREMRTER
BEYE - BE PEAMETRETORE
FRE THEEHWTEME  AEER
201516 T R E EHUR A A MR A - Boh - &
AEREEMEZAZ EFHKRBEEHERD
FERREE - N EBESFEZDAGH LT M
REBERIEBRBRARMETRARZEER
ZIBHENEEFEANBREE - 2015/16 81
REEMERTE ABREN B EFA IR

9\0

HZE2016F3HA31HILEFE  AEFBAKAR
14,031,302,00058 7T (2015 £ : 15,922,708,000
B BEFREM D 11.9% - #EEFE A
FEAE & F5R 4 40.6% £ 958,692,000,8 7L (2015
F :1,614,805,0008 70 ) MR A FI B A
1.638 70 (20154F : 27478 70) c NAREF
SEZMNEZE2016F3 A31HIEFEIRNM K
HBRf% B & P2 0.3478 7T (20154 : 0.55%870) &
BRI E FR021 L (20154 « &) 44
FHR0.558 7T BRIE R 2015F 12 AR A
FHEIREFRIAR B A B 0.55 8 7T (2015 4F -
0.55/87C) ' 2015/16 R FER B AR AS
11087 (20154 : ®R1.108L) - &2F
& B L E3E 67.5% (2015 4F © 40.1%) ©

4 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 (EE) HRAE



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwE

Despite the slowing economic growth in Mainland China, its GDP
growth was amongst those at the top of the world. As a result,
the Group still actively pursued further development in the
Mainland China market. During the year under review, the Group
opened a net total of 46 Lukfook shops in Mainland China (of
which 20 were licensed shops and 26 were self-operated shops)
and 9 3D-GOLD self-operated shops. As at 31 March 2016, the
Group had a total of 1,437 shops globally, spanning over
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, the United
States, Canada and Australia.

OUTLOOK

Currently, the global economic situation remains uncertain.
Therefore, the Group remains prudent about the business growth
in the coming year. In the year ahead, the Group will adopt
strategies on three focuses including product, China and branding
via product offering enrichment, Mainland China market coverage
enlargement and market oriented strategies, respectively, to
enhance our business development.

We will enrich product collections by introducing fashionable
jewellery that are good value for money to target the mass market
and offer more kids-oriented products to capture the rising market
opportunity led by the two-child policy.

Given the weak retail sentiment in Hong Kong, the Group will
continue to optimise the retail network there by adding points of
sale at residential areas in response to the better performance of
the shops in such areas while reducing the shops at prime
locations with unsatisfactory performance. On the other hand,
with the considerable growth of the middle-class population and
the implementation of the two-child policy in Mainland China,
Mainland China remains to be a market with tremendous growth
potential and business opportunities in the long run. Therefore,
the Group will continue to expand the distribution network there
by achieving a net growth of at least 50 shops in the coming year
and increase its revenue mix so as to reduce the reliance on the
Hong Kong and Macau market.

The Group will also continue to accommodate the national
strategy of “Internet+", actively develop the e-commerce business
in Mainland China with a target of increasing e-commerce revenue
by 50% in the coming year.

HARP BT R UE - EEBEREER
BEERERDERERRY] - S AEBEDES
BBAEPEATYE c REBEFER R
B A F IR T A6 NAEE S (H 20/ A
MmEEE - 26 ABEE) ROBEEE/EE -
R20165F 3 A31 H » AEBEREIRIEE 1,437
MEHE BRPEARD - FH B F0
B EE - MEARRIBEM o

AR

BRI 2EBEDATHEA - Bt AEEY
ARR—FOEBIERDFEEREEE - RF - K
SEEA=ZEE THXRE  FIREm  PE
KR - BRopEBREEEMES 1B
AHERMHISEE X LRRATSERRE
PADnss F FI R AS R o

BAEHELRAHBEMNSEELOKREF
# BEEMRY HEARMS  WRHEF
REEMRNER - B - ZBERMARIRR
TRIMSRHK -

AREEEZERSKT  AEERBEENE
BILEEMER  EAEZR/EBBRITRRNGE
N EBFRETREREER  YRKRIRN
TEMBERBARENET - Z—HE  KEM
5 BEETEARTEACNABER R &
BROER - PEAMHISNFERARNIER
& P - B - REEFRERREIAT
DRE0OMEMAFIEREE  BREMAE
MRS e EEBAL - ARELERT S
YA #E o

AEENSERLE [EBE+ | WBIREKES -
EHENMEREREFEAEEL - ERFN
R EEHERALN% BB -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwE

Furthermore, we will adopt a holistic approach in terms of market
penetration. Specific products will be introduced to cater for the
consumption pattern of and demands from wedding customers,
the middle-class, office workers and potential market brought by
the two-child policy. The Group will also endeavour to attract
customers, and actively stimulate local consumptions through
product display enhancement, cross-selling promotions and VIP
activities so as to improve sales and profit and nurture customer
loyalty as well as capture young customers through online
marketing.

Moreover, the Group will enhance productivity via different means,
such as reduce staff costs through natural turnover, strive for
lower rent in the negotiations with landlords, strengthen service
quality control and improve support to licensees. Apart from that,
the Group will also endeavour to promote a culture of continuous
improvement and automation of internal processes so as to
improve efficiency and reduce costs. Mitigation of the impact of
economic downturn on the performance of the Group is expected
with various income-generating and cost-saving measures.

| would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to the
Group’s success. Going forward, the Group will continue to adopt
pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen its competitive
advantages and further enhance its leading position in the market.
We look forward to generating sustainable returns to our
shareholders and establishing a new benchmark for corporate
excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016

AN - HAIE R EE R E T 52 5B E R &8
B RS Em MBS BEEY - B
BER B —RERE BRI KBS — 2R
P REVEAET S BB INREMIRY - XX
REEMVIPHEEIRE) - WEIFEE  WERHES
ALHE - MERHEENAE - RIKSHEHERK
HERITETOHE L RRFEETE

ZH - AEBERSERTEERELEN
FIINABRRETXRERTER - EHM%E
EFRFEEREE  MRRBERNEERTE
B EH SR - Rtz s AERE TG R
R EES 2 e R AERRE 2 B EEIALR
NRERREER - HEERTRIRERNE
BT SEEISREASEREZTHERE
&I

AEEORKRY 2EBMOET  BR B
B EBBHANAMBOENRNIFNE
Bl RAZBRBUAROHE | RFE - AEEH
BEUBEREOBEREE  NRHFEE
E—FEEAREER TS LRSI - B2
AR AR [ 3R R A8 ST AR T RO (R S SR o

EEEG®
FRRITHARE
wER

F& - 2016F6 A23H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE S W DT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue
KA

HK$14,031M ( H & #5T )
-11.9%

Operating Profit
RERF

HK$1,212M ( B &#T )
-38.7%

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
EESE BT

HK$959M (B E#ET)
-40.6%

Results

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year under review”),
given the macro-economic downturn, anticipated interest hike of
US Dollar leading to strong Hong Kong Dollar and weak Renminbi
as well as the currency devaluation in popular tourist destinations
such as Japan, Korea and other Southeast Asian countries,
together with the adjustment to the Individual Visiting Scheme in
Mainland China (the “IVS”), tourist sentiment on travelling to Hong
Kong and Macau dampened. Besides, consumer sentiment
remained weak under the slowing economic growth in Mainland
China. Consequently, during the Year under review, Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded
revenue drop of 11.9% to HK$14,031,302,000 (2015:
HK$15,922,708,000). Furthermore, because of the adjustment of
retail price to cope with market price changes of diamond, gross
margin of gem-set jewellery products decreased, resulted in
overall gross margin drop of 0.9 p.p. to 23.2% (2015: 24.1%).
Gross profit decreased by 15.1% to HK$3,254,111,000 (2015:
HK$3,831,538,000). In addition, as it is common for rental
adjustments to lag behind, the rental cost still recorded single-
digit growth even when the revenue decreased, which caused the
total operating expenses to increase by 2.2% and its ratio to
revenue increased to 15.2% (2015: 13.1%). Moreover, the profit

MBERE

Basic Earnings per Share

BREREF

HK$1.63 (#JT)
-40.5%

Proposed Dividend per Share
RS R AR S

HK55 Cents (i#flll)
Same as last year &R

Final Dividend per Share & &A% £.: HK34 Cents (3&1Ll)
Special Dividend per Share & %43 5I% 8.: HK21 Cents (3&1Ll)

Overall Net Shop Additions
ERERARIEH

+54
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas &7 + ®PFI&E5N -1
Mainland China # Bl ith: +55

X

HE2016F3A3THILEFE(REFE])
BRAECETESS  EETMETER NETR
e ARKEZ 53 SIEAPIIRAE B /b a0 B
KN BEKHMERERAREEREE ML
R B b (8 A B2 R ([ A BEERR ) 2 A%
BEEYIREBENAREAR T - BRItz AE
MBS RIFERE  HEEHEBEXRARR
e o At REEBFER  NEEE (BR)
BRAR(ARAD REWBERR (HFE [ A
£3 ) WAL 11.9% 2= 14,031,302,000 75
7T (20154 : 15,922,708,00058 7T ) » B & -
EAEMERETECARFREEHNED
EAMETH SBBEBEHNET H09ME
B9 B E23.2% (20154 : 24.1%) » 42 FE F
T #£15.1% £ 3,254,111,0007 7T (20154 :
3,831,538,000%7C) « t4h - HEFHERESR
BN AMERATERER TS R
BEMEFFIE  ABBEERT EF2.2%
HRWALR FFE15.2% (20154 : 13.1%)
KFE- MEREDEFEEBEERER
ERABR(EEBEEREZER]D XNEFAA
ZHREREEITHNRSHAEE L2
i A N %38.7% £1,212,152,00078 7T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE S W DT

derived from the investments and operating activities in relation to
Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (“HKRH”) and
its subsidiaries turned into a loss during the Year under review.
The operating profit therefore decreased by 38.7% to
HK$1,212,152,000 (2015: HK$1,976,211,000) and the operating
margin was 8.6% (2015: 12.4%). With a net margin of 6.9%
(2015: 10.2%), the profit attributable to equity holders decreased
by 40.6% to HK$958,692,000 (2015: HK$1,614,805,000). Basic
earnings per share were HK$1.63 (2015: HK$2.74).

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group added a net total of 54
new shops worldwide, including a net addition of 46 Lukfook
shops (@among them were 20 licensed shops and 26 self-operated
shops) in Mainland China and 9 3D-GOLD self-operated shops
through the new joint venture (of which the Group held 51%
equity) with a licensee in Mainland China. The Group reduced 1
self-operated Lukfook shop in Hong Kong and opened a new one
in Canada while closing the Lukfook licensed shop in Korea
temporarily, pending for relocation. As at 31 March 2016, the
Group had a global network of 1,437 shops (2015: 1,383),
including 1,428 Lukfook shops (2015: 1,383), spanning over in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, the United
States, Canada and Australia, and operated 9 3D-GOLD shops
(2015: Nil) in Mainland China, representing a step forward in the
execution of our dual-brand strategy.

Revenue by Business

WA — HRBERS

Retailing
=€

10,941

78.0% 112.8%
(78.8%)

Licensing

S

528

18.6%

3.8% —u
(3.6%)

Wholesaling
HrEE

2,562
18.3%

The retail business continued to be the primary revenue source
for the Group with its revenue declined by 12.8% to
HK$10,940,712,000 (2015: HK$12,551,573,000), accounting for
78.0% (2015: 78.8%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segmental
profit dropped by 42.2% to HK$721,645,000 (2015:
HK$1,247,959,000), representing 55.5% (2015: 62.6%) of the
total. Its segmental profit margin was 6.6% (2015: 9.9%). The
wholesale business revenue decreased by 8.3% over the previous
year to HK$2,562,697,000 (2015: HK$2,793,382,000),

(20154F : 1,976,211,00078 7T ) * £ &% F| &
58.6% (20154 : 12.4%) - E R =8| 56.9%
(20154 : 102%) ° # #z= ¥ B A E 15
AT K 40.6% 2= 958,692,000 7T (2015 4F
1,614,805,0008 ) * FREARZEF|H1.6375
JL(20154F : 2.74787T) °

s

REBEFEAR  AEEREKFHEE4ME
i BIERPE AR 46BN EIE A (B
ho0RAREIEMEEABLNE)  RiE—2F
FEAREEAAEE AR (KREBES1%HE
FIERERTIOMECEEAEE  REBR
DARBRNEAEE  WHRMEXREERIM - IR
EREAR T BB SERMEIE - WEIRE - 1
201643 A31 B » AEEREEIEE 1,437
JE 4 (20154 + 1,383 ) © H AR B 351,428
NARE (20154 1 1,383/ ) - B REPEA
o B/ R FNE - ER - INEARAR
M AREFBEALEIHEEEEH (2015
F o) RMETHRMERERBENNT

Segmental Profit by Business

SEEF — LRBEHS

Retailing
TE

721

55.5% 142.2%

(62.6%)
Licensing

R

22.9% 298
(18.1%) 117.6%

Wholesaling
21.6% fins
(19.3%)

282
126.7%

U A R F R 4 12.8% %= 10,940,712,000
7 7 (2015 4F : 12,551,573,00078 7T ) * 14 4
S BRI AMT8.0% (20154 : 78.8%) o H
o 828 E R T B 42.2% = 721,645,000 JT
(20154 : 1,247,959,000/ 7T ) 1h tb A&
55.5% (20154F : 62.6%) © E o W% A X &
6.6% (20154F : 9.9%) ° HLEEEHK M AR KT
[ ER T #£8.3% £ 2,562,697,000/8 7T (2015 4F
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accounting for 18.2% (2015: 17.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segmental profit dropped by 26.7% to HK$281,637,000 (2015:
HK$384,430,000), representing 21.6% (2015: 19.3%) of the total,
while its segmental profit margin was 11.0% (2015: 13.8%).
Licensing income decreased by 8.6% to HK$527,893,000 (2015:
HK$577,753,000), accounting for 3.8% (2015: 3.6%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Its segmental profit dropped by 17.6% to
HK$297,797,000 (2015: HK$361,439,000), representing 22.9%
(2015: 18.1%) of the total, while its segmental profit margin was
56.4% (2015: 62.6%).

Sales' by Product
H$HE' LERRS

Gold & Platinum

60.9%
(60.2%)

8,225
110.9%

! Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income 2

SHE = A - mIEETBRA

2,793,382,000/& 7T )+ fh A~ & @ & WK A
#118.2% (20154 : 17.6%) ° H 9 EBHF T Bk
26.7% &£ 281,637,000 7L (20154 :
384,430,000/ 7T ) * 15tk £21.6% (2015 4F

19.3%) * H 5 & & 5 & £11.0% (20154 :
13.8%)° M ¥ % W A B L86%E

527,893,000/8 7T (20154F : 577,753,000/87T)
IEAREE LI ARS.8% (20154 : 3.6%) * £
DEHEF T B 17.6% & 297,797,000/ 7T(2015
F : 361,439,000 L) + 1f kb A22.9% (2015
F:18.1%)  H 7 &% F = £56.4% (2015
F:62.6%) °

Gross Profit? by Product
Ef2— DERRS

Gold & Platinum
B2 RHAS

1,122
171%

38.1%
(34.9%)

1,827
118.8%

Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing
Income

EF = FEEF - RIEEBRAEF

Gold products remained the most favourite item among
customers and together with platinum products, their revenue
decreased by 10.9% (2015: -26.1%) to HK$8,225,319,000 (2015:
HK$9,231,225,000), accounting for 60.9% (2015: 60.2%) of
overall sales (Group revenue minus licensing income). Although
there was a slight increase in gross margin of gold products to
13.6% (2015: 13.1%), gross profit of gold and platinum products
dropped by 7.1% to HK$1,122,157,000 (2015:
HK$1,207,811,000), accounting for 38.1% (2015: 34.9%) of
overall gross profit (consolidated gross profit of the Group minus
gross profit of licensing income). Sales of gem-set jewellery
products dropped by 13.7% to HK$5,278,090,000 (2015:
HK$6,113,730,000), accounting for 39.1% (2015: 39.8%) of
overall sales. Because of the adjustment of retail price in response
to the changes in diamond market price, gross margin of gem-set
jewellery products dropped by 2.2 p.p. to 34.6% (2015: 36.8%),
while its gross profit decreased by 18.8% to HK$1,826,796,000
(2015: HK$2,249,815,000), accounting for 61.9% (2015: 65.1%)
of overall gross profit.

BHeEMDABRSXEFRFBOMNER 2R
SADES  HETE NK10.9%(2015%F © -26.1%)
820531900078 7T (20154 : 923122500078 7T)
HREEER (REERARERBEBLIKA)
#760.9% (20154 : 60.2%) ° HAE T EME
FEEGR EAHZE13.6% (20154 : 13.1%) » &=
e R e EDERNDT K7T1%E
1,122,157,0007% 7T (20154F : 1,207,811,000
BT EBEN (KAEESEEFRERE
UL AEF]) 8 38.1% (20154 : 34.9%) ©
KEEBMERMNEEET KIBTRE
5,278,090,00078 7T (20154 : 6,113,730,000
BT ) (b B BB % T M39.1% (20154 ¢
39.8%) - HRBANZTEEBANEE ) ME
P KEEHERNENER TR 22EE
DEZE 34.6% (20154 : 36.8%) * HEFIAIT
#18.8% & 1,826,796,00078 7T (20154 :
2,249,815,0007% 7T ) » 1h & B8 £ 5 H61.9%
(20154 : 65.1%) °
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During the Year under review, the overall same store sales
growth* (“SSSG”) of the Group was -19.3% (2015: -28.3%).
SSSG for the Hong Kong and Macau market was -20.1% (2015:
-28.2%) and that for the Mainland China market was -8.2% (2015:
-29.8%). The SSSG for gold and platinum products was -16.7%
(2015: -34.3%) and that for gem-set jewellery products was
-24.1% (2015: -13.8%)).

The Group has been striving to diversify its product mix to offer
customers with more choices. Since 2010, we have been
endeavouring to expand the mid-to-high end watch business. As
at 31 March 2016, the Group was the authorised dealer of 34
watch brands, including ARNOLD & SON, AUDEMARS PIGUET,
BALL and its BALL for BMW series, BALMAIN, BULOVA,
BURBERRY, BVLGARI, CERTINA, COINWATCH, CORUM,
DOXA, EMILE CHOURIET, EMPORIO ARMANI, ENICAR, ERNEST
BOREL, ETERNA, FREDERIQUE CONSTANT, GRONEFELD,
HAMILTON, H. MOSER & CIE, LONGINES, LOUIS ERARD,
LUDOVIC BALLOUARD, MAURICE LACROIX, MIDO, OMEGA,
ORIS, RADO, ROMAGO SWISS, TAG HEUER, TISSOT,
URWERK, VICTORIONX SWISS ARMY and ZENITH. For the Year
under review, the watch business contributed a revenue of
HK$247,843,000 (2015: HK$320,444,000), representing 1.8%
(2015: 2.0%) of the Group’s total revenue with 22.7% decrease
when compared with last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Revenue by Market

WA — Bhs#s

Hong Kong, Macau
& Overseas

FE RPN
10,119

115.1%

721%
(74.9%)

Mainland China
B A3

12.3%

* Same store sales growth represented a comparison of sales of the same self-
operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods and such
data did not include sales of licensed shops and Mainland China’s
e-commerce business.

REBEFERN AEEEEREHERE"
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% Bl B-8.2% (20154 : -29.8%) - & & & 4
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(20154 : -13.8%) °

AEE-—HHEERRZIULER  AERIRE
FLZEE - B2010F 8 BRMIB NIRRT S
BB ER - N20165E3A31H  KEED
X A 34 Bl Sk R M M IR A GHTS - Mg BTE
Tk B RBAREDEBEEERT] 2
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BEFEARN REBEREBFHDRAL
247,843,0007 7T (20154F : 320,444,000787T) *
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FRER22.7% °
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Segmental Profit by Market
SWERF — UHERS

Hong Kong, Macau

& Overseas
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A
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Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

The Hong Kong market remained the key source of revenue for
the Group. Mainland Chinese visitors had been the major driver
for the retail business growth in Hong Kong for the past few years.
However, due to the slowing economic growth in Mainland China,
the adjustment to the IVS and the growing popularity of other
travel destinations under currency devaluation, there was a trend
of shorter stay period and reduced spending on luxury items in
Hong Kong by Mainland tourists. In light of the gloomy macro-
economic situation, spending power of consumers reduced. Per
capita spending by Mainland Chinese visitors was also declining.
According to statistics on visitor arrivals published by the Hong
Kong Tourism Board (the “HKTB”) in January 2016, visitor arrivals
from Mainland China in 2015 decreased by 3% over the previous
year and reached approximately 45.84 million. According to the
visitor arrival statistics published by the HKTB in March 2016, the
number of Mainland arrivals under the IVS decreased by 26%
from 3.05 million in January 2015 to 2.27 million in December
2015. In respect of tourist spending, according to the figures on
retail sales released by the Census and Statistics Department in
February 2016, the value of sales of jewellery, watches and
clocks, and valuable gifts in 2015 decreased by 15.6% when
compared to 2014. Due to the impact of overall market
performance, the Group’s retail revenue in Hong Kong decreased
by 13.4% to HK$7,727,658,000 (2015: HK$8,923,360,000). The
revenue of the wholesale business generated from the Hong Kong
market decreased by 16.8% to HK$490,646,000 (2015:
HK$589,721,000) due to the drop in scrap gold and platinum
sales and sales to 3D-GOLD shops operated by China Gold Silver
Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate of the Company
which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business under the
brandname of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China. As at 31 March 2016, the Group operated a total of 47
self-operated shops (2015: 48) in Hong Kong, 1 shop less than
the previous year.

Macau

The performance of Macau market was even worse than that of
Hong Kong. According to the tourism statistics published by the
Statistics and Census Service of the Macau Special Administrative
Region, visitor arrivals slightly decreased by 2.6% in 2015 to
30.71 million, but gross domestic product of Macau decreased by
20.3% over last year. According to figures from the Macau
Government Tourist Office of the Macau Special Administrative
Region, visiting tourists’ per capita spending on jewellery and
watches substantially decreased by 59.3% from MOP214 in 2014
to MOP87 in 2015. Therefore, the Group’s revenue generated
from the Macau market decreased by 22.3% to
HK$1,758,769,000 (2015: HK$2,264,882,000). As at 31 March
2016, the Group had a total of 10 self-operated shops (2015: 10)
in Macau.
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Overseas

Adhering to its motto “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”,
the Group has been seeking opportunities all over the world in
recent years. During the Year under review, the Group opened its
second self-operated shop in Canada and temporarily closed its
licensed shop in Korea pending for relocation. As at 31 March
2016, the Group has a total of 6 overseas shops (2015: 5),
including 1 in Singapore, 2 in the United States, 2 in Canada and
1 in Australia.

The revenue of the Hong Kong, Macau and overseas markets
amounted to HK$10,119,551,000 (2015: HK$11,919,446,000),
accounting for 72.1% (2015: 74.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Due to the drop in sales in the Hong Kong and Macau market and
the decline in gross margin of gem-set jewellery products,
together with the continuing rental rise, the segmental profit of the
Hong Kong, Macau and overseas markets declined by 44.9% to
HK$728,696,000 (2015: HK$1,322,371,000), accounting for
56.0% (2015: 66.3%) of the total. Their segmental profit margin
was 7.2% (2015: 11.1%).

The SSSG for gold and platinum products of Hong Kong, Macau
and overseas markets was -16.9% (2015: -34.2%) and that for
gem-set jewellery products was -25.5% (2015: -14.9%).

Mainland China

During the Year under review, retail revenue from the Mainland
China market increased by 7.4% to HK$1,311,807,000 (2015:
HK$1,221,848,000) due to the increase in the number of self-
operated shops. The SSSG for gold and platinum products of
Mainland China was -12.8% (2015: -35.8%) and that for gem-set
jewellery products was +8.7% (2015: +10.5%).

The revenue of the wholesale business generated from the
Mainland China market fell by 6.0% to HK$2,072,051,000 (2015:
HK$2,203,661,000) mainly because of the decrease in the
number of new licensed shops, while the licensing income
reduced by 8.6% to HK$527,893,000 (2015: HK$577,753,000).
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As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 105 self-operated shops
(2015: 79) and 1,260 licensed shops (2015: 1,240), totalling 1,365
shops (2015: 1,319) under the “Lukfook” brand name in Mainland
China. During the Year under review, the Group had a net
increase of 20 Lukfook licensed shops (2015: 115) and 26
Lukfook self-operated shops (2015: -4) there. 14 of the new self-
operated shops were opened by a joint venture (of which the
Group held 51% equity) established with a licensee. Apart from
that, 9 self-operated 3D-GOLD shops were also opened in
Mainland China by the same joint venture during the Year under
review, furthering the development of the Group’s dual-brand
strategy.

During the Year under review, revenue from the Mainland China
market decreased by 2.3% to HK$3,911,751,000 (2015:
HK$4,003,262,000), accounting for 27.9% (2015: 25.1%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Its segmental profit declined by 14.8% to
HK$572,383,000 (2015: HK$671,457,000), accounting for 44.0%
(2015: HK$33.7%) of the total and its segmental profit margin was
14.6% (2015: 16.8%).

Financial Impact in relation to Investments and
Operating Activities in HKRH & Its Subsidiaries

Profit/(Loss)
BF, (&8)

FY2016

HK$ m B&EAT 2016814

50% Share of Results of Associate
DLEEE R R50%HEE

®
2

Valuation (Loss)/Gain on
Convertible Bond
AHARESEE(EER) B

Wholesale Gross Profit

#BEEF

~
~

Fair Value Devaluation of Option
BREARERE

Interest Income on Working
Capital Loan
mENE S EHRASWA
Interest Income on Convertible
Bond

AR ESFIS

Total
4

(88)

The financial impact of investments and operating activities in
HKRH and its subsidiaries during the Year under review turned
from a profit into a loss of HK$88,000,000 (2015: HK$5,000,000
profit).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances were
approximately HK$2,432,000,000 (2015: HK$2,090,000,000).
The Group’s net gearing ratio at the year-end was 0% (2015: 0%),
which was concluded by using the ratio of total bank borrowings
and gold loans of approximately HK$711,000,000 (2015:
HK$1,713,000,000) less cash and bank balances against total
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$8,674,000,000 (2015:
HK$8,536,000,000). Net cash was approximately
HK$1,721,000,000 (2015: HK$377,000,000). The debt-to-equity
ratio was approximately 21.5% (2015: 34.1%), being the ratio of
total liabilities of approximately HK$1,861,000,000 (2015:
HK$2,911,000,000) against total shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$8,674,000,000 (2015: HK$8,536,000,000).
The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Inventory

B4 %5 B R
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Inventory Turnover Days by Product

HARFEEEAB(UNERED)

R
201681 4F

As at 31 March 2016, with proactive inventory control under the
declining sales trend in the bleak economic condition, the Group’s
inventory balance therefore dropped by 14.2% to approximately
HK$6,345,000,000 (2015: HK$7,395,000,000). The average
inventory turnover days were 238 days (2015: 209 days) with
inventory turnover days of gold products being 119 days (2015:
104 days) and that of gem-set jewellery products being 469 days
(2015: 412 days).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group incurred capital
expenditures of approximately HK$113,000,000 (2015:
HK$255,000,000), including the costs of properties, leasehold
lands, land use rights, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures
and equipments.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2016, the Group had total capital commitments of
approximately HK$12,000,000 (2015: HK$10,000,000).

FY2015
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had outstanding financial
guarantees amounting to approximately HK$673,000,000 (2015:
HK$780,000,000) issued to several banks in respect of banking
facilities granted to an associate.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2016, the number of employees of the Group was
approximately 7,100 (2015: 6,900). The increase in headcount
was mainly because of increased number of self-operated shops
in Mainland China. Remuneration policies were reviewed and
approved by the management regularly to ensure fair rewards and
compensation for employees. Remuneration packages were
structured to be comparable to the market while bonuses and
other merit payments were linked to the performances of the
Group and the employees. Such a reward system aims to use
financial incentives to motivate employees to act in alignment with
the Group’s business performance objectives.

OUTLOOK

Product Focus

EEREm

Product Offering
Enrichment
EEERES

Productivity
Enhancement

China Focus
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EEED A
Branding Focus

XN EA X mEEE
Market Coverage Market Oriented
Enlargement Strategies

BATEEEER - B E R

The ongoing uncertainties in global economy, the slowing
economic growth in Mainland China, the adjustment to the IVS,
the currency devaluation and relaxed visa requirements in other
destinations under the backdrop of strong Hong Kong Dollar and
weak Renminbi, all adversely affected the Group’s retail business.
Therefore, the Group remains prudent about the business growth
in the near term. Nevertheless, the Group is still optimistic about
the mid- to long-term business prospect and will endeavour to
uphold the Group’s business development with strategies on
three focuses including product, China and branding via product
offering enrichment, China focus network expansion and market
oriented strategies, respectively, in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE S W DT

Product Focus

It was stated at the Fifth Plenary Session of the Eighteenth Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China that China would
maintain medium to high economic growth during the Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan period (2016-2020) and that China would double
its 2010 GDP and per capita income of urban and rural residents
by 2020 as planned to build China into a moderately prosperous
society in all respects. It is thus clear that the Central Government
will continue to actively promote economic development and raise
the income of residents. In the long run, the middle-class
population will increase substantially, which is conducive to the
development of the gold and gem-set jewellery market. Moreover,
with the implementation of the two-child policy, demand for luxury
products for kids will increase gradually too. Accordingly, the
Group will offer more fashionable yet affordable products to cater
for the trend of trading down consumption and target at the mass
market covering middle-class customers, working groups as well
as kids market.

China Focus

Given the weak sentiment in the Hong Kong retail sector, the
Group will optimise the retail network in Hong Kong by adding
points of sale at residential areas in response to the better sales
performance of the shops in these areas while reducing shops at
prime locations with unsatisfactory performance. On the other
hand, with the considerable growth of middle-class population,
the Group will focus its market coverage enlargement in Mainland
China. As the market in the first-tier cities has become saturated
after years of development, the Group will continue to accelerate
the expansion into the sub second-tier cities by leveraging on the
joint venture business model with certain licensees and dual-
brand strategy advantages. The Group’s net shop additions will
not be less than 50 in the coming year so as to establish a sound
retail network to increase market share.

The Group will also continue to develop e-commerce business
and to further strengthen cooperation with e-commerce platforms
in Mainland China. During the Year under review, in addition to the
9 online sales platforms, including Tmall.com, JD.com and
Suning.com, the Group has established presence in 5 more online
sales platforms. The Group targets to grow e-commerce business
revenue by 50% in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE S W DT

Branding Focus

The Group will adopt a holistic approach to penetrate into middle-
class, wedding and kids markets. By understanding customers’
consumption habits, the Group aims to provide products tailored
to their consumption behaviour and market demand, which would
help enhance customers’ brand loyalty. Furthermore, the Group
will continue to attract customers and boost local consumptions,
via product display enhancement, cross-selling promotions and
VIP activities so as to improve sales and profit.

The Group will showcase, promote and market products through
mobile applications and social media platforms such as Facebook
and WeChat. According to the report jointly published by Taobao
and CBNData on Internet spending trends in China, 80% of
consumers aged between 20 and 40 learnt about gold and
jewellery products through the Internet and 60% of them had
spent money on the Internet. The proportion of spending on gold
jewellery under RMB1,600 was 64%, while that on gold jewellery
over RMB3,000 was a meagre 15%. There is enormous potential
from young consumers for their spending on online sales
platforms. In light of that, the Group will endeavour to promote
sales of low-priced jewellery on online platforms to attract young
consumers.

Productivity Enhancement

In the year ahead, there are still uncertainties in the global
economic outlook. The SSSG starting from the beginning of the
new financial year up to date continues to decline. Apart from
exploring various means of increasing revenue source, the Group
will strive to implement productivity enhancement as well as cost-
saving measures in different operational aspects, including
reducing staff costs through voluntary turnover, grasping the
opportunity to negotiate with landlords for reducing rents,
enhancing service quality control, improving support to licensees,
promoting continuous improvement culture and automating
operational processes in order to improve efficiency and reduce
costs. Through these measures, it is expected that the impacts of
lacklustre economic conditions on the Group’s performance could
be mitigated.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE S W DT

In the long run, with unique geography and tax advantage of
Hong Kong and Macau, cumulative brand awareness over the
years, extensive retail network, management’s effective sales
strategy and increasing per capita income of Mainland China,
there will still be strong customer demand for jewellery products.
The outlook for jewellery industry remains promising, which will
benefit the Group’s continuous business development. Therefore,
the Group will maintain its pragmatic and prudent business
strategy, and will also take a proactive approach towards market
challenges, thereby uplifting its competitive advantage and
strengthening its leading position in the jewellery retail market.
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In order to align with the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the
Group has been building a brand image that is welcoming and
warm-hearted, and strengthening customers’ emotional
attachment to the brand through outstanding marketing
campaigns and excellent service programmes.

Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interest in our operational management, and are meticulous
from product design, quality assurance to sales services. To tie in
with our “Six Heartfelt Services” culture, we are dedicated to
fulfiling customers’ need with a caring heart and offering sincere
quality services, aiming to provide the most enjoyable shopping
experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create a
friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat employees
as our family members and care for their physical and mental well-
being in order to enhance their sense of belonging and foster a
corporate culture of Lukfook Family.
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MARKET ORIENTED STRATEGIES

Targeting the mid-to-high end consumer markets in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and overseas, the Group has
implemented comprehensive marketing strategies, and launched
diversified product offerings with exquisite designs, together with
outstanding marketing campaigns, to seize the business
opportunities arising from the middle-class, wedding and kids
markets.

Middle-Class Market

To cope with the brand’s positioning of mass luxury sector, we
have endeavoured to further penetrate the middle-class market
through various channels. During the Year under review, the
Group held for the first time the “Lukfook Jewellery Raceday”
featuring the theme “Crown the Love”, and invited Miss Hong
Kong Pageant title winners to showcase a series of glamorous
diamond jewellery to the guests and audience, so as to raise our
brand awareness among the middle-class population. In the light
of the popularity of fashionable diamond jewellery suitable for daily
wear among this group of customers, the Group stepped up the
marketing efforts on the “Love is Beauty” and “Convergence of
Love” Collection. We also promoted the “Love Forever” Collection
in collaboration with our celebrity endorser Mr. Lam-Fung, and
introduced a series of trendy jewellery which turned out to be well
received by couples, thus attracting this group of sophisticated,
chic young customers.

Nowadays, marathon running has become one of the most
popular sports among the middle-class in pursuit of a healthy
lifestyle. Therefore, with a view to boosting brand awareness and
seizing the business opportunities from the middle-class market,
the Group sponsored the medals set with gold and diamonds for
the Hong Kong, Beijing and Shanghai marathons to honour over
50,000 marathon finishers. Apart from that, the Group also rolled
out various targeted marketing programmes, such as the
professional image and etiquette seminar and yacht club activities.
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Wedding Market

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China, there has been on average
over 12 million pairs of newlyweds per year in the past 5 years. In
order to seize this valuable business opportunity of the wedding
market, the Group has participated in wedding expos in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, and held large-scale wedding shows
with high-end hotels and other wedding related partners. Besides,
the Group launched a wide range of Chinese and western
wedding products. In the traditional Chinese culture, people like
to purchase gold jewellery for gifts and wear. Accordingly, the
Group introduced the “Beloved” Collection of gold wedding
jewellery, which integrates the traditional Chinese wedding culture
into trendy gold jewellery design. Nowadays, diamond jewellery, a
symbol of promise of eternity, is also a popular choice among
wedding couples. To cater for this trend, the Group launched the
Wedding Collection of diamond jewellery and the Platinum Bridal
Collection which were introduced in cooperation with Platinum
Guild International. We have a wide array of wedding rings with
complete range of sizes and complimentary engraving services for
wedding couples at our shops, aiming to increase our share in the
wedding market by leveraging our diversified wedding products
and caring services.

Kids Market

In response to the implementation of the two-child policy in
Mainland China since last year, the Group has introduced a variety
of kids’ products, including the “Hugging Family” Collection and
the Rilakkuma™ Collection which has been well received by both
adults and kids. To boost sales strategically, the Group launched
an array of jewellery accessories featuring the adorable Rilakkuma.
Lucky coins from this collection became best sellers. The first-
ever baby gift sets of this collection came with the accessories
invoking blessings for health, peace and safety as well as the
exquisitely designed gift boxes, making them the best choice for
gifts or personal use.

The Group also organised a series of promotional activities
targeting the kids’ market, such as arranging members of the
“Hugging Family” to interact with customers, and cooperating
with shopping malls by distributing painting books for children in
kids zones, so as to build a brand image of warm family.
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BRANDING ACTIVITIES

To increase brand awareness more strategically and secure our
market share in Hong Kong and Mainland China, during the Year
under review, the Group launched a brand-new “Love is Beauty”
TV commercial. To strengthen the connection between love and
beauty, the Group not only sponsored the diamond crown and
precious jewellery pieces for the “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for
eighteen consecutive years, but also served as the exclusive
sponsor of the diamond crown for the “Miss Universe China
Reignwood Pageant” for five consecutive years and sponsored
the “Miss Chinese Vancouver Pageant”.

Furthermore, the Group also made good use of various
promotional platforms, such as organising public relations
activities and sponsoring various TV programmes, movies and
concerts, to enhance our brand exposure. Moreover, the Group
has captured the trend of rapid growth of online marketing by
placing advertisements on major social media platforms, portals,
video websites and search engines, and organised different types
of promotional campaigns. Inter alia, Lukfook Jewellery joined
hands with WeChat to promote the “Offers Shared by Friends”.
This innovative sales approach attracted more WeChat users to
shop at our physical stores, which helped us focus on targeted
audience precisely and thereby boost sales.

PRODUCT DESIGN

Producing the finest products with exquisite craftsmanship and
stylish designs is one of the core competencies of the Group. To
enhance innovation capabilities and broaden design team’s
horizon, we arrange overseas trips for the team from time to time
to explore and apply different design concepts to jewellery. Our
outstanding design team has actively participated in various local
and international jewellery design competitions, and won over 170
awards up to now, further raising Lukfook’s brand image.

During the Year under review, our design pieces “Lotus era” and
“Take a Chance” stood out from the “Chuk Kam Jewellery Design
Competition 2016” under “The Fashionable 18K Group”, while the
design entitled “Fair and softly go far in a day” won the award of
“Open Group”. In addition, our design piece “Sound of Love” won
the “Best of Show Award of Open Group” in “The 17" Hong Kong
Jewellery Design Competition”.

e b #EE R TS D

RETARBHRTRENBE  ZEFER
TEAMNTNSEEER  REBFER - A%
EHEEHERE|ERES  REHNESA
KRz & BEET N\ FEB BB/ A
gE | MeBEREMREREEM  EEAF
R A TR NMATERKE] 2EFTH
BREPE UAREDIEFEESF /A

sz EEJ

AN REETEBSBREERE - i“iJIJuuHE‘E
BOCR MBRAMEHRENSEERL
B EXREEF AREGIEE LHERE
RFRENHBE  REAMRFE  PIP R
3R AR B AL PR MR N RR AL RO HE R
mE e Hp - NREKREE[ME]BTHE
[IERRS] - ZRAIFHERN - RaES
MERPRHMMNERERE  BEHHTE R
BRR - TEHERE -

E Rt
SUERERE RAtHARHNERSANEE
B —IBRL ST o RIS EIRTTAIRTRE N I

PRI BRI E - NEE R ZBEE BN
HEE - B ARRFAHSBRERAKERAE L -
AP 0 R BB B B2 B 5 (A b R
BRIRERFTLLE  ES5HERTE170ELDE

:I:7/\

E—FRIANBORETIR

REOBEFER RAtEmR I BEERE]I R
(S 2RI FE%%@W“?H:%QO%J B [ 1
KeM | RRAmL - M5 —{Fm [ BEFEUE]

EUE 5 SN ﬁlﬁ R [E17EF B
BERHE] T Retem [LDEEE | TER
NG

22 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<% E (EIE) HRA S o S




BRANDING
Th R TR

BRANDING AWARDS

During the Year under review, Lukfook’s continuous efforts in
brand building have resulted in numerous awards and recognition.
These included:

° “Hong Kong Top Service Brand Ten Year Achievement
Award” in the “2015 Hong Kong Top Service Awards” from
the Hong Kong Brand Development Council and the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

° “2015 Retail Asia-Pacific Top 500 Awards” for four
consecutive years, and attained “Top 10 Retailers in the
Hong Kong Market”

° “Hong Kong Star Brand Award 2015 — Enterprise” for four
consecutive years

° The Group’s subsidiary Luk Fook Jewellery (Guangzhou)
Limited obtained the honour of “2015 Guangdong
Outstanding Credit Model Enterprise”

QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication to
enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from raw
materials procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems
Laboratory Limited (“CGL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, was established for the purpose of providing services
including authentication and grading of diamonds, authentication
of jadeite jade and coloured gemstones, and quality assessment
for jewellery. The laboratory is operated by a group of experienced
and certified gemologists specialising in authentication of
gemstones and jadeite jade.

In 2013, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute Limited
principally engaging in jewellery authentication and professional
training. With branch offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
the institute provides services for the jewellery sector and
customers. The institute has passed the accreditation of the
Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B) of the United States, and
is authorised to issue internationally recognised reports that
conform to ISO/IEC 17025 in diamond grading and fei cui (jadeite
jade) testing.
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EXCELLENT SERVICE

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would not
be successful without a commitment to service excellence. In line
with the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the “Delivering the
Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services” excellent customer
service programme was introduced to fulfil customers’ need with
a caring heart and offer sincere quality services for customers with
a view to relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt Services to each
customer all over the world.

SHOPPING EXPERIENCE

To deliver the most enjoyable shopping experience to customers,
the Group has established the Member Zone in the shops for our
privileged members to enjoy special offers, leisure space and
caring services. In addition, featuring warm, romantic pink
decoration, the Western Wedding Zone and Chinese Wedding
Zone at our shops display different collections of wedding
jewellery products. New couples and their families can select
wedding jewellery in a comfortable and spacious environment.

Besides, the Group creates a gentle yet noble shopping
environment by using luminous materials such as mirrors and
metal steel, with leather interspersed throughout our shops to
create a more distinct three-dimensional and multi-layered effect.
Moreover, we offer a wide selection of jewellery and superior
shopping services for customers to enjoy unparalleled shopping
experience and pleasure.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

tEHEEE

BUSINESS ETHICS

The Group highly values its business reputation and is committed
to maintaining high standards of business ethics and professional
conducts by formulating relevant policies, standards and
guidelines to ensure strict compliance by all stakeholders.

As effective supply chain management helps improve operational
efficiency, the Group has been working closely with suppliers to
provide quality products and services for customers. Besides, the
Group has established strict tendering guidelines. All approved
suppliers have to fulfil the Group’s internal approval processes
and enter into the Supplier Agreement in order to ensure that their
products and services are up to standard. In addition, the Group
conducts regular inspections and assessments for their regulatory
monitoring. Suppliers are also required to sign the Corruption
Prevention Policy which sets out relevant code of integrity,
mechanisms for declaration of interest and whistleblowing to
prevent and curb conflict of interests and corruption issues.

Besides, all newly employed staff are required to sign the
Corruption Prevention Undertaking and comply with the code of
conduct and discipline as set out in the Staff Handbook and
relevant ordinances in respect of prevention of acceptance of
advantages between suppliers and staff. The Group also has a
strict approval system in place to monitor transactions and has
internal notice specifying approval procedures and requirements
for staff’'s compliance and execution. Such policies and codes are
available on our intranet for staff’s information.

HUMAN CAPITAL

Adhering to the “People-oriented” management philosophy, the
Group believes that staff is the most precious asset to
corporations and understands that attracting and retaining talents
is essential to enhancing its competitive edge. Therefore, the
Group attaches great importance to all-rounded development and
well-being of staff by establishing defined promotion mechanisms
and incentive schemes while continuously enhancing staff benefits
to promote the idea of work-life balance.
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The Group provides staff with competitive remuneration and
benefits, including paid leave, paternity leave and marriage leave,
medical insurance and retirement plans as well as performance-
based incentives and bonuses. There is also a comprehensive
appraisal system to ensure that staff enjoy equal promotion
opportunity and competitive remuneration with a view to nurturing
and retaining talents. In addition, the Group endeavours to
promote the concept of multi-culture and equality by devising
relevant employment policies to supervise recruitment and
promotion to ensure that all staff and job applicants will receive
equal opportunity and treatment. Our policy also specifies that
child labour or forced labour are disallowed and all branches and
group companies should strictly comply with and implement.

In order to enhance staff’s professionalism and personal
development so as to ensure that they meet the requirements of
business development of the Group, our training department
regularly organises different types of on-the-job training and
broadens its training programme offerings with regard to specific
business requirements, staff members’ experience and skills.
Apart from the Hong Kong head office and the online training
platform, four regional training centers have been established in
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Wuhan, providing tailored
internal training programmes. The Group also encourages and
sponsors employees to participate in professional training
programmes held by international institutes and national
accreditation bodies, and the “Qualifications Framework (QF)”
tests conducted by the Education Bureau of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, which aim to help staff members further
enhance their competitiveness and expand their capability.
Furthermore, the Group establishes key performance indicators
for the staff to promote a culture of continuous improvement and
strives to strengthen their personal development and build their
sense of belonging with continuous education, promotion
mechanisms and incentive schemes.

In addition, the Group endeavours to provide comfortable and
safe work environment for the staff and enhances their safety
awareness through regular reviews and amendments to health
and safety guidelines. During the Year under review, the number
and ratio of work fatality were both zero.
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During the Year under review, the Group received several awards,
affirming its outstanding achievements in manpower training and
employee care:

° “Manpower Developer” awarded again by the Employees
Retraining Board

° “Happiness-at-work” label awarded for two consecutive
years in the “Happiness-at-Work Promotional Scheme”
organised by the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation
and the Hong Kong Productivity Council

° Front-line employees won awards in the QF “Award
Scheme for Learning Experiences”

PRODUCT AND SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY
Quality products and professional services help boost customers’
brand loyalty. The Group therefore has set up the China Gems
Laboratory Limited (“CGL”) to implement stringent requirements
on product quality. CGL has passed the assessment of Hong
Kong Accreditation Service and successfully obtained ISO 11426
accreditation in gold testing. The laboratory is now authorised to
issue internationally recognised gold test reports and is the only
laboratory in Hong Kong that meets the requirements of the three
ISO/IEC 17025 accreditations in jadeite jade testing, diamond
testing and gold testing. In addition, CGL is the first laboratory in
Hong Kong to obtain GB/T9288 accreditation in gold content
testing, demonstrating its dedication to providing customers with
quality products over the years.

Apart from CGL’s fulfillment in ISO 9001:2008 Quality
Management Systems Requirements, the Group’s jewellery
processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou, also meets the ISO 9001
Quality Management Systems Requirements, affirming that its
quality assurance system and product quality standard have
reached international standards and obtained professional
accreditations.

To ensure a reliable supply of quality diamonds and enhance
customer confidence, the Group entered into a sightholder rough
diamond sales contract with De Beers, the world’s largest
diamond producer and passed the “Natural Diamond Quality
Assurance” Mark scheme launched by the Diamond Federation of
Hong Kong, which assures that our diamond products sold are
natural diamonds.
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The Group attaches great importance to both product quality and
protection of brand integrity and has set up committees in Hong
Kong and Mainland China to handle tasks in respect of intellectual
properties, including trademark registration, design patent and
combating of infringement. The Group also actively monitors any
infringement by free-riding brands across the country to safeguard
customers from losses caused by misleading brand names.

For continuous optimisation and improvement of services so as to
strengthen competitiveness in the market, the Group has engaged
an independent agency to conduct seasonal mystery shopper
services to assess Lukfook’s quality of products and services.
Meanwhile, the Group has also carried out customer satisfaction
surveys in striving for excellence to cater to customers’ changing
needs. Currently, the tailored and professional advice provided by
our sales team as well as the complimentary services such as free
engraving and certificates for jadeite and diamond are well-
received by customers.

The Group’s efforts to serve customers to the highest calibre and
make a valuable contribution to the jewellery industry have been
recognised with a wide array of awards for management
excellence and high-quality products and services. These
included:

° “Hong Kong Service Awards 2016 — Quality Living
Category (Jewellery and Gold)” from “East Week Magazine”

o “Consumer Caring Company” by GS1 Hong Kong for four
consecutive years

° “2015 Most Like Wedding Message Award — Most Like
Jewellery Brand” Award
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CORPORATE CITIZEN

Adhering to its commitment to reciprocate society, the Group has
actively supported a variety of charity and community
programmes, and continues to work hand in hand with our staff
to fulfil corporate social responsibility and make meaningful
contributions to society, in a hope to convert love into blessings
and spread them out through community programmes.

In recent years, the Group has launched various “Love is Beauty”
charity gift sets for sale in its shops globally and donated a portion
of proceeds to social welfare organisations. During the Year under
review, the Group launched a brand-new “Love is Beauty”
diamond pendant charity gift set “Love Lock” and made donations
for the second consecutive years to the “Free Lunch for Children
Fund” initiated by China Social Welfare Foundation to provide free
lunch for poor children in Mainland China and protect them from
starvation and help them grow up healthily.

In response to the Government’s efforts in promoting
environmental protection, since the implementation of “Full
Implementation of the Plastic Shopping Bag Charging” in the retail
industry of Hong Kong, the Group has donated in full the relevant
charges to “Collecting Retailers Donation to Advance Waste
Reduction” scheme organised by three major green groups. The
Conservancy Association, Greeners Action and Green Power, for
the promotion of bring-your-own-bag and other waste reduction
projects.
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Besides, the Group also sponsored many charitable activities.  fk9h » REBE I E B ZEZEZ/E8) - #BiEw0

Below are some highlights: T

e A donation of HK$1 million to support “Tung Wah Charity e T;EJ HEEBE LI B HRE2015]
Gala 2015” BEHhe

o “Sedan Chair Race & Bazaar” held by the Sedan Chair e R BEEAEESB PN [ HRBELBE

Charities Fund RERTFE]
e Heifer's Race to Feed 2015 o /NEI4FFEIT2015
e 2014/2015 Walks for Millions e 2014/2016FERmE ASBIT
e Supported Mooncake Donation in Guangzhou . BIEEN e — A— A8t IBREES)
e Hong Kong Red Cross’ “Red Twinkle Star” Campaign o  EABLTTEI[/NAE]EZEEE
° “Food Angel” food recycle and assistance programme ° (e | Yok LIEETE

. “Lifeline Express Charity Auction” held by Lifeline Express o PEFFREASCSENNERERE
BEME] Y

ERL+TE
KONG RED CROSS

B2 Presented to

Lukfook Group
W RE Carnival Game Booth Sponsor

RSN ERAZHTRZ o o
it g 38 S . E WGC STV OV o

Asan expresslon of our gramude for your prominent
support to
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As a good corporate citizen, the Group is committed to corporate
social responsibility in the course of its business development and
encourages staff members to play an active role in volunteer
works. The Group has established the Lukfook volunteer team to
participate in community events, such as the Christmas party with
SAHK and the cookie-making event jointly held with Fu Hong
Society, to spell out the care for the ones in need with real actions
and bring positive energy to society.

Apart from being awarded the “5 Years Plus Caring Company”
logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service, the Group also
received other recognitions that affirmed its continued efforts in
fulfiling corporate social responsibility. Below are some highlights:

o Awarded “Corporate Citizenship logo (Enterprise Category)”
in “The 6" Hong Kong Corporate Citizenship Award
Scheme”

° Awarded the Second Runner-up in “Ordering Oxfam Rice
(Organization Category)” in “Oxfam Rice Sale 2015”
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

In the light of the increasing impact of climate change on the
environment, the Group has therefore established various
environmental guidelines for its operation and manufacturing
processes in respect of waste reduction, emission reduction and
energy conservation. The Group’s jewellery processing plant in
Nansha, Guangzhou, is subject to stringent emission controls.
The plant attained ISO 14001:2004 Environmental Management
System certification and has been pursuing cleaner production
practices for compliance with environmentally friendly principles.
The plant has established the corresponding guidelines on
emission control in accordance with the national and local laws
and regulations for the purpose of regulating its emissions of
pollutants such as effluent, waste gas, solid waste and hazardous
waste. In addition, the plant also keeps track of the emissions
data for regular analysis and further improvement.
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In order to reduce the volume of wastewater discharged, the
Group has installed a water recycling system in the plant to
recycle the wastewater discharged from processes like gold
plating and polishing. 65% of the wastewater discharged is
recyclable, while the remaining 35% would be directed to
competent recycle entities. Meanwhile, all waste gas must pass
through a tower for neutralisation or a spray device for treatment
and satisfy the applicable emission standards upon testing by the
environmental agencies before emission. The plant has also
implemented the waste separation and recycle scheme that
covers general waste paper as well as waste sandpaper, tools
and plastic bags. Hazardous waste is handled by a competent
recycle entity in a centralised manner. This initiative has reduced
general solid waste by approximately 12 tonnes per year.

To improve energy efficiency, the Group has been promoting the
replacement of traditional T8 tubes with LED lights, the use of the
electronic processing system for administrative applications, as
well as the use of electronic corporate communication to replace
printed materials in plants, shops and offices. All three have
further reduced paper consumption and helped deploy resources
in a prudent approach. Meanwhile, the Group keeps vehicle log
books of distance travelled, maintains monthly records of
electricity, water and paper consumption and also posts the “List
of Environmentally Friendly Tasks for General Operation at Offices
and Workshops” and reminders to encourage colleagues to save
resources. Besides, as a participant of the Charter on External
Lighting of the Environment Bureau, the Group pledges to switch
off lighting installations with decorative, promotional or advertising
purposes which affect the outdoor environment during preset
times, with a view to mitigating the problems of light nuisance and
energy wastage caused by external lighting while reducing energy
costs.
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The Group has received numerous awards in recognition of its
continuous dedication to environmental protection. These
included:

o Commended as “Hong Kong - Guangdong Cleaner e
Production Partners (Supply Chain)”, and Luk Fook
Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee Fook
Diamond and Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited
were again commended as “Hong Kong — Guangdong
Cleaner Production Partners (Manufacturing)”

o Won the silver award in CLP “GREEN™"YS Award” Programme

° Luk Fook Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee o
Fook Diamond and Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company
Limited were recognised as the “EcoPartner” in “2015
BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”
co-organised by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
and Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, and were also
awarded the “5 Years + EcoPioneer Companies” and
“3 Years + EcoPioneer Companies”, respectively
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) recognises that sound and effective
corporate governance practices and procedures, with an
emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value
and safeguard the shareholders’ interest. The Company is
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard
and endeavors to ensure that its businesses are conducted in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) through the year ended 31 March 2016, except for
the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities for the management of the Board and the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland China market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company will
further enhance the business development of the Group in the
Mainland China market due to the norms in the Mainland China
market on “status parity” when future business negotiations are
conducted in Mainland China. Besides, members of the Board
also include qualified professionals and other prominent and
experienced individuals from our community. The Board considers
that the existing Board composition, with the support of Board
Committees and two Deputy Chairmen, can ensure a balance of
power and authority.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company is
not, or was not for any part of the year ended 31 March 2016, in
compliance with the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, it is confirmed that all directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

@

36

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive directors, four
non-executive directors and five independent non-executive
directors. They include persons with a wealth of practical
experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, general trading, securities industry, banking
industry and legal profession. There is a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate for the requirements of the
Company’s business. The current composition of the Board
is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen (Appointed on 21 August 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai (Appointed on 21 August 2015)

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 64 to 74 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EET W)
(i) Attendance Records at the Board, Committees (i) EFETTR ZTRFFERERX
and General Meetings | -] GE
The attendance records of the individual directors at the EREEREZ2016 3 A31 BIEFE
Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, BOIVESEZSS EXRLEEEFH
Remuneration Committee and general meetings for the year REZECTeH FNZE2eZ LK
ended 31 March 2016 are set out as follows: RAG 2 HEREEHTAT
No. of Meetings Attended/Held
HE/ BOREAR
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee =~ Committee = Committee General
Directors B E¥E FHERE REZAT FHERE RREFEXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung BREREEE 44 NATER 2/2 3/3 17
(Chairman & Chief Executive) (Note 1) (LEHTRAEH) W)
Mr. TSF Moon Chuen E Eined 44 NATER 22 NATER 17
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2) (B1ZF)(Hi#2)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung (Note 3) InBrL(His) 44 NAMER NANER 3/3 17
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BRANT 44 NATNER  NATEER  NALER 1"
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping BEART 44 NATER  NATER  NATEA 11
Dr. CHAN So Kuen (Appointed on REBEHLT(R2015F8A21R
21 August 2015) EZf) 22 NAMER NATER NATER  NAMER
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny B ik 44 NANER NANER  NATER 17
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 4) (BlFE)(Bi#4)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BERIL 44 NANER  NATER  NANER 17
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP SRRAT ST 44 NAMER  NATER  NATER n
Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP TEBMHAT AL 44 NATER  NATEE  NATBR 1
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIER{TES
Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander (Note 5)  BIEIR %4 (#f#5) 4/4 212 212 3/3 17
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP ZEBOBS ATt 4/4 212 2/2 313 1/1
Mr. FOK Kwong Man (Note 6) ERSULE (Mit6) NATER  NATER NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin (Note 7) BXRTE(H7) 4/4 2/2 2/2 3/3 11
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP EREATAT 4/4 2/2 2/2 33 11
Mr. HUI King Wai (Appointed on AL (R2015F8 A21A
21 August 2015) (Note 8) BZE)(Hi#6) 22 71 NATER 111 NATER
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(i)

(iii)

38

Attendance Records at the Board, Committees
and General Meetings (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 19 August 2015.

2. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the

Company with effect from 19 August 2015. He also ceased to be a
member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 22 June
2015.

3. Ms. WONG Hau Yeung was appointed a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 22 June 2015.

4, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman
of the Company with effect from 19 August 2015.

5. Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander was appointed as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee with effect from 22 June 2015. He also ceased
to be the Chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 22
June 2015.

6. Mr. FOK Kwong Man passed away and ceased to be an independent
non-executive director on 18 June 2015.

7. Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin was appointed as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 22 June 2015.

8. Mr. HUI King Wai was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
with effect from 21 August 2015.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others are understood and met.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.

EET W)
(i) EETFR ZEFEFHRRBEKX
BZH B (&)
BEE
1. EBEBREA2015F8 A19AESIE AR
RAERE -

(iii)

2. FMERAEB2015F8 A19HRESFR AKX
ARBEIEE - #IF A 201596 A 22 HRRE
BEGHEZEG2ZKE -

3. T+ B 201546 A22 BRERT AR
REFHEEGZKE -

4. EEBESREBA201564 8 A19ARESFR AKX
G ES =

5. BERLEB2015F6 A2 ARREZT AN
NAIFEZZEGEE - IHINE2015F 6 A22
BRTHETIREEESER -

6. EENEAER 201546 A 18 HEH - WAH
RENIEITES -

7. FEOKFRIEEB2015F 6 A22 HEREZ T AA
NAREEEGER -

8. R E B 201558 A21 BEEZR T AA
NRIBREEE  REZEERFMEES
2B -

EFERERENNHER

EEgRERUGER BERE
ARBZAE  REBEAUZEERE
AHE R EERER - EFEEEFRT
mAEEBEFIXHATEEEER
BA-BEFQHFARRZRERET B

BRIRE  REREME B METHK
REMAZEE -

ARABEEARIEETEGFEFTERT
ZEH EXQCHUBEZRSHAENA
REARBMEHREZEER  MEHRE
BHBRETR -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation (Continued)
All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. TAlI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and
Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and, having taken into account the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors, considered that all
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the
date of this Annual Report, the Board had at all times met
the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

EFEE W@

(iii)

(iv)

EFTREREHHEEE)

PIN/NEST RS é%ﬂTiE&mﬁﬁﬁ%
EHEERRERAARARWEZE
BB ﬁ%ﬂEEEG%Eiﬁkﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁTééé

EReREFURESTHEERRILR
Ble 2EEE(BEBYIENITESE)R
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% EBEEBRATESRBYHEEER
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BIUFRTEFEZHIE

AABERESCCEES B IENTT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

40

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

However, following the passing away of Mr. FOK Kwong
Man on 18 June 2015, he ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of the Company. There remained
four independent non-executive directors. The number of
independent non-executive directors could not represent at
least one-third of the Board as required under the Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Upon the appointment of Mr. HUI King Wai as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 21 August 2015, the number of independent
non-executive directors is five, which meets the requirement
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programs arranged by the Company during their
terms of appointment covering the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors were encouraged by the Company to participate
in the relevant continuous professional training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The company has
also arranged for consultants to provide training programs.
The average training hours of the directors were not less
than 10 hours.

EFEE W@

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company arranged
a seminar covering updates on Environmental, Social and
Governance reporting. Directors’ training records during the
Year under review are summarised as follows:

EFEE W@
(vi) EEMFHEER (W)

HZE2016FE3AIBILEE  AQFL
BT XN E  ABENRIRE L2
MERMENEH - BEFERN &F

B R FIREER BN

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,
or other relevant topics

FREERR EESEIURAN

Directors B= Hth AR E Y B A

Executive Directors HMITES

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung BEELE v
(Chairman & Chief Executive) (FEHFTHAEE)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen FmE s v
(Deputy Chairman) BIEE)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung ESLIC yeden v

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy HEFZLT v

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping EEkLt v

Dr. CHAN So Kuen (Appointed on PREBELT (R20156F 8 A21 H v
21 August 2015) BZE)

Non-executive Directors ERTESE

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny R E v
(Deputy Chairman) BIERE)

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BERLL v

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FFRAP R4t v

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP ZZEHEMH KTt 4

Independent Non-executive Directors HILIEMITEE

Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander HER T4 v

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP EHB GBS AF ML v

Mr. FOK Kwong Man (Deceased and EEX A (7R 2015%F6 A 18 H N/A 7~ F
ceased to be an independent non- Bt - WABABMUIENTES)
executive director on 18 June 2015)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BEOKRESE v

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BB AL v

Mr. HUI King Wai (Appointed on BB A (0201568 A21 H v

21 August 2015)

BRI
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies
and in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive is delegated with the authority and responsible for
running the Company’s business, implementing the Company’s
strategies in achieving business objectives. Both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive positions are currently held by Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, an executive director. The Board believes that the
current governance structure, with a combined Chairman and
Chief Executive and a vast majority of non-executive directors,
provides an effective balance of power and authority for the
management of the Company in the best interest of the Company
at the present stage.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Until the passing
away of Mr. FOK Kwong Man on 18 June 2015, the Audit
Committee was chaired by Mr. FOK Kwong Man with four
other members, namely, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander,
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, with all of whom being the
independent non-executive directors. Mr. TAI Kwok Leung,
Alexander has served as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee since 22 June 2015. Upon the appointment of
Mr. HUI King Wai as a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company since 21 August 2015, the Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, with four
other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr.
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr.
HUI King Wai, with all of whom being the independent non-
executive directors. In compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, majority of the members possess appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the Code and the internal audit
plan and functions of the Group.

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditors
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external auditors
are responsible for auditing and attesting to the Group’s
financial statements and evaluating the Group’s system of
internal controls, to the extent that they consider necessary
to support their audit report. The Audit Committee is
responsible for overseeing the entire process.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

44

Audit Committee (Continued)
The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board for approval;

o reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

° approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations on
the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

° reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
internal control matters;

o reviewing the financial control, internal control and risk
management systems of the Group and ensuring that
the management has discharged its duty to have
effective risk management and internal control
systems, in particular, the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions; and

o reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and the Company’s compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2016, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(i)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April 2012
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Until 18 June
2015, the Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr. TAI
Kwok Leung, Alexander, being an independent non-
executive director, with six other members namely, Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, Mr. FOK Kwong Man (deceased and
ceased to be an independent non-executive director on 18
June 2015), Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, and Ms. WONG Yu
Pok, Marina, with majority of whom being the independent
non-executive directors. Starting from 22 June 2015, the
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with five
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen and Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, with
majority of whom being the independent non-executive
directors. Upon the appointment of Mr. HUI King Wai as a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company
since 21 August 2015, the Nomination Committee is chaired
by Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, being an independent non-
executive director, with six other members namely Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok
Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG
Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai, with majority of
whom being the independent non-executive directors.

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising the
Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the Board
to seek external professional advice in the selection and
recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil the
requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
As such, the Company continued to adopt board diversity
policy during the Year under review. In achieving a truly
diverse Board, candidates with different talents, skills,
knowledge, length of service and professional experience,
cultural and educational background, age, gender and other
qualities may be selected as members of the Board.
Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
perspectives. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution which would be brought by the candidates to
the Board if he/she was selected as a director. The
Nomination Committee is of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set in
the above board diversity policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) ESEZRTW
(i) Remuneration Committee (iii) FHEERS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7 April
2005 with written terms of reference posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Until 18 June
2015, the Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr. IP
Shu Kwan, Stephen, being an independent non-executive
director, with six other members namely, Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung,
Alexander, Mr. FOK Kwong Man (deceased and ceased to
be an independent non-executive director on 18 June
2015), Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu Pok,
Marina. On 22 June 2015, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was
replaced by Ms. WONG Hau Yeung to be a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Majority of whom are the
independent non-executive directors. Starting from 22 June
2015, the Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP
Shu Kwan, Stephen, being an independent non-executive
director, with five other members namely, Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. TAlI Kwok Leung,
Alexander, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu
Pok, Marina, with majority of whom being the independent
non-executive directors. Upon the appointment of Mr. HUI
King Wai as a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since 21 August 2015, the Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, being
an independent non-executive director, with six other
members namely, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. WONG Hau
Yeung, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. MAK Wing
Sum, Alvin and Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI
King Wai, with majority of whom being the independent
non-executive directors.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy, structure and packages for
all remuneration of directors and senior management;
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
and the terms of service contracts of the directors and
senior management, reviewing and approving the
compensation payable in connection with any loss or
termination of office or appointment of directors and senior
management, overseeing any major changes in employee
benefits structures throughout the Company or the Group;
and reviewing the on-going appropriateness of the
remuneration policy. No director or senior management
determined his/her own remuneration package.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(iii) Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
Year under review to review the remuneration policies and
recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2016, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2015 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the Head Office.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid individuals
and the remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band during the Year under review are set
out in Note 15 to the financial statements on pages 143 to
147 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified
Public Accountants, were as follows:
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BB 2016 BF 2 FEHRIE - 2015
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BHNAFRME14BEATEZHER
RMTEE15 ©

B BENEl &

B SN 12 BRI 28 B oKGB & AT =S AT (31
SRTED) RE TS RIFFT R <M E DM

L

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FH&TT

Audit services ETIRTS 4,610 4,520

Non-audit services RIS

— Review service — EHRT 535 520

— Tax related service — MIEIEE RS 249 579

— IT security review service — B AFIRL EBI RS = 320

Total 4t 5,394 5,939
The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial ~ JMNEZBAIR B ERE HE 2 BE - SR B

reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the result and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects. The
published financial statements adopt, and consistently apply,
suitable accounting policies complying with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest
and the Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the
assistance of the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Head
of the Internal Audit Team directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the Audit
Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review, the
Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Team. The reports summarised information relating to the work
carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the risk
management system and an examination of the internal control
system have been adequately executed by the Internal Audit
Team during the Year under review. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management has been progressively
implementing adequate and effective risk management and
internal control systems in order to ensure the effective functioning
of the Company’s operations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Committee

As our commitment to establishing and improving the risk
management system, ensuring timely identification and
management of risks for the achievement of corporate objectives,
the Risk Management Committee was set up in 2016, comprising
the Chairman and Chief Executive, four executive Directors and
senior executives of the Group. The duties of the Risk
Management Committee include, but are not limited to: (i) review
the Company’s compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules regarding risk management requirements;
(i) coordinate staff training, including risk management principles,
assessment methodology and its implementation; and (jii) assign
personnel to support departments to perform risk assessment for
newly established business or projects, if necessary. This
committee reports directly to the Audit Committee.

Risk Management Framework
A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is
shown as below:
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Risk Management Framework
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Board of Directors

Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

Approving the Group’s risk management policy; and

Monitoring significant risks

Audit Committee

Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management

Risk Management Committee

52

Recommending the Group’s risk tolerant level and criteria;

Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

Approving risk registers;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules regarding risk
management requirements;

Appointing risk owners;

Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner;

Coordinating staff training; and

Using heat map to show the risk ranking
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Departments & Management

Departments and management are responsible for the
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of
responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation
° Strategies;

° Operation;
° Financial reporting; and
° Compliance

Risk Identification
° The Group provides examples of risk factors; and

° Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives

Risk Analysis
° Considering existing control measures;

o Using a consistent scoring criteria; and
° Assessing the residual risks

Risk Treatment
° Choosing a risk treatment strategy;

° Establishing a treatment plan; and
° Appointing risk owners

Effectiveness Monitoring and Reporting
° Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and

° Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism
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Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management Committee review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Internal Audit Team also conducts independent
audit of the effectiveness of these systems. Separate reports are
submitted to the Audit Committee for its review and appraisal. A
final report will be submitted to the Board for accessing the
effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Team will follow up and/or re-classified as “severe” risk in
the risk management system for further formulating measures to
resolve or prevent such defects.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the
Internal Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s
management and reporting functionally to the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit Team is authorised to obtain all information
necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has reviewed annually to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Team. Internal control reviews are arranged regularly while
paying close attention to business or operation changes. Regular
audit tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation.
The Internal Audit Team also conducts other projects and
investigating work as may be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently
followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is
maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Team are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of
the internal audit activities and audit results are also submitted to
the Audit Committee twice a year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM
to be called by the Board. The written requisition () must state the
purposes of the SGM; and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company, and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but any
SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A SGM
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be convened
by the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less
than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (i)
give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses the
annual general meetings and investors’ conferences, to
communicate with shareholders and invites their participation in
certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official website
serves as a handy communication channel for the shareholders.
Press releases and announcements about the Company’s
business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at Luk Fook Jewellery Centre,
No. 239 Temple Street, Jordan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also make proposals at the general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 (“the Year
under review”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) is investment holding. The subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling,
trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum
jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under
review, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and material attributable factors of the development and
likely future developments of the Group’s business, are provided
throughout this Annual Report, particularly in the following
separate sections:

(@  Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 18;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 57 to 82;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 18;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 18;

(e) Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance — “Corporate Social Responsibility” on pages
25 to 34;
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ESEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

® Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 35 to 56 and “Report of the Directors” on pages 57
to 82; and

(@ An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others
—“Corporate Social Responsibility” on pages 25 to 34 and
“Report of the Directors” on pages 57 to 82.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate the
risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently and
effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks
° Economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the global or
Mainland China’s economy;

° Weakening of mainland tourist spending due to the strong
Hong Kong Dollar/weak Renminbi, the adjustment to the
policy of Individual Visit Scheme and the increase in
popularity of other tourist destinations;

Operational Risks
° Rental increment on retail shops;

° Fluctuations in prices of raw materials which may adversely
affect our profitability;

° Strong competition from national and local competitors in
jewellery and watch industry;

Regulatory Risks
° Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses;

Financial Risks
° Details of financial risks which are set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships with
regulators effectively through effective communications. During
the Year under review, as far as the Group is aware, it has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training and
resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the
latest development of the market and the industry and, at the
same time, improve their performance and facilitate their self-
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which satisfy
their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight on the changing market demand for different products so
that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in a
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationship with its suppliers
and service providers. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
regularly conducts performance reviews targeting the Group’s
major suppliers and service providers, and communicates with
them for rectification and improvements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 85.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.315 per
ordinary share and a special dividend of HK$0.235 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$0.55 per ordinary share. A total of
HK$324,009,000 was paid on 21 December 2015.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.34 per ordinary
share and a special dividend of HK$0.21 per ordinary share,
totalling HK$0.55 per ordinary share for the Year under review
(2015: HK$0.55 per share) to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 23 August 2016.
Taking into account of the interim and special dividends paid, the
total dividend for the year would amount to HK$1.10 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$646,918,000 for the year (2015: HK$1.10 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$648,018,000). Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 17 August 2016, the final
and special dividends will be paid on or around 1 September
2016.

DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the Year under review
amounted to approximately HK$2,016,000 (2015:
HK$4,250,000).

SHARES ISSUED
Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES o] i 53 i % fi
Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2016, REBEEASEIE - AR TN 2016 E3 A
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to 31 B 2 A] {5 E£E 15 2947,756,0005% 70.(2015

HK$947,756,000 (2015: HK$1,099,747,000). F 1 1,099,747,000787T) °
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A FEMERE
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last AEEFHZE=3I A31 B IFE FRAFEMREERSE
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows: JEE CBENBEBEWOT
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTAT FTAT FET FHT
Results &
Revenue A 14,031,302 15,922,708 19,214,930 13,411,691 11,907,440
Profit attributable to equity AR F1EZEH A
holders of the Company  JE/h ¥ 7 958,692 1,614,805 1,864,928 1,242,951 1,355,523

Assets and liabilities BERAR

Total assets BEE 10,629,499 11,511,237 9,586,156 7,561,875 6,738,461
Total liabilities BEfE 1,860,580 2,910,730 1,887,001 1,084,282 1,094,179
Shareholders’ funds WEREE 8,673,796 8,536,363 7,640,769 6,424,748 5,595,524
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company was authorised at its annual general meeting held
on 19 August 2015 to repurchase shares up to a maximum of
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of passing the relevant
resolution. During the Year under review, the Company
repurchased its ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange when
they were significantly trading at a discount in order to enhance
shareholders’ value. During the Year under review, the Company
repurchased an aggregate of 2,000,000 ordinary shares for a total
consideration of apparently HK$29,086,000 (excluding transaction
cost) on the Stock Exchange. The repurchased shares were
cancelled during the Year under review. Details of the shares
repurchased are as follows:

BA - HERREES

RABIR20159F8 A 19 H 1T A B F K
GEREBELDAQARLBEE  UELRZHEE
REBRERZEBRBRHEERTRHAZK Y
10% ° REIEFEN - ARRIEE L BB E
BEHIRBEEIEN  RE A TR AT @A
LURFRER(EE - REIBEFENRN - AR R R
LA B [E 2,000,000 B E B AL - AR
fB#429,086,000 B T(TBEIERXZHA) * #%
EREZRHERLCEFENIHE - EHEED
WBefp 2z BT -

Number of shares Aggregate
Month of repurchase repurchased Consideration per share consideration paid
BERkinZ A7 BB BB {0 #8 8 BERAKR R REE
(excluding
Highest Lowest transaction cost)
B& RIE (FEEXHHEF)
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT TBT
December 2015 801,000 16.28 15.92 12,919
2015612
January 2016 1,199,000 15.94 12.84 16,167
201641 A
2,000,000 29,086
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries ¥ A EHEESN - AR F) K H T B A 77 R B4R

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2016 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen (Appointed on 21 August 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP
Mr. FOK Kwong Man (Deceased and ceased to be
an independent non-executive director on 18 June 2015)
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP
Mr. HUI King Wai (Appointed on 21 August 2015)

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
(the “AGM”) of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen,
Dr. CHAN So Kuen, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Mr. MAK Wing
Sum, Alvin and Mr. HUI King Wai shall retire from office by rotation
at the AGM. All the retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. Details of the proposed
directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular sent together
with this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 65, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive and Executive Director of the Group. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. WONG has over 49 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is a member of the
Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Honorary Life
President and the Associate Director of The Kowloon Gold Silver
and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association, the Honorary Permanent
Chairman of Hong Kong Jade Association, the Chairman of
Supervisory Committee of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones,
Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, the
Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary
Chairman of the First General Committee and Vice President of
Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association, the
Honorary Vice-president of the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association
of China, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Small and
Medium Enterprises Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong
Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association, Founding Member
and Vice-president of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry Creative
Industry Association, Honorary Consultant of H.K. Gold & Silver
Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union as well as the
President of Hong Kong Precious Metals Traders Association
Limited. He is also the elected member of General Committee of
Hong Kong Brand Development Council. Mr. WONG is the father
of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-
executive Director of the Company and Ms. WONG Lan Sze,
Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy Business Director of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 65, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member of
the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 43 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the
merchandising and production functions of the Group. He is an
Executive Committee member of the Diamond Federation of Hong
Kong, China Ltd., a Vice President of The Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society, the Vice-chairman of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants
Association, a Life Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan
Industries and Commerce Association Limited, the President of
The Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing Committee, a
member of the Kwun Tong District Junior Police Call (JPC)
Honorary President Council, a Vice-chairman of Macau
Goldsmith’s Guild, a Director of Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan
and Zhaoqing Friendship Association, a Honorary President of
Tsuen Wan Committee for Celebration of Reunification of Hong
Kong with China, a Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Preparatory
Community of National Day, a Vice President of Zhaoging
Overseas Friendship Association, a Honorary Consultant of Shatin
Friends Society, a Vice Director of Finance of Hong Kong
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Vice-chairperson of Tsuen
Wan District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’
Association, a Honorary President of H.K. Gold & Silver Ornament
Workers & Merchants General Union, a Honorary President of The
Residents Association of Tsuen Wan Hoi Bun District, a Honorary
President of Hong Kong New Territories District Adviser Alumni
Association and a 12th Term Executive Director of Guangzhou
Panyu Jewelry Manufacturers Association. Moreover, Mr. TSE
was awarded the “Chief Executive’s Commendation for
Community Service” by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 43, is the Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. She is also a Director of China Gold
Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate of the
Company which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brandname of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. Ms. WONG initially joined the Group in 1994 and
served various departments for about 7 years until 2002. She
rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she is responsible for the
Group’s operations and development of the retail and licensing
businesses. In addition, she is also responsible for the human
resources, administration and training functions of the Group. She
holds a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from
University of Southern Queensland. Ms. WONG is also a member
of the Liaison Committee of Guangzhou Panyu District Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a
Standing Director of Gemmological Association of Fujian, a
member of The Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee,
the Honorary Life President of Hong Kong Pun Yue Industrial and
Commercial Fellowship Association and the Fifth Term Standing
Director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship Association.
She has over 22 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 35, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Business Director of the Group. She joined the Group
in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing the Group’s
overall business strategies. She is also responsible for the Group’s
corporate branding, marketing, corporate communications and
e-commerce operations. Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada and a
Master’s Degree of Science in China Business Studies from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified Public
Accountant of the United States of America. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. WONG worked for an international professional
accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing and
accounting assignments for a variety of business organizations
including listed companies. She received the GIA Diamond
Graduate title in 2007. She is a Co-opted Member of the
Marketing Activities Committee of the Quality Tourism Services
Association and a member of Jewellery Advisory Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Ms. WONG is the
daughter of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief
Executive and Executive Director and the sister of Mr. WONG Ho
Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 46, is the Executive Director and
Deputy Product Development Director of the Group. She has over
28 years of experience in the jewellery industry. She joined the
Group in 1990 and is responsible for the product design and
development functions of the Group. Ms. CHUNG frequently visits
jewellery exhibitions worldwide for product exploration and
sourcing the finest jewellery and jewellery parts for the Group. In
2001, Ms. CHUNG won the Best of Show Award for her design
“Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition.
She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms.
CHUNG is an Executive Committee member of Hong Kong
Jewellers’” & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Director of the 5th
Congress of Gemmological Association of Fujian and a fellow of
the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector
Limited.

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 56, has been appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group since
September 2012 and the Executive Director of the Group since
21 August 2015. Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Oklahoma City University (the United
States of America), with a doctorate degree and a master’s
degree in Business Administration, respectively. She is also a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Dr. CHAN had been the Director of Finance &
Company Secretary and the Deputy Chairman of the Board of
Directors & Chief Executive Officer of Bossini International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0592) for approximately 3 and 4
years respectively during the period from 2003 to 2010. Dr. CHAN
has substantial financial and management experiences in vast
varieties of businesses for more than 30 years. Dr. CHAN is
currently responsible for the overall financial management,
corporate finance, information technology, investor relations and
company secretarial matters of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 39, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group as an
Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an active
participant in the community and is currently a Standing
Committee member of Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Permanent President
of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong)
Limited, the President of Sihui Dasha Town Clansman’s
Association (Hong Kong), an Executive Committee member of
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited, an Executive
Committee member of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’
Association, a Supervisory Committee member of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, a Vice President of Executive Committee
of Shamshuipo Council For the Promotion of Cultural &
Recreational Services Ltd., a member of Lions Club of Sham Shui
Po Hong Kong and a member of The Association of the Hong
Kong Members of Guangdong’s Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Committees Limited. In December 2008,
Mr. Danny WONG received the GIA Diamond Graduate title. He is
the son of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief
Executive and Executive Director and the elder brother of Ms.
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, an Executive Director and Deputy
Business Director of the Company.

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 49, is the co-founder of the
Group. Ms. YEUNG has over 28 years of experience in public
relations. Ms. YEUNG was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and
Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the 4th Runner-
up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Ms. YEUNG was
the President of the Wai Yin Association for the year 1995-1996.
She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2005.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 69, joined the Group in 1997.
He was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive
Director to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1
October 2011, owing to changes in factors concerning his
independence. Mr. HUI has 45 years of experience in the
securities and investment industry. Mr. HUI had for years been
serving as a Council Member and Vice Chairman of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a member of the Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission,
Director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited,
a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and
Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform, a member of the Committee on Real
Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission and also an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr.
HUI was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of
the Peace in 2004 and was also appointed a member of the
Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in 2006. He had also been a member of
Government “Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal Panel
of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI also serves
as Independent Non-executive Director of Zhuhai Holdings
Investment Group Limited (Stock Code: 0908), Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1212), Gemdale
Properties and Investment Corporation Limited (Stock Code:
0535), China South City Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1668),
SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2386), Agile
Property Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3383) and FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0331) whose shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was
an Independent Non-executive Director of Chun Wo Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711) and Hong Kong Exchange
and Clearing Limited (Stock Code: 0388) until his resignation
effective from 1 February 2015 and his retirement effective from
29 April 2015 respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, MH, JP, aged 59, has been appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1 October 2011.
Mr. LI holds a Diploma of Architectural Design from Humber
College of Toronto, Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s of
Architecture from New York Institute of Technology in 1984. Mr.
LI was awarded the Certificate of Registration Authorized Person
(List of Architects) in 1989 and the Certificate of Registered
Inspector in 2012, by the Government of the HKSAR respectively.
In professional qualification aspect, Mr. LI is a Fellow of Hong
Kong Institute of Architects and a Member of Architect
Registration Board. He also got the PRC Class 1 Registered
Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has extensive architecture
experience and is a Director of Li & Siu Associates Ltd. and A. Li
& Associates Architects Ltd. In addition, he is a Director of Keen
Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed as a District Council
Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000 to 2007 and
awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation For Community
Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in 2008. Mr. LI
has been appointed to various positions over the years including:
Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison Team),
Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon City
District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim District
Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAlI Kwok Leung, Alexander, aged 58, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since July
2008 and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria University of Wellington
in New Zealand with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce and
Administration in 1982 and became an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr.
TAI has extensive accountancy, corporate finance and investment
experience in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. TAl is an executive
director of Investec Capital Asia Limited (formerly known as Access
Capital Asia Limited), a licensed corporation under the SFO to
conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities. Mr. TAl is an Independent Non-
executive Director of Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited
(Stock Code: 0914) and Jiayuan International Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2768) which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

EFEREEBEERARZEEFRE @)

JEMITESE (&)

FEBMHXFE#LT 505 0 72011410 A
1HREZTAARRZIENITES - T4
R1981 F#H 2 K% e % Humber College
ERZBIZERE  MRN19084FHEE
BIAAIR T RERB C BEREL « LD
BN 1980 F B EBFRIITHEAR A AL (32
AN FERR012FREEBFRITRE T
e ABRSE HEEXEEKTE  ThER
EEREMBGEFEE URBEBEEMF
MERRERABERBEMET 2 EE - F
BB B — R MREEMER  FThEEFE
BEZRELR  TATHEEMEFRARR
FEWERMEBRARZES - B0 BA
RSHHEREDZTE 2 ESE - L ER 2000
FE 2007 FEEAEBERITHE R KT @
FEBNEAEZEES @ WESBERTHEK
TEFITRRE L ERREER L RESE -
B 2008 FEE B R RITTH R BT R E K FE
MTEE  BELFRFEEBEELER
B 28R FKUERIBEESERF &
IKBBHANEZEEERE  FKTE VR FELRE
CEFE RSB ERFETEESERE « FK
YEILFENRESR  NESRIFEANEL
E2egk BLEIFEMEEER  X—HE
REEERE BELREAGGRERFKTE

FEalgeR -

BIERTES

BER%YE 5857 H2008F7ARALRR
BIZBMIERITES  BARAREZREERS
ZEERRAEZECHEMEZESZKE - &
g A 19824 7E 4t 7 B B | 18 Victoria
University 23 » EEE ¥ RITRE LTSN - I
R1983FR AT ESFMAETEE - BhE
EEBREBINEBELEEZ SR DERERE
B BAERBREMEDMNER AR (A
BEEBEBRAB) ZRITES  ZR6A
BEFHFRPERATHEEIB(EERER
) FABE(REHREHEER) Fela (g
BREREERL) MFEIE(REEEER)X
RETEZHEEE - BAERARTABHAR
BEHARAREIR EMHLZESRIRRG

AR (BRM RS : 0914) RERBIE KA
BRAR(IRIDREE - 2768) 2 B FEHITES -

70 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 64, is an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. IP graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Social
Sciences in 1973. He subsequently pursued further studies in
Oxford University and Harvard Business School. Mr. IP joined the
Hong Kong Government in November 1973 as an Administrative
Officer and had served various government departments. Mr. IP
was promoted to the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He
worked in the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a
Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions
held by Mr. IP in the past included Commissioner of Insurance,
Commissioner for Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and
Secretary for Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of
Secretary for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002.
His portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and
sea transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal
services, meteorological services, competition and consumer
protection. He was also responsible for labour policies including
matters relating to employment services, labour relations and
employees’ rights. In his capacity as Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong
Kong Airport Authority Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Authority Board, the Hong Kong International Theme Parks
Company Board as well as the Chairman of the Logistics
Development Council, Port Development Board, Maritime Industry
Council and Aviation Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP
retired from the Government of the HKSAR in July 2007. Mr. IP
received the Gold Bauhinia Star award from the Government of
the HKSAR in 2001, and is an unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr.
IP is also an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313),
Synergis Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2340), Lai Sun
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488) and
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888) which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 63, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. MAK
graduated from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor of
Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank for over 26
years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served as the
Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong, being the
country business manager for corporate and investment banking
business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior positions in
Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible for
managing all the coverage bankers. Prior to that, he also
managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of I.T Limited
(Stock Code: 0999), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1125), Hong Kong Television Network Limited (Stock Code: 1137)
and Goldpac Group Limited (Stock Code: 3315) which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. MAK was admitted as a member of Hong Kong Housing
Society in May 2015 and is currently a member of its Audit
Committee and Special Committee on Investment.

EFEREEBEERARZEEFRE @)

BIJERITEE (&)

FRBEE 635 AARAIZENLIEWITE
£ RAREREZEESGVFRAERLZETHY
WEESZKE - BAER1976FEZREZ
REBRE ENEESLE0 - FANERE
HFertMAeeaNABSHIMAEETE - &
S AERIEERITER B 26F 1% - R20124F5
A1BERK - BHIER M BIEEETEEREAR
MHEREERITERBE - TERBLEME
BIRITET - B EEERTCHERITHMANG
EABZHEAMSART  SERKRITES
FE HEEEMAERBELE - #t2
Al N EEBZBTEEBOEMEER
RIGEETEER YL AT EFIER
£ o BEERA1985F I AEHEERTTAT - AKX
BEHMEKARBRE LR KEETMER
Fr) B AR - RGBSR S5 T
ET8F ER5FRNERZ BB ILIE -

BEERAEBBHBAERIMAR AR ER LT
B9 1.T Limited (B2 2 5% : 0099) ~ BEEiRE
PRAF (MRS :1125) BEERBERE
RAFIRMRSE - 1137) ke FEE=ER
ARAR (MDA : 3315) 2 B IEHITE
Fo BN 2015F5 AEZ T AEBEEWR
GHWKE RN AHEBERZESMRERRIE
BEIZKE -

72 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 (EE) HRAE



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 67, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. WONG joined the Company on 20 August 2013.
Ms. WONG had been with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 36
years specializing in the Mainland China tax and business advisory
services. Since 1978, she was responsible for the development of
the firm’s business in the Mainland China. Ms. WONG joined
Tricor Services Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006 after her
retirement as a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004.
Ms. WONG is the Chairman of The Applied Research Council and
a member of Advisory Committee on Social Work Training and
Manpower Planning. She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683) and Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636), which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and an independent director of China World Trade Center Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company with effect from 21 August 2015. He is a solicitor
practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently an Of Counsel of
Locke Lord LLP. Mr. HUI was admitted the solicitor of the
Supreme Court of England and Wales and of the Supreme Court
of Hong Kong in 1981 and 1982 respectively. Mr. HUI was a Non-
executive Director of the Group during the period from 1999 to
2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 55, is the Business Director of the
Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and served various
departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr. WONG rejoined the
Group in 2014. He has over 39 years of manufacturing and
purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. Mr. WONG
is responsible for the Group’s merchandising and assembly
functions of diamonds and gemstones. He holds the titles of a
Diamond Grader of National Gemstone Testing Center and a
Certified Diamond Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of
Gemmology. He is the second term member of the Guangzhou
Nansha District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the Vice-chairman of Hong
Kong Guangzhou Nansha Association, the sixth term executive
director of Guangzhou Overseas Friendship Association, a
Consultant of Guangzhou Panyu Jewelry Manufacturers
Association, the forth term Executive Director of Guangzhou
Panyu Overseas Friendship Association, the third term Director of
Guangzhou Panyu District Overseas Exchange Association, a
Vice-president Nansha District of Hong Kong Federation of
Guangzhou Associations and a Director of Guangzhou Diamond
Exchange. Mr. WONG is the brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung,
the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive and Executive Director.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 54, is the Deputy Financial Controller
of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 1997. She is mainly
responsible for accounting, finance and tax planning matters of
the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to Mainland China in search
of information on national tax policies and privileges in order to
develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She has over 30 years
of experience in financial and accounting for commercial firms.
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ESEHE

RETIREMENT SCHEME
Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined by
reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or
its holding company was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year
under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which
(a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required,
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pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by  #F81) &L 10 Fr#id E 37 AE%LTTE’E%’
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 33 S HIEXESF A ([FEESRE| ) BHE AN
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing KRBT 2 S AR -
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the ZHAFRGRHERKRGBZTFE :
Company:
Number of Ordinary Shares
EiEkREA
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
£ 331 RRRAA [5]] RHEHEE EEREA ERRE Gkhask
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 4,044,561 404,000 240,868,176 1,511,050 246,827,787 (L) 42.04%
"HERLE note (a) note (o) note (d)
B () B3 (o) Pit5E ()
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 422,344 240,868,176 241,290,520 (L) 41.10%
EiNE e note (c)
Bz (o)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung 60,000 60,000 (L) 0.01%
InGE L
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 385,000 1,511,050 1,896,050 (L) 0.32%
BEHLT note (d)
M5t (d)
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping 267,865 267,865 (L) 0.05%
SRkt
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 80,000 5,000 85,000 (L) 0.01%
BREEEL note (e)
Hi5 (o)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 370,000 1,511,050 1,881,050 (L) 0.32%
HEREE note (d)
MEE (d)
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 837,437 (L) 0.14%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 404,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was a discretionary beneficiary of the WONG’s Family Trust
(the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which controlled over
one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited. Accordingly, Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over
one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and was deemed to be
interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment
Ltd.. Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in
6,682,504 shares held by Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (c)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or
indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 234,185,672
shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled
(directly or indirectly) over one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment
Ltd.. Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504
shares held by Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, were discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust. The Trust was
the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery
& Goldsmith Company Limited which in turn was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050
shares of the Company.

Note (e)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2016, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

FERRREGREMRGZERR

R2016F3A31H R TXXHEEI B
DRAEERERITRABE - *E%ﬂﬁﬁﬂém
NEIEELERITBAEZ ATRARRRD
MEBEROT  HEREBEESRBE MWJ”*
XVEBE 2 K3 D EMEX AR AR R R 2
MEJZ/J\’E °

the SFO.

Number of Total
Name of Shareholder shares Capacity Interest % of Shares
BRkE E8 & E 1) Ea8E HRITESL
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,849,022 (L) Beneficial Owner 244,717,198 (L) 41.68%
BRiEfAE 8 Z=DN
240,868,176 (L)  Controlled Corporation
(note (a) REHEE
k)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 (L) Beneficial Owner 243,546,266 (L) 41.48%
(Deceased on 19 June 2016) ERAA
BERELLE 240,868,176 (L) Controlled Corporation
(722016 6 A19 AFH) (note (a)) REHEE
k)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 (L) Beneficial Owner 249,825,029 (L) 42.55%
(Deceased on 14 July 2011) ExBEEA
FhmEE 243,454,800 () Controlled Corporation
(2011 F7 A 14 BEHt) (notes (a), (b) RE6EE
and (c))
(5t (@)~ (o)
% ()
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 (L) Beneficial Owner 234,185,672 (L) 39.89%
E(ER)BRAT ERBAA
Silchester International Investment LLP 52,846,000 (L) Investment Manager 52,846,000 (L) 9.00%
REKE
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 35,430,000 (L) Investment Manager 35,430,000 (L) 6.03%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the administrator of Mr. LEE Shu
Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over one-half
of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and were deemed to be interested
in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. WONG Koon Cheung and the administrator of Mr.
LEE Shu Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over
one-third of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd. and were deemed to
be interested in 6,682,504 shares held by Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the
Company.

Note (b)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital
of Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the
Company.

Note (c)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital of
Wah Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the
Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries, or
its parent company or its other associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under
the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including
former Directors) of the Company or its associated companies.
The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in the
Company’s Articles of Association and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors.
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ESEHE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

EEER
REBFER  AEEXBESAEHER
ZEAHET

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FH&T

The largest customer RAEF 2.7% 2.5%
Five largest customers combined ABARARBEFART 4.6% 4.2%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

BEE REZBMBALIBEEEAAHEARN
RNA)5% A BB Z AEAIBOR - SHESEA Lt
TERP 2R -

ERHED
PEIRRF R - A E B R A (0 B 4R
ZEAHET

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

The largest supplier SAMER 25.5% 23.5%
Five largest suppliers combined hAEAEEEER 68.6% 61.7%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2016 are set out in Notes 32 and 33 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

REE REZBEALIBEEMAEAR
NE)5% A EBAZ AEAIBCR - BEGEA Lt
TRHER M -

HTER FXRHEMEE
R2016F3 A3 HZAEBERTER &%
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ESEHE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 15 August 2016 to 17 August 2016, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to be
held on 17 August 2016, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, 17M Floor, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 12 August 2016.

The register of members of the Company for the final and special
dividends will also be closed on 23 August 2016 and no transfer
of shares will be registered on that day. In order to qualify for the
final and special dividends, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, 17M Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 August 2016.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year under review, none of the directors had an
interest in any business constituting competing business to the
Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the Year under review
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN 2 AR S

_
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK
HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk
Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 85 to 180, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2016, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

FEL KB BTN EBAT - BAEFRAFAEL —#
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BN 2 AR S

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

] /\ [== RN
— Z N
N = =N
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HZE2016F3 A1 HILFE

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE THT FAT
Revenue WA 6 14,031,302 15,922,708
Cost of sales 4 R 8 (10,777,191) (12,091,170)
Gross profit E A 3,254,111 3,831,538
Other income Emlg A 7 139,293 174,386
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (1,981,763) (1,937,059
Administrative expenses THEA (148,818) (147,247)
Other (losses)/gains, net Hab (BB), W F58 (50,671) 54,593
Operatingprofit _______&&&¥ 8 ] ieioen 1976,211
Finance income B 41,725 48,874
Finance costs B % E A (13,689) (20,474)
Finance income, net P L ONEE S 10 28,036 28,400
Shareof results of associates =~ MfRBPEATRM 9 (19103 (1,799
Profit before income tax BRETSHI TR A 1,161,085 1,982,818
Income tax expenses e fiF 11 (199,631) (362,190)
Profit for the year FREN 961,454 1,620,628
Profit attributable to: fEMRRF
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEBA 958,692 1,614,805
Non-controlling interests FEfE 2,762 5,823
961,454 1,620,628
Earnings per share for profit FRARRRERFBEA 12
attributable to equity holders of JEIE R AR AT
the Company during the year
Basic R HK$1.63#L  HK$2.74 87T
Diluted i3 HK$1.63#L  HK$2.74 87T

FREIBOENM AL SELRAEMEREN

—#5 -

The notes on pages 92 to 180 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

an\ = 71\@”&]\#&%

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HZE2016F3 A1 HILFE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
_Fir_o_f[t_to_t Eh_e)_/??r ------ fﬁ N ;ﬁ %lj 961 ,454 1,620,628
Other comprehensive income: HEmzmmiA -
Items that will not be reclassified to HiE 1T os B2 EmnmEA
profit or loss
Remeasurements of employee EERBFETNEFTZ
benefit obligations 12,766 3,261
Items that may be reclassified to HiEnpte BRI R B iHE
profit or loss
Currency translation differences: PEH =5 :
— Group — KEH (141,711) (16,685)
— Associates — BN A (12,300) 1,312)
Revaluation of available-for-sale AP ESRHEENERBED
financial assets (3,977) (4,680)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREAMZEWA - FIFRTIE
_netoftex (145,222) (19,416)
Total comprehensive income for the year S AZ AW A 816,232 1,601,212
Attributable to: THIA T
— Equity holders of the Company — ARAERFEEA 814,594 1,595,454
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERRE R 1,638 5,758
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2 HE4AU A 816,232 1,601,212
The notes on pages 92 to 180 are an integral part of these 02 Z= 180 WM AL E LA P FIRED

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

e EERE

As at 31 March 2016
#2016 3 A31H

As at 31 March

®W3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B sE THT FH&T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB Mk i 16 603,878 618,012
Land use rights b fsE A 17 215,245 224,883
Investment properties wEYE 18 24,617 45,792
Interests in associates KBS N R 2 xS 19 154,531 245,934
Loan to an associate BRT K& QH 20 86,911 83,160
Derivative financial instrument PTEEBMTA 21 46,135 66,735
Available-for-sale financial assets ARPNESREE 22 8,767 8,820
Trading licence R R 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits and prepayment Heke RFENEKRIE 23 121,828 128,517
Deferred income tax assets BRIEFTS T EEE 30 36,770 28,025
1,299,762 1,450,958
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 24 6,344,728 7,394,696
Trade receivables 2 SRR 25 214,534 200,759
Deposits, prepayments and e BANERER 23
other receivables H b e ARIE 241,752 257,701
Derivative financial instrument PTESBMTA 21 9 5,234
Amount due from an associate FEU — KB & A FIARIE 19 56,374 30,076
Loan to an associate BRF KA QF 20 20,000 20,000
Income tax recoverable GIRLdEa ey 20,155 61,686
Cash and bank balances RE MIRTTHE#H 26 2,432,185 2,090,127
9,329,737 10,060,279
Total assets BmEE 10,629,499 11,511,237
EQUITY 2
Capital and reserves attributable FATESIIFEA
to the equity holders of B EF R ok iE
the Company
Share capital f& R 28(a) 58,710 58,910
Share premium RR1A (B 28(b) 2,494,040 2,522,983
Reserves G 29 5,798,137 5,630,461
Proposed dividends R BB 13 322,909 324,009
8,673,796 8,536,363
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M B 95,123 64,144
Total equity FETRARER 8,768,919 8,600,507

The notes on pages 92 to 180 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FREIOANME/UETHAMBRERL

—#5 -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
BAREAR

#2016 3 A31H

As at 31 March

®3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt aE THT FAT
LIABILITIES afR
Non-current liabilities EmBAG
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEEMARE 30 79,892 85,421
Employee benefit obligations EERAEMT 31 23,918 34,008
103,810 119,429
Current liabilities g A=K
Trade payables, other payables B S REMNIRTE - EfEN
and accruals IRIE & FEETFRIA 27 892,459 902,126
Amount due to an associate JEf — KBt & R RIARIR 19 2,235 1,674
Bank borrowings HRITER 32 400,000 1,470,633
Gold loans mREE 33 310,692 242,802
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT SR A E 151,384 174,066
1,756,770 2,791,301
Total liabilities mafs 1,860,580 2,910,730
Total equity and liabilities kB ERE 10,629,499 11,511,237

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the GABEHREIHES SR 201646 A23H
Board on 23 June 2016 and were signed by the Directors below — #L /WA H N EBREER -
on its behalf.

WONG Wai Sheung CHAN So Kuen
HEE FR%R18
Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 92 to 180 are an integral part of these S92 E180E MM AL EEA M BHRED
consolidated financial statements. —& 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

N /\ == \ /
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HZE2016F3 A1 HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AREES A ARG

Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity
BA  ROEE 1 Nt FERER  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET TET TET
(Note 29)
(F#5E29)
For the year ended HE2015F
31 March 2015 3A31ALEE
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 A1 H 58910 2,522,983 5,058,876 7,640,769 58,386 7,699,155
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year FRER - - 1,614,805 1,614,806 5,823 1,620,628
Other comprehensive Htt2EkA
income
Remeasurements of employee EE @FIETMEHTE
benefit obligations - - 3,261 3,261 - 3,261
Currency translation ERESE
differences - - (17,932) (17,932) (65) (17,997)
Revaluation of available- At ESREEN
for-sale financial assets BEZ - - (4,680) (4,680) - (4,680)
Total other comprehensive Efti2m@igA
oM S -, (1935n) (19351 65 (19416)
Total comprehensive 2EAKA
income - - 1,095,454 1,695,454 5,768 1,601,212
Transactions with owners EEBAZES
Dividends paid BERRE - - (699,860)  (699,860) - (699,860)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3 A31H 58910 2,522,983 5,954,470 8,536,363 64,144 8,600,507
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREHR
HEs0i0R 2R a1 DA

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FATIRBIFE AR
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
Capital premium Reserves  Subtotal interests equity

k% RHER 1 PEOFEEER  E2R8
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

TET TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT

(Note 29)
(M5£29)

For the year ended BE2016F

31 March 2016 SEHLEE
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 A1H 58,910 2,522,983 5,954,470 8,536,363 64,144 8,600,507
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year FRRF - - 958,692 958,692 2,762 961,454
Other comprehensive Htt2EkA

income
Remeasurements of employee EE @FIZETMEHTE

benefit obligations - - 12,766 12,766 - 12,766
Currency translation BHESE

differences - - (152,887)  (152,887) (1,124)  (154,011)
Revaluation of available- At ESREEN

for-sale financial assets EEZ - - (3,977) (3,977) = (3,977)
Total other comprehensive Hfi2E&EKA

income - - (144,098)  (144,098) (1,124)  (145,222)
Total comprehensive 2EHEKA

income - - 814,594 814,594 1,638 816,232
Transactions with owners BEBAZXS
Dividends paid BT S - - (648,018) (648,018) - (648,018)
Establishment of non-wholly A3 3E2 B KB A Al

owned subsidiaries (F35£38)

(Note 38) - - - - 29,341 29,341
Repurchase of shares BERH (FiE2s(c)

(Note 28(c) (2000  (28,943) - (29,143) - (29143
At 31 March 2016 201643 A31H 58,710 2,494,040 6,121,046 8,673,796 95,123 8,768,919

The notes on pages 92 to 180 are an integral part of these 92i18OEE’j|§ﬁ ANESEABHREN
consolidated financial statements. — =55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=DAN Az = %
%/T\ SR % /L B2
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HZE2016F3 A1 HILFE

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE TFHET T
Cash flows from operating activities &E/EE RS RE
Net cash generated from BEEE VRS FE
operations 34 2,257,712 885,958
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBREH (54,515) (276,906)
Overseas income taxes paid BRSNS (140,541) (184,887)
Net cash generated from EEEYEACHSFHE
operargactities 200265 424165
Cash flows from investing activites & /EFB 2B RE
Purchases of property, BEWE  BEMEE
plant and equipment 16 (104,312) (180,986)
Purchases of land use right BB e 17 (8,468) -
Subscription of convertible bond REE MR ES - (57,080)
Purchases of available- BEHEESREE
for-sale financial assets 22 (3,924) -
Decrease/(increase) in short- FIHIRBA = (@AM
term bank deposits, with IRITFEFOR L (Em)
maturities over 3 months 644,458 (556,586)
Loans granted to an associate m—REE QR BERER - (120,000)
Interest received =R RIRSN 56,381 25,496
Establishment of a non-wholly M —RIEZEW B A A
owned subsidiary 29,341 -
Acquisition of an associate I — KB A F) = (244,810)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - WER&E
property, plant and equipment FT{S 518 596 993
Net cash generated from/(used in) & EEFRS,(FFA) 2
investing activities HesFsw o 614,072 (1,182,978)
Cash flows from financing activites Bl EEB 2B ERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITE RS RE 754,496 2,323,437
Proceeds from gold loans =S BEMSHUR 1,731,662 869,030
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (1,825,748) (1,418,800)
Repayment of gold loans BEHESEE (1,637,406) (602,672)
Repurchase of ordinary shares RO EErin 28(c) (29,143) _
Interest on bank borrowings ROTEFEESEEFE
and gold loans (13,689) (20,474)
Dividends paid EfRRE (648,018) (699,860)
Net cash (used in)/generated from — BL&ES) (1), Fiig
financing activities JAReEs (1,667,846) - 450,661
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RekBeEFEYM
and cash equivalents #hn/Crd) g5 1,008,882 (258,147)
Cash and cash equivalents at R4A1EHZRER
1 April REEEY 1,375,079 1,646,475
Exchange differences M H ZRE (22,366) (13,249)
Cash and cash equivalents MR3A3THZEE K
at 31 March BeEEY 26 2,361,595 1,375,079

The notes on pages 92 to 180 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FRE1BOENM AL SEHREMIEHREDN

—#5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

92

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as a
company with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery products.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Board on 23 June
2016.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except that certain financial assets and financial
liabilities are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

—REH
ANERERBEB)BRAB(TARARDR
1996 F9OAHERRERBAREDR
AEAMKLABR AR - Hidfms
FaHbHE A Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda °

RRmMENBRR (G AEE]) X
ERNERBEACEHIKREENER
LR REME BAERERTE
ES

RABRDP1997 F5 A6 BB B
ERGPAARAR (BT D ER LM

BEARBAEN  HESEEPTBEREY
BB ]) 2% B KR20164F
6 H23HEESSHETIE -

REEE

RRAB 2 HEEMBRERIRIEFBUE
BEEAN(TEBYHREEDDER -
BRETEREERERAGBRANEER
FURRIN - 4R B IS SRR ILE 2 AN E )

mARBEEMBEREENER S 2B
BHRAFTEERETHREAHE R
BAREEEEEERAAKRESHBR
BRF {1 L 1 T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

EhELE Ed ks

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(@)

New amendments to existing standards that are
effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2015 and are relevant to the Group’s
operations:

Amendment to HKAS 19, “Employee benefits on
defined benefit plans”, this narrow scope amendment
applies to contributions from employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans. The amendment
distinguishes between contributions that are linked to
service only in the period in which they arise and those
linked to service in more than one period. The
amendment allows contributions that are linked to
service, and do not vary with the length of employee
service, to be deducted from the cost of benefits
earned in the period that the service is provided.
Contributions that are linked to service, and vary
according to the length of employee service, must be
spread over the service period using the same
attribution method that is applied to the benefits.

Annual improvements 2012, these amendments
include changes from the 2010-2012 cycle of the
annual improvements project that affect the below
standards:

(i) HKFRS 8, “Operating segments”, the standard
is amended to require disclosure of the
judgements made by management in
aggregating operating segments and a
reconciliation of segment assets to the entity’s
assets when segment assets are reported;

iy  HKAS 16, “Property, plant and equipment” and
HKAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’, both standards
are amended to clarify how the gross carrying
amount and the accumulated depreciation are
treated where an entity uses the revaluation
model; and

@iy HKAS 24, “Related party disclosures”, the
reporting entity is not required to disclose the
compensation paid by the management entity
(as a related party) to the management entity’s
employee or directors, but it is required to
disclose the amounts charged to the reporting
entity by the management entity for services
provided.

2 WREEmW

(@)

R2015F4 A1 HRBZ HBEE
NERERTEAEBEEERZ
FEIRAER BT A

FEGFERFE 195 (BATA) [B
BRA: REXusrE — EEMH
F o ERBEMETAEAR
mESHE =TT REBBNEIH
REER - REFTARD TERE
AR AR B O SR A e SRR 38 — B
R R AENHERONBER - %A
BRI ARFERGHEBAY TE IE
BRI RE M s

L/{EEZIEHE%%L\E‘HF%Eﬁi%afrlJﬁX$

R - B2 AR 4R B & R B IR
By ) 0 1 B B2 O H R - R AR
75 BT 7O i PR B4R 8 AR eV AR R 0

@EE/%%L/H%&D ©

012FFENE  ZFEFTAR
FE2010F B 2012 F B2 FEXR
EIEEMES  FETISEE
8l

() BEMBHREERNFESH [
BOE ] RERIEEER]
NERFEEEEERATE
B IBEFEL A H B AR

RBEDHEERIEL D
EEHEEEEENYEK

i) EBEFEEAF6HPX -

BE R | REBE e
4385 [ EE] mEL

BIEEIERT - ABBERERF
FSEHE A - & a0 1{r] i 18
IRmERENRAITE &

(i) BB EGFEBIE 245 [ B
FHE] REERDARE
ERERB(ERBAB ) ME
BEEBNEEREZESETINN
HH EEAREEEEEMR
FiT 1R 4 AR 745 1) S 25 2 BE U R
WS o

Annual Report 2016 £ $§ 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

2

94

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 REEEmW
(@ New amendments to existing standards that are @ F2015F4 81 BB ZTRER

effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2015 and are relevant to the Group’s
operations: (Continued)

Annual improvements 2013, the amendments include
changes from the 2011-2013 cycle of the annual
improvements project that affect the below standards:

(i) HKFRS 3, “Business combinations”, it clarifies
that HKFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting
for the formation of any joint arrangement under
HKFRS 11 in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement;

(i) HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”, it clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13, which
allows an entity to measure the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities
on a net basis, applies to all contracts (including
non-financial contracts) within the scope of
HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9; and

@iy  HKAS 40, “Investment property”, it clarifies the
interrelationship between HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 when classifying property as investment
property or owner-occupied property

The adoption of these amendments to standards did
not have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T

NERERL EAEERLERHE
AR BERZETAR : (&)

2013FEFEEhE  AEEBTAB
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(i)

FEMBREEFEINR X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B PR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Certain new standards and amendments to existing
standards relevant to the Group have been published
that are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2016 or later
periods, which the Group has not early adopted, are

/\‘/T\

(b)

as follows:

HKAS 1 Amendment
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendment

HKAS 27 Amendment
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Amendment

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendment

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements
Project 2014

Disclosure initiative "
Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and
amortisation )
Equity method in separate
financial statements
Financial instruments @
Investment Entities: Applying
the consolidation exception

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture @
Revenue from contracts
with customers @
Leases @
Annual improvements
2012-2014 cycle

M Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2016

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2018

® Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2019

@ To be announced by HKICPA

2 REEfLm
(b) EAEBEMER2016F48182

Bk T BIMMAR 2 ST FERA
ZE%EQEEZIK%MHF%Z%&ET“ A K&
MBEERZIERTEBEM - RS
B ARIZRERMZZER  ZFE
AR
BEGERNE 1R (BITX) BEE0
BEePERE6RR  TENEHEN
FEEENERR MESHEN
(BFTA) BE
BEGERE TR B BRES
(B35 EdEE Eayal
RABORREENER  SRIAY
BBGEREENFE0% . FRREKTE:

ERRBBEEAZ 2% ERAHHN
REEGHENFNSE  PIHNRED
CHEY)

BEMBREEAR 0% REBEAREY

BBeHENZ28% REMEZEN
(BEIR) BELES TEY
BEERMKRLERE 1Y  ERRPARMN
AR
BEMBRELNE 65 HEC
014 FEEHE 012FZ 20145
B FELED
o R2016F4 A1BR 2 BB FE
HIRA AR
@ R2018F 4 A1 B2 .2 FE
BRRE A AR
@ MR2019F 4 A1 H 2 BRI 2 FE
HARS Ak

@ FEBETERE M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

96

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation
and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

(a)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

WEEEmW)
(€ HEB(RAMEHINE62F)

BoSh 3 ERCA FEDI) (B 622
%) F0H 15 A BB ZHER
ARRELER Bl GAHE
BENETENN2IIREES
D -

FEEHBRAE

RAENEGEEMBHRREMEA IR
S BRERTX -l B HAEIN
WERROCRAMBZ2RFEERER -

3.1 RERE

REMBRREBEARRLEME
MEBARBZ3 A3 BIEZBKHR
%o

(a) MHELE
B 2 0 9 A L A
RO EB(BEEREE
#) EAEERTRTAL
HEBAGNTREH A
BN EBEHEEY
YEZEERE AAEE
THZEE- HEATEH
SHENEEAEEE AL
A NS B EEIEEL
% FRBUEE A A -

SEARAHENRS - &
RZXZHRBRF - GR
HAARKEHE KREBRE
BINTHRE - HBARME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

()

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

3 FEEMBRRER@

3.1 &akE (W)

(b)

(c)

EEZFHNESDONELR
HAEESEs
HEIFRRRERETMAEE
BREEFRZRH AR
ERRR S —BUREFIER
BEAZEMDEES AETT
2R X MERREZ
R EEEPTEENE AR
ZEEFEREEMRRBETD
ZEBENERLR [ IFE
RS ETHEMEEZR
BN s an iR o

BIMBHWE

B 8 X AR B AR A AN HIBR AR
Bk - B ARBEEH
RRAHRE U N U AR B

A% B AR R T R AR S HA (N BT
BARMAEENE
EBLVBHRENKERA
BERBEAEMBRE P
ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ?%“%WEMﬁ
BREE R EEHE
BREERER -
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

98

POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates
includes any goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced
but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of results of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Amounts
reported by associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an
associate are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified collectively as the
executive director and senior management who make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKS$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.

3 FEEMBRRER@

3.2

3.3

3.4

BE QT (W)
AEBRABENT 2Bz ETE
RHFES 2 B AN BB 5 ¥R
RFER - ME(EAFEAERIIR B FT
FEE QT2 #amRR - BRIFRR
HEACEBREELTRE TR
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

/\‘/T\

100

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘Other (losses)/gains, net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

3 FEEMBRRER@

3.4 SR (@)

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

EhELE Ed ks

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interests
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

3.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE®HBFHEm)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 3.5 Y¥X - WBERRE (&)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Construction in progress, mainly representing
buildings on which construction work has not been
completed, is stated at cost, which includes
development and construction expenditure, interest
and other direct costs incurred during the construction
period, less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until the construction and
installation is completed. On completion, the
construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment.

Leasehold land interests classified as finance lease
and other property, plant and equipment commence
amortisation/depreciation from the time when the
assets becomes available for their intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Leasehold land interests Remaining lease term of
classified as finance leases ~ 16-51 years
Buildings 2% or over the unexpired

lease period of leasehold land,

whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the unexpired lease

period, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 20%

computer equipment
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, (if
any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land on which various plants and buildings
are generally situated for a period from 19 to 54 years.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of the investment properties over
their estimated useful lives of 30 to 59 years. Where
the carrying amount of an investment property is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

104

3.7

3.8

3.9

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property. At the date of reclassification, its
cost and accumulated depreciation are transferred to
investment property and become its cost and
accumulated depreciation for accounting purposes.

Trading licence

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents a
membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

3 FEEMBRRER@

3.7

3.8

3.9

BEME@)

BEBRER 2 RAREBER DB R
BERIAASKE - %A B KARES
AR ER - heaEEREEH
FRERMAX - TAEMEE RRE

RAREL 2 MR ARS8
R -

WREMERAXEER - MEHD
BRME  BENERE - REHD

BER ERAERGTEEE
EWE  BELRE  WRBEE
BRI REAEZENE - %
TERYEAREREMKRE
WE - RIDBERREDE - REH
DEER  ERARRAITEE
BEREWE - WILRSFTRIEK
RERAERFHTE -

XHHR
VEFEAERFHRZIXZHE
(AEREE HHEE) LKA ER
RtREER(A)JIk -

FEMBEZRE
BAEREAERFHZ B EES
RED|A]ERARENETEEHE
B WEFETRERA - AE
%%Zﬁ?ﬁ#%i&ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%
BB E MR E R BE T BE [T
RERERAT - WEE < FREEE
BEAKE S S EEEER
BMEER BEZANESELE
@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ§W$EETE%F

EF&REE - AHRENS @ &
BT R&IEKF 2 PP #RR S

nEBRTELEM) TUANE - B
IEWEZ;‘F&&%?F(?L?@HQI\)%

BEA®RE AHEMRE A ELR
@Z—fﬁbc’



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Inventories
Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs. It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

3.11 Financial assets
3.11.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of the Group’s financial assets at
initial recognition.

@)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be recovered within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

106

POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
3.11.1 Classification (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘loans to an associate’, ‘trade and
other receivables’, ‘cash and bank balances’
and ‘amounts due from an associate’ in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

3.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

3.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘Other
(losses)/gains, net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for
sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as ‘Other (losses)/gains,
net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

3.12 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets

108

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.

As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.13 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities,
the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

110

POLICIES (Continued)
3.14 Derivative financial instruments which do

not qualify for hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated and
qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. Since the derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group do not qualify
for hedge accounting, changes in fair value of any
derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

3.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

3.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE®HBFHEm)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.18 Trade and other payables 3.18 EZ R HMEFIRIE

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

3.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.20 Borrowing costs

112

3.21

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as ‘finance
cost’ in consolidated income statement in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

(a)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates, only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognised.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
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(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

3.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 =
POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Employee benefits (Continued) 3.22

(d) Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations. All actuarial
gains and losses of defined benefit plans are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Past
service costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested.

3.23 Revenue and income recognition 3.23
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

(@) Sales of goods — wholesale
Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity has delivered products to the wholesaler
or licensee, retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor control over the goods sold,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been
delivered to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the wholesaler or licensee, and either the
wholesaler or licensee has accepted the
products in accordance with sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.23 Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

(9)

Sales of goods — retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card. It is
the Group’s policy to sell its jewellery products
to the end customers with a right of return within
one year at a certain discount on the original
selling price. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for such returns at the
time of sale.

Royalty and service income

Royalty and service income in respect of the use
of the Group’s trademarks and related services
are recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services are
recognised in the period the services are
provided.

Value-added tax refunds

Value-added tax refunds are recognised at their
fair values in the consolidated income statement
when there is reasonable assurance that the
refund will be received and all the relevant
conditions will be complied with.

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
3.24 Operating leases (as a lessee)

4

118

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease. When a component of the lease payment
which is not fixed but is based on future amount of a
factor, other than with the passage of time, such as
percentage of sales or concessionaire fees, the
amount is recognised as expenses as it arises.

3.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, credit risk, liquidity risk
and commodity price risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of the
Company.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland China, Macau, Canada, the United
States and Singapore. Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
use foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the group companies’ functional currency,
preliminary with respect to RMB.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2016, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax would
have been approximately HK$62,687,000 (2015:
HK$84,112,000) higher/lower respectively,
before taking into the potential hedging effect of
the foreign exchange derivative contracts.
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(a)
(ii)

(iii)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the
convertible bonds subscribed and loans to an
associate which were issued at fixed rates and
interest free respectively, and expose the
Company to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings at variable rate expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest-rate risk. The Group does not
enter into derivatives to address these risks.

At 31 March 2016, if interest rates on
borrowings had increased/decreased by 25
basis points with all other variables held
constant, the impact on post-tax profit for the
year would not be significant. Management
considers the cash flow interest-rate risk related
to borrowings to be insignificant also.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of loan to an
associate, amount due from an associate, trade
and other receivables, deposits and cash and
bank balances included in the consolidated
balance sheet and the principal amount of the
subscribed convertible bond represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 HBMEREERm)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MHEBEER (W)
(i) Credit risk (Continued) (iii) (SEEBE (&)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults in
the past. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables, if any, has been made.
The Group does not have a significant
concentration of credit risk. No single customer
accounted for more than 1% of the Group’s
total trade receivables during the year.

The deposits, other receivables, subscribed
convertible bond, amount due from an associate
and loan to an associate are from counterparties
with good credit history. There is no history of
defaults from these counterparties.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, substantially all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 26 are
held in major financial institutions located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these counterparties.

AE B AR EBRERRERAE
BERBRIFZEPUEER

AHEER BASEHE
P17 E ME ARG - N&E

EREERS 2 FTEE—
BRI A ERE30 HAUE
B3 MEEHEEZEERS
—RABE0 BZK - NEB B
%TEﬁ%%EﬁAﬁ1F

CcHBEBEBABRETES
ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ TEEES R
H b B U BR TR 2 1B 1 RS
BRERLEBEERERN &
ERE ERTAMkE 2 E
WERIB (WA ) 1EH B 4 #
B AEETEEREP S
ERRK - #iEE —RF(hHE
BAREEFTANE S EBREER
BRI 1% o

we HEMEKEE 2R
BABMEES  BER—R
BEARBRBENERT R
BERRNREEREER
HZHFH - HEFEHF B
EIWEABRFLER ©

SANFT FE 26 FTEFL - 722016
FN2015F3A31HZBK
HoRITHEBAMNRE B R
AR A R KA B AR
5 THEERAZSTSRK
BNEEEEER - ~5&E
EREUBUR @ﬂgﬁﬂﬁﬁ&
REER BB
= Hjiﬁ{ﬂﬂlit%fﬁ
BB B MEEREE -

Annual Report 2016 £ 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B PR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

/\‘/T\

4

122

(a)
(iv)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have
been for additions of and upgrades on property,
plant and equipment, payment on related debts
and payment for purchases and operating
expenses. The Group finances its working
capital requirements through a combination of
internal resources and bank borrowings, as
necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and bank
balances and has available funding through
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

4 HMERRETHEm@W)

(a)
(iv)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 HMEREEHE@E
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MHEBEER (W)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEEERE(IR)
Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash FIBE ST — RREEBEE 2R
outflows {HE

More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless  undiscounted
iyear than2years  than5years cash outflows
Bi-F BARE RERRS
—£R BORBE BYREE n B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TERT
As at 31 March 2016 2016538 31H

Trade payables and other ZHRMERER
payables EthERERE 834,955 - = 834,955
Amount due to an associate R -FE2NAGE 2,235 - - 2,235
Bank borrowings FTER 404,920 = = 404,920
Gold loans ELfEE 317,319 - - 317,319
1,559,429 - - 1,559,429

As at 31 March 2015 ®2015E3A31H

Trade payables and other EULERENS
payables AR 823,311 - - 823,311
Amount due to an associate EN—FBENFEE 1674 - - 1,674
Bank borrowings BITER 1,472,618 - - 1,472,618
Gold loans 2eEE 243,334 - - 243,334
2,540,987 - - 2540087
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

4

124

v)

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sale of gold
ornaments. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in the prices of gold
could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. The Group manages commodity
price risks mainly by hedging gold price fluctuations
through certain derivative financial instrument-
trading of gold contracts and gold loans contracts.
Should the gold price go up, the Group would
charge a loss representing the increase in gold price
compared to the contract price, and largely net
against the increase in turnover of gold products as
a result of gold price increase.

The gold contracts which settled on daily basis
and the difference between the contract price
and market price is immediately recognised in
the consolidated income statement. As at 31
March 2016, the notional value of the
outstanding contracts amounted to
HK$166,148,000 (2015: HK$159,432,000).

The gold loans (Note 33) are settled at maturity
which usually in 2 to 3 months from date of
inception and fair value change is immediately
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. As at 31 March 2016, the notional
value of outstanding gold loan contracts
amounted to HK$310,692,000 (2015:
HK$242,802,000).

At 31 March 2016, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, profit before
tax for the year ended 31 March 2016, due to
changes in fair values of gold contracts, would
have been approximately HK$8,307,000
(2015:HK$7,972,000) lower or higher
respectively.

At 31 March 2016, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, profit before
tax for the year ended 31 March 2016, due to
change in values of gold loans, would have been
approximately HK$15,534,000 (2015:
HK$12,140,000), lower or higher respectively.

4 MERRER @
(a) FAEEBRER ()

v)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits, amount due from an
associate and loan to an associate and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables,amount due to an associate and bank
borrowings approximate their fair values due to their
maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as gold loans) are based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.

The fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes are estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

4 HMERRETHEm@)

(b)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 MHERREREm

(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) ARBEMHE ()
The following table present the Group’s financial TREZ5AREER20164 3 A 31
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at HIZAABESENSHEENLE
31 March 2016. & o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 ek | =@ @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET
As at 31 March 2016 12016 E3 A31H
Assets BE
— Derivative financial instruments ~{TEeRTE
— OGS Share Option —-HBES R RE = = 9 9
— Convertible bond -k ES - 46,135 = 46,135
— Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 8,767 = = 8,767
Total assets BEE 8,767 46,135 9 54,911
Liabilties Ak
— Gold loans -E&fEE 310,692 - - 310,692
Total liabilties BaR 310,692 - - 310,692
The following table present the Group’s financial TREVREFNR2015%F3 A 31
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at BRARBEIENSHREELE
31 March 2015. & o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 2k | E=R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TET TET TET
As at 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31H
Assets BE
— Derivative financial instruments —HEERIA
— CGS Share Option -mEeRERE - - 5,234 5,234
— Convertible bond —[BRES - 66,735 - 66,735
— Avallable-for-sale financial assets - At ESREE 8,820 - - 8,820
Total assets BEE 8,820 66,735 5,234 80,789
Liabilties A
— Gold loans -EEREE 242,802 - - 242,802
Total liabilties BaR 242,802 - - 242,802
There were no transfer between levels 1,2 and 3 HZE2016F &2015%F3 A31 B 1k
during the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. FEA F—HF BEHEE=FR

Z A AT e 3 o
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio and the compliance of covenants of its
bank borrowings. The gearing ratio is calculated as
net (cash)/debt divided by total capital. Net (cash)/
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including bank
borrowings and gold loans)less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
(cash)/debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure
as at 31 March 2016:

4 HMERRETEm@)

(c)

BrEREE
AEBEEREANBRERREAS
B EEENRE N - W RREE

B - BEAF AR E R
s A R ARFF IR AR A B A IR DAL

AEBEEREARE  WHARKH
RIEMEBELRAE - BRFTNH
BEARE  AEEAHABINT
BCEREB S, ~ BITH ARG H A
RITER -

AEBETTABBEEEL R REBTH
RITEFRAEREER - BEE
ELERIVE(HRE) BERAE
AEtE - F(Re) BEHERUER
RE(BRRTERLFEZEE)R
R MRTHESRFERSL - #ERX
oA [#Es] (e BEERERM
R)IFECRE) MEETES -

RNEBN2016FE3HA31H 2 E R
ZRESITIAT -

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FH&T

Bank borrowings RITEXR 400,000 1,470,633
Gold loans BEREE 310,692 242,802
Less: Cash and bank balances B IRE RIRTTH R (2,432,185) (2,090,127)
Net cash FRE (1,721,493) (376,692)
Total equity MR 8,768,919 8,600,507
Total capital BE R 7,047,426 8,223,815
Gearing ratio BEEEILER N/A N/A

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of
its business in the long term.

AEBENRIEREFIBENEARE
o AREEEREBEREHRE
HISHS -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on

historical experience and other factors,

including

expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

(a)

(b)

Useful lives, residual values and
depreciation/amortisation charges of
property, plant and equipment, land use
rights and investment properties

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation/
amortisation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, land use rights and investment
properties with reference to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. Management will revise
the depreciation and amortisation charges where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and residual values
and therefore depreciation/amortisation expense in
future periods.

Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment and land use rights, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and (i) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a
result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

5 mMEws R AE @
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

5

130

(d)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland China are
recognised based on the undistributed profit of those
subsidiaries in Mainland China generated since 1
January 2008 which is expected to be distributed in
the foreseeable future. When the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities and taxation charges in the period
in which such estimate is changed.

5 mMEws R AE @
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Provision for long service payment

The Group’s provision for long service payment is
determined with reference to statutory requirements,
the employees’ remuneration, their year of services
and age profile, and demographic assumptions
including: pre-retirement termination, involuntary
termination, early retirement, normal retirement, death
and disability. The basis of estimation is reviewed on
an on-going basis and revised where appropriate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of provision for long service payments and as
a result affect the results and financial position of the
Group.

Estimated fair value of convertible bond

The fair values of convertible bond that are not traded
in an active market are determined by using valuation
techniques. The directors have used a Trinomial
Option Pricing Model to determine the fair values of
the convertible bond. Significant judgement on
parameters, such as dividend yield, effective interest
rate, volatility and risk-free rate, is required to be made
by the directors in applying the Trinomial Option
Pricing Model (Note 21). The fair value of convertible
bond subscribed for the year ended 31 March 2016
determined using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model
was approximately HK$46,135,000 (2015:
HK$66,735,000).

Purchase price allocation

Purchase prices related to acquisition of an associate
were allocated to the underlying assets and liabilities
of the investee based on their estimated fair value at
the time of acquisition. The determination of fair value
required directors to make assumptions, estimates
and judgements regarding future events. The
allocation process is inherently subjective and impacts
the amounts assigned to individually identifiable assets
and liabilities.

5 mMEws R AE @

(e)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”) have been
identified as the executive directors and senior management
collectively. The CODM review the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
operating segments are reported in accordance with the
internal reporting reviewed by the CODM.

CODM consider the business by nature of business
activities and assess the performance of the following
operating segments:

Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
i Retailing — Mainland China
ii.  Wholesaling — Hong Kong
iv.  Wholesaling — Mainland China
V. Licensing

CODM assess the performance of the operating segments
based on segment results. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses are not included in the
results for each operating segment that is reviewed by the
CODM. Other information provided to the CODM is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
associates, certain land and buildings, investment properties,
deferred income tax assets and corporate assets, all of which
are managed on a central basis.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination of
inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are carried out
at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from external parties,
assets and liabilities, reported to the CODM is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated income
statement and balance sheet.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEEE
Year ended 31 March 2016
BE016F3/3 ALFE
Retailing -

Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter- Reportable
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing elimination Total
2E-FE. - #&- #a- SR 2R
PR B TR Ei HER mREH Hi S

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T &R TR TR

Revenue KA
Sales to external customers HIEEHE 9,628,905 1,311,807 32,992 2,072,051 - - 13,045,755
Sales of scrap gold and platinum  $HEFS RS EH - - 457,654 - - - 457,654
9,628,905 1,311,807 490,646 2,072,051 - - 13,503,409

Inter-segment sales PEREE 240,243 8,208 2,085,531 274,428 - (2,608,440) -
Sales of merchandises HERR 9,869,148 1,320,045 2,576,177 2,346,479 - (2,608,440) 13,503,409
Royatty and service income RERBBEERA - - - - 511,177 - 511,177
Consultancy fee income EEBMA - - - - 16,716 - 16,716
Total &t 9,869,148 1,320,045 2,576,177 2,346,479 527,893 (2,608,440) 14,031,302
Results of reportable segments 7 238 # 642,129 79,516 86,567 195,070 207,797 - 1,301,079
A reconciliation of results of ERPFLEERFR

reportable segments to profit  HAJEENT :

for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments T2 S S & 1,301,079
Unallocated income RABMA 67,192
Unallocated expenses AAERR (156,119)
Operating profit EERH 1,212,152
Finance income FBRA 41,725
Finance costs B%ER (13,689)
Share of results of associates  JEASESE AT (79,103)
Profit before income tax BHBRART 1,161,085
Income tax expenses FERES (199,631)
Profit for the year ERiaT 961,454
Non-controling interests R ER (2,762)
Profit attributable to equity ~ FAFEBHEA

holders of the Company EigaH 958,692

Annual Report 2016 5 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEIEE @
Year ended 31 March 2016
BEN16F3ANALER
Retailing -
HongKong,  Retailing- Wholesaling- Inter-  Reportable
Macau and Mainland - Wholesaling - Mainland segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China Licensing elimination Total  Unallocated Total
2E-FR. o0 - i #a- R CES

RRES  mEAY FE TEAM  RMRE HE Al E31 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR FiEn TR TiET FEn

Depreciation of property, 1% * B Rikfa

plantand equipment & (59,524) (16,022) (4522) (11,721) (7,283) - (99,078) (28,464) (127,542)
Amortisation of land use T3 FiEE
rights - - - (44s5) (6,931) - (7,376) (326) (7,702)
Depreciation of investment &£ HE
properties - - - - - - - (744) (144)
Addtions of non-current  FEREEERE
assets 46,969 26,797 416 8,785 14,152 - 97,119 15,661 112,780
As at 31 March 2016
R2016F3A31H
Retailing -
Hong Kong,  Retailing- Wholesaling - Inter-  Reportable
Macau and Mainland - Wholesaling - Mainland segment  segments
overseas China  Hong Kong China Licensing  elimination Total  Unallocated Total
2E-FR. o8- i HE- g CES

RRES  mEAY B TEAM  RMRE HE  Abe E31 @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET TR FET TR T TR FET TR

Segment assets NieE 5,842,188 1,489,006 742,351 1,923,297 503,063  (1,611,496) 8,888,405 8,868,405
Interests inassociates  REEE AR 2R 154,531 154,531
Land and buildings T RET 282,957 282,957
Investment properties  REME 2,617 24,617
Deferred income tax assets{EL 1SR & & 36,770 36,770
Income tax recoverable A EFTER 20,155 20,155
Other unallocated assets  HftA DR AR 1,202,064 1,222,064
Total assets HEE 10,629,499
Sgmentlbiltes  HTAE (198364 (6873 (1584007  (286390) (293342 1611496 (807,480) (807,480)
Deferred income tax ELMEHERE

liabiliies (79,892 (79,892
Curentincome tax ~—~~ ENERFTSHIE(E

labilfies (151,384 (151,384
Bank borrowings ROER (400,000) (400,000)
Gold loans Bo1E (310692  (310692)
Other unallocated liabilties £tz AHEE & (111,132) (111,182
Total liabilities HafE (1,860,580)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEEE
Year ended 31 March 2015
HEZ015E3A31 BLLEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter- Reportable
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing glimination Total
TE-%5- TE- BE- #E- PE
AR5 kil b PEA, mEER PR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL AL AL THL TARL TAR ThT
Revenue KA
Sales to external customers HINRFHE 11,329,725 1,221,848 97,258 2,203,661 - - 14,852,492
Sales of scrap gold and platinum  $EEF S R3S BER - - 492,463 - - - 492,463
11,329,725 1,221,848 589,721 2,208,661 - - 15,344,955
Inter-segment sales PEREE 93,090 5,631 3,437,945 165,677 - (3,692,343 -
Sales of merchandises HEHEm 11,422,815 1,227 479 4,027,666 2,369,338 - (3,692,343 15,344,955
Royatty and service income mERREERA - - - - 545,660 - 545,660
Consultancy fee income BRBBA - - - - 32,093 - 32,093
Totd it 11422816 1221479 4007666 2339338 STIT3 (3692343 15922708
Results of reportable segments 7 2 A8 1,175,023 72,936 147,348 237,082 361,439 - 1,993,828
Areconliation of results of ERNPEERER
reportable segments to profit  AIEENT :
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments 7 2 284 193,828
Unallocated income % AEMA 60,030
Unallocated expenses OB (77,647)
Operating profit 2R 1,076,211
Finance income BIBMA 48,874
Finance costs Eﬂ%% B (20,474)
Share of results of associates (A YNGE (21,793)
Profit before income tax mmﬁmmﬂ 1982818
Income tax expenses FERER (362,190)
Profit for the year ERiH 1,620,628
Non-controling interests RS (5,829)
Profit attributable to equity ~ AXFREHEA
holders of the Company iUyt 1,614,805
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEIEE @
Year ended 31 March 2015
HE01553A31 ALLER
Retaiing -
Hong Kong, Retaiing - Wholesaling - Inter-~ Reportable
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China~ Hong Kong China Licensing glimination Totd  Unallocated Total
5% 2E- HE- i bk BE:
SRS PR, B REIRE mEER i A AR a5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn T TEn TEn TEn TEn Thr TEn T
Depreciation of property, #1% « B&ER
plantand equipment  REFE (65,631) (17,748) (7,864) (20,448) (10,009 - (121,700 (25,066) (146,766)
Amortisation of land use ~ + {8 iR
rights - - - (460) (8865 - (9.325) (336) (9,661)
Depreciation of investment X & 9 £ &
properties - - - - - - - (1,303 (1,309
Addtions of non-current  FEREEERE
assets 66,471 16,027 9,852 24,189 6,917 - 123,456 302,340 425,79
Asat 31 March 2015
12015537318
Retaling -
Hong Kong, Retaiing - Wholesaling - Inter-~ Reportable
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
0Verseas China~ Hong Kong China Licensing glimination Totd  Unallocated Total
2E-FE- 2E- ik ik GE: I BE:
RFRAEN PR, B REIR RS 4y A AOE &5t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEn T TEn TEn TEn TERL T TEn T
Segment assets PHEE 6,365,889 1,471,458 1,185,377 1,694,687 149217 (1595376) 9541312 9,541,312
Interests inassociates ~ WEEDA ZER 245,934 245,934
Land and buidings iﬁﬂ&%{ 270,944 270,944
Investment properties % 4%% 45,792 45,7192
Deferred income tax assets &R 1S A& 28,025 28,025
Income tax recoverable AT REIFA1EE 61,686 61,686
Other unallocated assets £ kAT EE 1317504 1317544
Total assets HEE 11,611,287
Segment liebilties k-1 215,260) (11859 (1,612,381 (281,314) (290,101) 1595376 (815,539) (815,539)
Deferedincometax ~~ ERAEHAE
liabities (85,421) (85,421)
Curentincometax ~ NEAFFSHAR
liabities (174,066) (174,066)
Bark borrowings BTG (1470633 (1,470,639
Gold loans ESfE (242,802) (242,802)
Other unallocated liabities £frx 5 F& & (122,269) (122,269)
Total liabilities AT (2,910,730)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 HEEFE (W)
The Group’s revenue are mainly derived from Hong Kong AREEBZIWATFEREEFTEZERL
customers, Mainland China visitors to Hong Kong and a8 );z,iFEJZEPIWiﬂg = N Iﬂqiﬂg
Macau and Mainland China customers. An analysis of the TEBE IR FEIT B E| S 2 ARE
Group’s revenue by location in which the transaction took EWADHAT

place is as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FET
Revenue WA
Hong Kong BB 8,218,304 9,513,081
Mainland China AR A 3,911,751 4,003,262
Macau and overseas SREY g aN 1,901,247 2,406,365
14,031,302 15,922,708
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than REEMEME D 2 ANEBIERBEE
deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale financial (TBIEELEREHREE  AJHHEESR
assets, derivative financial instrument, rental deposits and BE (TESMTE - - Beike LTEN
prepayment and loan to an associate) by location of assets BRIELERT KBS AR ST :
is as follows:
2016 2015
Macau Macau
Hong Mainland and Hong  Mainland and
Kong China overseas Total Kong China  overseas Total

F& DEAY RFIRES it A ER RFIREN st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$'000
TE#n FTERT TERT FERT TEr  TEx  TET  TER

Property, plant and WE - BEREE

equipment 371,080 214,168 18,630 603,878 369,417 222,088 26,507 618,012
Land use rights + it A - 215,245 - 215,245 - 224,883 - 224,883
Investment properties Txﬁ mE 16,835 7,782 - 24,617 37,309 8,483 - 45,792
Interests in associates REE AR 2z 154,531 - - 154531 245934 - - 245934
Trading licence RH5H R 1,080 - - 1,080 1,080 - - 1,080

543,526 437,195 18,630 999,351 653,740 455,454 26,507 1,135,701
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OTHER INCOME 7 HftkA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Value-added tax refund (Note i) EEF IR (MR 68,884 118,598
Government subsidies (Note ii) BT # Bh (&L 43,879 29,181
Rental income WA 6,850 10,883
Others Hib 19,680 15,724
139,293 174,386
Notes: BT
[0) This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland China; the 0] WAKREFBEARIEHEEZRR  BRRE
amount of refund is based on 13% of the cost of the imported HIRENERRA%H - R AEER
diamonds. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a member of the LEEAZSMRZKE  MEBANERLE

Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are imported

through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange.

(ii) This represents subsidies from a municipal government in Mainland (ii)

China.

OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging the following:

BOXGED  RAKEA RN

1k 2% AP B P 3 T IO 85 2 R B o

8 BEERH

B MINFRIA T ZIREINAT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Cost of sales HE KA
— Cost of inventories sold (Note) — BEEFENA () 10,554,456 11,887,329
— Cost of licensing business (Note) — MR EBHRA (FIEE) 222,735 203,841
10,777,191 12,091,170
Staff costs (including the directors’ BEIRA(BIEEEHE)
emoluments) 716,258 747,560
Operating lease KERE
— Minimum lease payments — RIEBEERNRK 647,484 587,003
— Contingent rents — g AMES 134,865 151,266
Commission expenses to credit Y ERFRRARIZAERAX
card companies 111,797 131,339
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREITE
plant and equipment 127,542 146,766
Depreciation of investment properties WEYENE 744 1,303
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR £ 7,702 9,661
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BENMEEZEIER
plant and equipment 994 755
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN 2 5,145 5,040

Note: Cost of inventories sold and cost of licensing business include staff

costs (including the directors’ emoluments) of HK$276,263,000

(2015: HK$269,776,000).
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e BRI

9 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

9 Hft(HiR) e BH

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FH&T
Net realised (losses)/gains on derivative T4 &gt T A v & #1R
financial instruments (BB), /W55 (6,716) 12,974
Fair value losses on derivative financial ~ $T4 4RI TE Y AR EEE
instruments (5,225) -
Fair value (losses)/gains on AMmRESRC ARE
convertible bond (E518) ke (20,600) 9,655
Net realised (losses)/gains on gold loans =& {EE 7 2 #15
(BB),/ W58 (3,577) 14,874
Net unrealised (losses)/gains on ESEEZRER
gold loans (E518),MWz=F8E (4,029) 8,687
Net realised losses on foreign exchange  SMNEEEIE 492 B 817
forward contracts B8 558 (12,650) -
Net exchange gains Rl et 2,126 9,222
Others HAh = (819)
(50,671) 54,593
10 FINANCE INCOME, NET 10 MBUA ' B#HE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FH&T
Finance income: LR ONE
— Bank interest income — RITFBHA 35,862 44,357
— Effective interest income on — BERTFTRBEQTZER
the loan to an associate FMBWA 3,751 2,953
— Interest income on the convertible — AR ESR 2 FEWA
bond 1,712 1,403
— Interest income on the loan to —BERTRKEE R ZFE
an associate e A 400 161
41,725 48,874
Finance costs: BATERK AN -
— Interest expenses on bank — RITERCFERE
borrowings (12,257) (18,820)
— Interest expenses on gold loans — BeEEZNEHAX (1,432) (1,654)
(13,689) (20,474)
Finance income, net MBKA B8 28,036 28,400
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

11 FrSIRMEAX

ERFEHRIIRBAFEE (AT ERR S
FIE T R 16.5% (20154F : 16.5%) 51 1%
B o BINEF 2 RIE T BEAF E
JERH R IR AEEESERRE R
REE -

operates.

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT

Current taxation: BVEATR 1A -
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEMNGEH 91,355 149,802
— Overseas taxation — BHNERIE 122,797 173,054
— (Oven/under-provision in prior years ~ — B FERE CGBE) /TR (247) 2,520
Deferred income tax (Note 30) IRIEFTIS R (FI3E30) (14,274) 36,814
199,631 362,190

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:

REBBREHRAG N 2 IR RERE
/%fﬂ"* u'l_ ZE%uFHH fﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ—l—

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ExT FHEIT
Profit before income tax br BT 1S 5 Al & 1,161,085 1,982,818
Add: Share of results of associates LR A RIES 79,103 21,793
1,240,188 2,004,611
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%  #ZF{ & 16.5% (20154 : 16.5%)
(2015: 16.5%) HE IR 204,631 330,761
Effect of different taxation rates in other EAfthaJAERFH B[R 2 &
jurisdictions (4,617) (7,668)
Income not subject to taxation AR Z WA (10,837) (16,426)
Expenses not deductible for taxation EOGIEE -
purposes 10,311 9,583
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAEFERECRE) /TR (247) 2,520
Unrecognised tax losses RERBIIBBE 7,514 12,297
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax & Fi LATF R HERFLIEET 18
losses 8) @1
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of = B (A b B A 7] & 7k i
those subsidiaries in Mainland China 2 TEE (7,116) 31,144
199,631 362,190
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e BRI

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BERET
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the FRREREFTIBREBEARANTEZIZAGA
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company FE G N £ B 71 958,692,000 7 7T, (2015
of HK$958,692,000 (2015: HK$1,614,805,000) and the % :1,614,805,000/8 7T ) &K F A E #EAT
weighted average number of 588,636,276 (2015: T m Ik 2 R 15 £1588,636,276 A%
589,107,850) ordinary shares in issue during the year. (20154 : 589,107,850 % ) 51 & -
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March AR FARATEDETEETESWERN
2016 and 2015 is the same as the basic earnings per share T A 22016 F M 20153 A
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares S1THIEFE 2 SREERFEGRER
outstanding during the years. AFER -
13 DIVIDENDS 13 KR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
2015/16 interim, paid, of HK$0.315 BT 2015/16 FE H B &
(2014/15 interim: HK$0.55) TR 0.31578 7T
per ordinary share (201415 FEHEARE. -
0.55787T) 185,569 324,009
2015/16 special dividend, paid, BF2015/16 FEZ 457 H 2
of HK$0.235 (2014/15 special: Nil) B E B 0.2358 T
per ordinary share (201415 FERRIKRE « ) 138,440 -
324,009 324,009
2015/16 final, proposed, of HK$0.34 ¥k 2015/16 5 [ R HAML B,
(2014/15 final: HK$0.55) TR L@ 0.348 7T
per ordinary share (Note) (201415 FERHARE -
0.55%87T) (P &E) 199,617 324,009
2015/16 special dividend, proposed, ¥R 2015/16 FEHFRIML B
of HK$0.21 (2014/15 special: Nil) BirE@R0.21 87T
per ordinary share (Note) (2014/15 FEHRIRL S « )
(FHE) 123,292 -
322,909 324,009

Note: At a meeting held on 23 June 2016, the directors recommended the

payment of a final dividend of HK$0.34 per ordinary share and a
special dividend of HK$0.21 per ordinary share, totalling HK$0.55.
Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company on 17 August 2016. These
proposed dividends are not reflected as dividends payable in these

financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2017.

BizE : 201666 A28 BRI G L EEEH
TR A R EA R B B AT @ A% 0.34 7 T MR RIl AR
BEREAER021EIT 50558 B
B EAFRRERARN2016F8A17H
BITZREBFRSHE - BWEREREL
BN EMBREPIERMSRE  HER
M AHZE2017F3 A31 BILFEZREEF
DL °
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14 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

142

14 BRHFBEFIBRE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FE&T
Net contributions to pension plans RéraBmExPNGRZ
charged to the consolidated income BRIREFTEIHFUEEE
statement 62,039 55,615

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated income statement:

BRI GEABRR ZIATIRR E

7
et -

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Cost of sales HEK A 22,989 19,770
Selling and distribution costs HERDIEER 36,029 33,149
Administrative expenses THEA 3,021 2,696
62,039 55,615

(i)

(i)

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
scheme for certain of its employees in Hong Kong,
under which the Group and its employee each
contributes 5% of the employee’s salaries. The
forfeited contributions made by the Group and the
related accrued interest are used to reduce the
Group’s future employer contribution. At 31 March
2016, there were no unutilised forfeited contributions
(2015: Nil).

For the Group’s employees in Hong Kong who do not
take part in the defined contribution scheme, the
Group contributes to an MPF Scheme, under which
the Group and its employee each makes monthly
contribution to the scheme at 5% of the qualifying
earnings of the employee, subject to a monthly limit of
HK$1,500 (2015: HK$1,500).

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contributes to retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China at a percentage of their salaries in
compliance with the requirements of the respective
municipal governments in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group in Mainland China.

(i)

(i)
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the

EFREREERARRIRER

(a) EFERTTHARMNE

FRRBRNARNRRES RITHRARZ

directors and chief executive of the Company during ez T -
the year were as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Fees ik 2,105 2,105
Salaries e 60,717 58,337
Expenses allowances in excess of FSOEAL B BRFE X
actual expense = -
Performance and discretionary BRFRIBBIBE R ZIEAT
bonuses 21,917 29,532
Contributions to pension plan RIREEHEIHR 416 310
Total director emoluments, payable  EREZSME RER
and expensed in the financial ISR R T SE 2 4258
statements 85,155 90,284
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

144

(a)

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (#)
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EFRITHERME (&)
emoluments (Continued)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a MEARRRA TS EN B A IR
person’s services as a director, whether of the ZEEREEAEMNZEIS -
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
The remuneration of each director is set out below: REZF 7MW T :
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #H#EFE2016FE3A31HILLEE
Performance Employer’s
and contribution to
discretionary a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and ESRTBAE BRERDE EEMEH
chief executive He e e BWCEL  WEAHEER MedE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FTET TERT FHET TET
WONG Wai Sheung (Note i) HER (F5D) 55 54,718 10,398 176 65,347
TSE Moon Chuen @z 55 1,330 1,920 57 3,362
WONG Hau Yeung In5 55 884 3,840 38 4,817
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BB 55 635 3,199 28 3,917
CHUNG Vai Ping BRIk 55 634 960 27 1,676
CHAN So Kuen (Note ii) eI R 34 2,276 1,600 90 4,000
WONG Ho Lung, Danny Bk 110 60 - = 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline BER 110 60 - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung R 110 60 - = 170
LI Hon Hung TE 110 60 = = 170
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander * HER* 300 - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen * Egme 300 - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin # KR 289 - - - 289
WONG Yu Pok, Marina * B 250 - - - 250
HUI King Weai * (Note ii e (METi) 153 - = = 153
FOK Kwong Man (Note i ERES(F i) 64 - - - 64
2,105 60,717 21,917 416 85,155

15 EERGEREEAREHIRER
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Certain of the comparative information of directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2015
previously disclosed in accordance with the
predecessor Companies Ordinance have been
restated in order to comply with the new scope and
requirement by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

For the year ended 31 March 2015

15 EERGEREEAREHIRER

(#&)

(a)

EERITHARMS (&)

SRIRIEAT S A RN E 2 H 2
2015 F3AGIAIEFEEEME
WA THRERKEEY) - LAES
BB R AER (Fe22%) 25ElE
REJ

BE2015F3A31HILFE

Performance Employer’s
and  contribution to
discretionary aretirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses  benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and ESRITBEH ERARE EEMAER
chief executive i He ¥ B2 RREEMER BleasE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TET TAT TAT TAT
WONG Wai Sheung (Note | EEF (M) 55 54,485 13,876 159 68,575
TSE Moon Chuen ks 55 1,328 4,270 55 5,708
WONG Hau Yeung Rl 55 880 5,123 37 6,095
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy Bk 55 631 4,270 26 4,982
CHUNG Vai Ping ERK 55 631 1,281 26 1,993
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BhE 100 202 712 7 1,021
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER 110 60 - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung AR 110 60 - - 170
LI Hon Hung ZEE 110 60 - - 170
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander * HERY 300 - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen * ol 300 - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin * BXR 250 - - - 250
WONG Yu Pok, Marina * FpE 250 - - - 250
FOK Kwong Man * EEX 300 - - - 300
2,106 58,337 29,532 310 90,284
#: Independent non-executive directors i B IEHITES
Notes B 5E

0] Mr. WONG Wai Sheung is also the chief executive of the
Company.

(i) Dr. CHAN So Kuen and Mr. HUI King Wai were appointed as
an executive director and an independent non-executive

director, respectively on 21 August 2015.

(iii) Mr. FOK Kwong Man passed away on 18 June 2015.

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of
the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

0] HEFBRENARARZITHEEH -

(i) PREBE L RAFEBEEN 201558
R21 BDRIERERITEST B
HEHITEE -

(iii ERENXRAEN2015F6 A 18 HEH -

HE2016 FE 201543 A31H Ik
FE - WESEREMWS -
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 E=E
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (#)
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b)

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2016
in respect of their services as directors of the
Company (2015: same).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits (c)
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31 March
2016 (2015: same).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for (d)
making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties for
making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2015: same).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (e)

dealings in favour of directors, controlled

bodies corporate by and connected entities

with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements

were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,

a controlled body corporate or a connected entity of

such directors at any time during the year (2015:

same).

() Directors’ material interests in transactions, )

arrangements or contracts

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes

to these financial statements, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation

to the Group’s business to which the Company was a

party and in which a director of the Company has a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year

ended 31 March 2016 (2015: same).

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B ) HRA T
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15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Five highest paid individuals

Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2015: four)
of them are directors of the Company and the details
of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding
paragraph. The emoluments of the remaining one
highest paid individual who was also a senior

EEREREERARRIIRES

(#8)

(9 hEEEFMAL
hEEmHFMALEFR 23
(2015%F : MA) RARAIES -
BEZHEFBON LEEE - &
220154 3A31THIEFE  E&

ZEReFWMXRARASRERE

management for the year ended 31 March 2015 are BALZBM&T :
as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Salaries, allowances and benefit-in-  #& « 2B R E YT
kinds - 3,361
Performance and discretionary RRIBBIBE R ZIEA
bonuses - 2,135
Contributions to pension plan R EF B = 139
- 5,635
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZMENF 48R :
2016 2015
HK$5,500,001-HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 /& 7T £ 6,000,000 7 7T - 1
- 1
Senior management’s emoluments (h SREEARHE
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZEMENTF T 5487 -
2016 2015
HK$500,001-HK$1,000,000 500,001 7L & 1,000,000 %8 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T 2 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 72 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T Z 3,000,000 4 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £ 4,000,000 47T - 1
HK$5,500,001-HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 % 7T £ 6,000,000 7 7T = 1
4 4

Senior management represents senior management
staff who are non-directors.

BREREEERFEF I ARERE
AB e
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 1% - BER R

Furniture and
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold computer Plant and Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles  in progress Total
#E #&H RER BRER
THEREF nERE a2 e RE ERIE #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL T TAL TAL T
At 1 April 2014 R2014%4A 1A
Cost R 365,418 377,789 140415 41,270 20,900 4,035 986,827
Accumulated depreciation 258 (47,398) (237,245) (89,270) (32,039) (14,554) - (420,506)
Net book value REF#E 318,020 140,544 51,145 9,231 6,346 41,085 566,321
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE201553831A
l:3:4
Opening net book value ENRESE 318,020 140,544 51,145 9,231 6,346 41,035 566,321
Exchange differences EREE (332) (331) (69) (13) Ul (152) (904)
Additions NE 56,575 99,886 21,541 15,494 3,930 2817 200,243
Transfer from investment properties ~ BRANEER
(Note 18) (FzE18) 866 - - - - - 866
Disposals ik - (697) (1,036) (15) - - (1,748)
Reclassffication EXibE] 43,700 - - - - (43,700) -
Depreciation charge REIH (11,050) (93,753) (30,674) (7,455) (3,834) - (146,766)
Closing net book value FREEFE 407,779 145,649 40,907 17,242 6,435 - 618,012
At 31 March 2015 R201553A31H
Cost KR 466,511 448229 156,924 55,969 23,793 - 1151426
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (68,732) (302,580) (116,017) (38,727) (17,358) - (533,414)
Net book value REEE 407,779 145,649 40,907 17,242 6,435 - 618,012
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE201653A31A
LLEE
Opening net book value FNEEEE 407,779 145,649 40,907 17,242 6,435 - 618,012
Exchange differences ERER (6,728) (1,509) (316) (647) (152) - (9,352)
Addttions RE 1,158 64,559 31,553 5,436 1,606 - 104,312
Transfer from investment properties B AW % EE
(Note 18) (Ftsx18) 20,038 - - - - - 20,038
Disposals hE - (163) (1,193) (234) - - (1,590)
Depreciation charge HEIH (11,406) (84,086) (22,615) (5,901) (3,534) - (127,542)
Closing net book value EREAFE 410,841 124,450 48,336 15,896 4,355 - 603,878
At 31 March 2016 R201653A31H
Cost KA 479,914 474,820 178,959 55,972 24,689 - 1,214,354
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (69,073) (350,370) (130,623) (40,076) (20,334) - (610,476)
Net book value REFE 410,841 124,450 48,336 15,896 4,355 - 603,878
148 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (B2 ) BR AT
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17 LAND USE RIGHTS 17 TihER#E
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Year ended 31 March HESASIALFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 224,883 182,576
Addition INE 8,468 52,622
Amortisation charge e A (7,702) (9,661)
Exchange differences MEH =5 (10,404) (654)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 215,245 224,883
At 31 March MR3A31H
Cost AR 248,925 252,289
Accumulated amortisation R (33,680) (27,406)
215,245 224,883
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 JAEMR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
At 1 April n4A81H 45,792 45,926
Addition NE - 2,060
Transfer to property, plant and EEEME  BEK
equipment (Note 16) FAE (M5 16) (20,038) (866)
Depreciation E (744) (1,303)
Exchange difference [E =58 (393) (25)
At 31 March M3H31H 24,617 45,792
At 31 March MKR3HA31H
Cost D@ 29,189 52,542
Accumulated depreciation 2EtinE (4,572) (6,750)
24,617 45,792
At valuation (Note) 1B () 87,119 160,943
Note: The valuation of the investment properties in respective years were Mzt : RFEEREMEZHEIATAIIB LG

determined by independent valuers as listed below at open market

value:

2012: Asset Appraisal Limited
2013: Roma Appraisals Limited

2014, 2015 and 2016: BMI Appraisals Limited

EEMRART{EETE :

20124 : FHEAENEBRARAR
2013%F : BEBRBFEBRAF
2014 % ~ 20156 2 2016 4F :

R FB T AR A A
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 BEMEGE)
Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- TR IR N Bl B8 2 45 & FH & i 7 2R 2R UER
cancellable operating leases are as follows: ZEERSBTENT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FH&T
Not later than one year —FNRN 3,433 5,923
Later than one year and not later than —FRETHBBERF
five years 3,444 2,386
6,877 8,309
19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REELFZER
Group
xERE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Share of net assets, as at 1 April EIEEEFE - N4A1H 245,934 7,046
Acquisition (Note i) W (P aED - 244,810
Subscription of CGS Share Option R B R ARRE (P EEi)

(Note ii) = (5,234)
Effect of shareholder’s loan (Note 20) REREF 2 & (MiFE20) - 19,793
Share of results of associates for the year & A E(HE: 2 N B 345 (79,103) (21,793)
Share of reserve movement of FAREBEARIFEEES

associates for the year (12,300) 1,312
Share of net assets, as at 31 March JEIEEEFE M3A31H 154,531 245,934
Amount due from an associate (Note iii) U — KB & 1 7] 8= 18 (FFEiii) 56,374 30,076
Amount due to an associate (Note iii) FE —ZR B A T BRIE (B =Eii) (2,235) (1,674)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March

19 REE

LFZHER (|

REFEBEATIR2016E3 A31 B2 5

2016 are as follows: BT
Particulars of
Place of issued share % of attributable interests
Name incorporation capital held indirectly Principal activities
28 A A7 A 3L 3th B BRITEFXHE HNESFTRGEZESL IEZEXH
2016 2015
Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 50%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited BE 6,120,000/ 7T wholesale of diamond
NEEABRAR products
BOEmELE R HE
China Gold Silver Group  The British US$3,334 50% 50%  Retailing and franchising
Company Limited Virgin Islands 3,334 % 7T operations of gold and
("CGS") ("BVI") jewellery products in
HEeHREEARAR EBERRHS Hong Kong, Macau
(THESR]) and Mainland China
EEE  BFIRA
REREES R
KERMEMRZ
TEREITEEER
Notes: BT

On 6 June 2014, the Company purchased a 50% shareholding in
CGS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Limited (“HKRH”) which is engaged in the retailing and franchising
operations of gold and jewellery products in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China under the brand name “3D-GOLD?”, at a consideration
of approximately HK$245 million (the “Acquisition”).

The Group accounts for its holding of CGS as investment in an
associated company using equity accounting method.

R2014F6 A6H  ARFABAFEER 2
50% % & - X B 49 A 245,000,000 7 7t ([ 4
Bl - PESRABBERIERARR A
([BBERERD 22EWHBAR - EEMU
[©EE | REESRE  RFIRTFEKRERS
HORUEEMER I TERSFTEEER -

AEBBNRPESRZFRER—KBER
BRE - DAMEEEROANE ©
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

)

Prior to the Acquisition, CGS issued to a third party a convertible
bond in the principal amount of US$5 million (equivalent to HK$39
million) (“the MGIL CGS CB”). If the MGIL CGS CB is exercised by its
holder, the Company’s equity interest in CGS will be diluted.

In order to maintain at least 50% ownership of CGS, the Company
subscribed for a CGS Share Option (“CGS Share Option”) for US$1.
The exercise price of the CGS Share Option is US$5 million at a rate
of US$24,390 per CGS conversion share.

The exercise period is from the date of issue to 3 months after (i) 15
January 2018 or (i) the date as extended once by one year by mutual
agreement.

As the CGS Share Option is negotiated as part of the Acquisition, the
fair value of the CGS Share Option at its date of subscription is
deducted from the initial investment consideration for the Acquisition
at date of completion of the Acquisition.

The CGS Share Option was initially recognised at HK$5,234,000 and
was assessed by an independent valuer using the Trinomial Option
Pricing Model at the date of completion of the Acquisition. The CGS
Share Option was subsequent revalued to HK$9,000 (Note 21) and
the fair value loss of HK$5,225,000 (2015: Nil) was included under
“Other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

No revaluation was performed for the year ended 31 March 2015 as
the directors consider any change from the date of completion of
Acquisition to the year ended 31 March 2015 was not material.

Amount due from an associate of HK$56,374,000 (2015:

HK$30,076,000) represents trade receivables due from the company.

Amount due from/(to) associates are denominated in HK$ and are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

19 MBREATZHED (W)

BcE

(i

(i)

(iv)

(&)

WEER  FESRA—F=ZHETHAER
B & % A % %8 A5,000,000% 7T (H & »
39,000,000 7T) ([MGIL# B4 8 ] #2 (&
%) e EMCILHF B ET R EFERF A
TE - AREIRFE SR RIERS THE -

ARERPESESZD50%EEE  AA
LM%mﬁ%ﬂﬁqﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂx%wﬂlﬁ
IERE]D - -PRESRBREZTEES
5,000,000 7T * thE BT R+ B RIBK
f% 15 24,390 E 7T °

TEH AR EITRE () 20184 1 A 15 B 8 (i)
KEEREBF-—AMERZBE=EA -

A B S RIE AR T E RIS — &
A TESRBEERRBBERZAAED
R IEE BB SR E B -

R B 5 8RB AR A 9 2542 5,234,000 & ST IERR
WH M AEFIETT A B L EEMER=
BT EERTE - PESRERER
%EHEEZE,0008 T (HsE21) - ARE

{E/E518 5,225,000/ 7T (2016 F « &) REE
201693 A31 B I FEMRE W R ATE
fib (B518), Wz - JF 5 -

MERNEE2015F3A3IHILFE#EITE
B RAAESRAEBTREWESHEEARE
HZE2015F 3 A31 AL FE HIBREME
WAEK

B — KBt & X 8] 56,374,000 7T (2015 4F -
30,076,000t ) 2 BRIBAE 5 FEMERIE -

FEY (FEAF) — KRB & AR EE A M%Eﬁ
B JER - R REREK

‘,ﬂﬂﬂ}

N5 B R B 2 R B R 2016 FF 20154 3 A
31 B EAMEKREAEIE -
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Loan to an associate included under non-current assets:

In connection with the Acquisition, both of the Company
and HKRH agreed each to provide funding of
HK$100,000,000 to CGS by way of shareholder loan for
general working capital and business expansion purpose.

The shareholder loan is unsecured, interest-free and not to
be repaid within one year after the end of the reporting
period.

The difference between the nominal value of the loan and its
fair value of HK$80,207,000 at the time of the acquisition
amounting to HK$19,793,000 is regarded as part of the
cost of the investment in CGS (Note 19).

Loan to an associate included under current assets:

On 4 May 2015, the Group and HKRH agreed each to
provide a short term shareholder loan of HK$20,000,000 to
CGS. The short term shareholder loan is interest bearing at
2% per annum and repayable on 4 May 2016. The short
term shareholder loan was rolled-over for one year
subsequent to the balance sheet date.

20 LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE 20

HEF—EHBLT
ERT—FKBERRFAAFERDEE :

PERKEER  ARERBEEIRE

BHREEB—ERRER  MPEE
$RIZH£100,000,0008TTE S - tEA—HK

LEETREBER -

BREFRERR 28 BHARR
=Rk Bﬁ?é:—iﬁﬂf%f‘% °

B3z EEEH Q7 {E 80,207,000 T
Z7Z%819,793,000/8 TR AT B £ R
WERAZ—E85 (BFE19) »

ERTF—FREERB T ARHEE
N2015F5 48 KREEBREBER

ERSEARERTPEHSBRRER %
20,000,000 78 JT Y 5B HARR SR B 7k - %2 Hf

BRE XL 2% 2 FF X B TR
2016 F5 A4HEIHER - REIRRE

REREERBERAEFER—F -
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21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21 STE&mTAH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current portion ERBE S
Convertible bond (Note i) AR ES (EED 46,135 66,735
Current portion mEES
CGS Share Option (Note 19(ii)) FP B < B AR AR (B 5T 19(i) 9 5,234
46,144 71,969
Notes: bz
[0) On 6 June 2014, the Company subscribed a convertible bond of [0) MR2014F6A6H  ARBIREEBERIE

154

HKRH of HK$57,080,000 with 3% interest rate per annum and 5
years of maturity from the date of issuance. The conversion period
commences on the 2nd anniversary of the issue date and expiries on
the date which is three days before its maturity.

The convertible bond comprises a loan receivable component and
option component which together have been designated as derivative
financial instrument by the Company. The convertible bond was
initially recognised at HK$57,080,000 and subsequently revalued to
HK$46,135,000 at year end (2015: HK$66,735,000).

P& AT #2 A% 15 % 57,080,000 7T + G FI%= 3% -
HREITAER S ENEH - RN BT
BEEMEFHEEZIHBEMIRER

ARREFBEEKERRERE  AEAQ
RIETATESR T A - Al RKRESFIK
57,080,000/ THEITHIHHER - EBERFR
&4 446,135,000 7T (20154 : 66,735,000
BT °

As at As at

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

®20165E3A31A K 201563 A31H

Share price of HKRH BEBERERIRMER HK$0.114 # T HK$0.196 /87T
Exercise price 1IEE HK$0.18 #& T HK$0.18 7 7T
Dividend yield RESSAIE - -
Effective interest rate i 19.22% 20.66%
Volatility R 40.32% 48.52%
Risk free rate 4 [ i R 0.90% 0.97%

The fair value loss of HK$20,600,000 (2015: fair value gain of
HK$9,655,000) was included under “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2016.

A # {E B8 20,600,000 7T (20154 © A A
B4 % 9,655,000 # 7T ) 7t AELZE 2016 3 A
BLEFEZHRAEBEREZIHM(S
18),/ W - FE] -
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22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22 TmI{#tHHESRMEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FH&T
At 1 April "m4A18 8,820 13,500
Additions NG 3,924 -
Net loss transfer to equity (Note 29) WS 2 R (5 29) (3,977) (4,680)
At 31 March ®W3A31H 8,767 8,820
Available-for-sale financial assets represent common shares At ECREERE —XRNB XM ET
issued by a company listed on the Stock Exchange. The ZRARBTzERR - AIHHESRE
available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in HK$. EWNETFE RBREEEIR &S
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date EFERBRADEATHRILESRMEE L
is the fair value of the securities classified as available-for- BHERAEE -
sale financial assets.
23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 & AAREREMEREREER
RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FET
Non-current JEENHA
Rental deposits Heke 119,004 128,517
Prepayment JEFERIA 2,824 -
121,828 128,517
Current BN EH
Rental deposits Hekse 49,496 45,300
Value-added tax recoverable ] Y [B] 385§ 108,162 106,362
Prepayments TETERIE 32,870 37,961
Interest receivables FRUSFI B, 1,457 20,264
Other receivables H eI AR TR 21,534 22,589
Other deposits Hipit & 28,233 25,225
241,752 257,701
363,580 386,218
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 #He FAFERRAEMERKERIR
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (#)
The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and e  FBENEBELREMERERZER
other receivables approximate their fair values and are BEAAABEES WA THNEER
denominated in the following currencies: BEf7 :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHEIT
HK$ BT 164,098 189,279
RMB AR 147,493 148,143
MOP RPITT 47,675 45,840
Other currencies Hith gt 4,314 2,956
363,580 386,218
The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has ReRHEMEWREBECEEEEEB
been assessed by reference to historical information about 2EFBEF AR LR BEERSE
the counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties TEE - BREHFHFBATEBERED
have not defaulted in the past. At 31 March 2016, no 8 - R2016F 3 A31H  WE LS RE
deposits and other receivables were considered impaired o EWERTBWAR BERE(20154F « &) ©
(2015: Nil).
INVENTORIES 24 ER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Finished goods BIRK & 6,269,269 7,276,696
Raw materials FER#E 75,459 118,000
6,344,728 7,394,696
At 31 March 2016, inventories carried at net realisable value M2016E3 A31 H @ 0] &I F(EY|EE

amounted to approximately HK$44,621,000 (2015:
HK$253,377,000).

2 178 %4 544,621,000 7T (2015 4F -
253,377,000 7T) ©
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales
through department stores and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from O to
90 days.

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

25

R 7 ERR
AEERTERFHEIZRRERADH
ERERRHEE BERSRHMHER
AREEFPHEZEER RN F0E
90H -

B HRYSRIBZ BRERINT

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TAT
0-30 days 0%30H 148,719 145,674
31-60 days 31£60H 52,730 49,004
61-90 days 61%290H 12,121 2,163
91-120 days 912 120H 36 1,038
Over 120 days 38 120 H 928 2,885
214,534 200,759

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their A BEHE

fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

it IR

%ﬁH&EEIEZEEE1 HEER

AEHE TT%FEHKEEIEZHEETEMTWE

denominated in the following currencies: W5 B

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT THETT
HK$ BT 15,242 24,750
RVB AR 193,259 161,040
MOP RPITT 5,314 12,912
Other currencies Hip g 719 2,057
214,534 200,759

The credit quality of trade receivables has been assessed B EWEBEEEEE NERLENHTF

by reference to historical default rate of the counterparty.
The existing counterparties have not defaulted in the past.

As at 31 March 2016, trade receivables of HK$964,000
(2015: HK$3,918,000) were past due but not considered
impaired all of which were aged over 90 days.

FiBEmAR L RETM REHFS
I AR G0 8R o

HE2016F3A318 IF ' BREHE B0
H & & 5 FE Uk Bk 75 964,000 7% 7T (2015
£ : 3,918,000/ 7T ) 4 B 18 HA {8 I 4%
RERE -
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26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 26 BERMBITHER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
Short-term bank deposits 52 EAERITIF X 186,905 141,945
Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFHERS 2,174,690 1,233,134
Cash and cash equivalents WERIREEEY 2,361,595 1,375,079
Short-term bank deposits, with FIEAE BB =E A/
maturities over 3 months WHIRTTIF 70,590 715,048
Total cash and bank balances IS RIRIT4E% a5 2,432,185 2,090,127
Weighted average effective interest rate 1 159 & B F| & 3.18% 4.10%
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TR
Denominated in: FEER
HKS$ BT 1,091,911 404,622
RMB ARE 1,168,069 1,578,961
MOP RFITT 69,779 40,160
US$ ETT 81,479 58,454
Other currencies Hih s 20,947 7,930
2,432,185 2,090,127
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITR LR EFHBEITEEF MR B
bank deposit rates. Short-term bank deposits are with initial FE - BERITEZ UL AHLN =1/
terms of less than three months and earn interest at the B W& A THFEAFRERF & -
respective time deposits rates. The conversion of the RMB UARBIE & LB AINEAS R
denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject to B BT 2B 2 SME S H 4R Bl KOE IR TR
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control R o

promulgated by the PRC government.
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27 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLESAND 27 ¥ B REMIEE - EMEMEER

ACCRUALS [ g ]
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT
Trade payables Z S EMNKRIE 246,076 217,909
Deposits from customers and licensees KEEFMEFHFR 2] & 297,397 333,236
Salaries and welfare payables ENHe REN 154,873 181,537
Other payables H b ERIA 142,359 104,720
Accrued expenses B & A 51,754 64,724
892,459 902,126
The ageing of trade payables is as follows: B O REMNRB R ¢
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHIT
0-30 days 02 30H 150,510 171,675
31-60 days 312 60H 81,445 41,532
61-90 days 61290 H 9,512 3,395
91-120 days 912120 H 4,583 1,285
Over 120 days A 120 H 26 22
246,076 217,909
The carrying amounts of trade payables and other payables 2B 5 ETERIR &,ﬁ\{m FETBRIB Z BEHE
approximate their fair values. HEAABERBS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, other
payables and accruals are denominated in the following

AEEESREMNEE  HMEMKREAR
FEATRIBZ BREE A NI G 8 R EAL

currencies:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TF#xT FHET
HK$ BT 338,477 333,606
RMB AR 442,575 421,788
Uss$ eV 73,386 100,878
MOP SBPIIT 35,235 43,307
Other currencies Hiup g 2,786 2,547
892,459 902,126
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 28 BERBERNAE
(a) Share capital (a) B&&E
2016 2015
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$’000
BRi&E FTERT RinE B TET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares BREEIATZ
of HK$0.1 each LB 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRER
Ordinary shares of BREEIATLLZ
HK$0.1 each T 3E A 587,107,850 58,710 589,107,850 58,910
(b) Share premium (b) BfnRE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
At 31 March MR3A31H 2,494,040 2,522,983
(c) A summary of movements in the Company’s (c) FLAFERTTERE -KRiZEE
issued share capital, share premium and REFELONRGBZEBHIEHES
capital redemption reserve is as follows: BWTF
Number of Capital
shares in Share Share redemption
issue capital premium reserve
B8T ;-2 S
B8 H B#F B iniRE R O] & i

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TABTT TAT TAT

As at 1 April 2014 R2014F4 A1 H 589,107,850 58,910 2,522,983 -
At 31 March 2015 720153 A31H

and 1 April 2015 K2015%F4A1H 589,107,850 58,910 2,522,983 -
Repurchases of FEEIAR ) (M 5E)

shares (Note) (2,000,000) (200) (28,943) 200
At 31 March 2016 2016 F3 A31H 587,107,850 58,710 2,494,040 200
Note: Bt
The Company purchased 2,000,000 of its shares on Stock Exchange 782 &) B PA HsE 22 BT % 81 2,000,000 A% A8 22
at a total consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares f&1n - R E /29,143,000 7T - FIBE 5%
were cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company was B2 RHOBFHERAAREBITRAE K%
reduced by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The Sl 2 EEER - SR TN 2 REER
premium paid on repurchase was charged against the share premium ARRR 2D EERE o BARNE FEHERHD
of the Company. An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the HEZZECHREEMEREERER
shares cancelled was transferred from retained earnings to the capital -

redemption reserve.
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29 RESERVES 29 f#fm
Available-
for-sale
Capital financial
Capital  redemption assets  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings Total
A{HEHE
BEXEBR  opsE
BARRE B #E  EifE ETRE  REEN B

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKE'000 HKE'000  HKS'000
TEr TEr TEr  TAr FTEr  TAT  TExn

(Note i) (Note 28(c)) (Note i)
(zEi) (FiEE28(c)) (HtzE#)
Representing: B
Reserves B 135,713 - 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,321,490 4,683,025
Proposed dividend RS - - - - - 375851 375,851
At 31 March 2014 R2014463A31H 135,713 - 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,697,341 5,068,876
For the year ended HE2015%
31 March 2015 SRAELEE
At 1 April 2014 R201454 /18 135,713 - 5,400 127,802 92,620 4,697,341 5,058,876
Comprehensive 2ERA
income
Profit attributable to ARAERFBEA
equity holders of the (SR A
Company - - - - - 1614805 1,614,805
Other comprehensive ~ EftIZEUA
income
Currency translation ERER
differences - - - (17,932) - - (17,932)
Remeasurements of EERFEEL
employee benefit E#fiitE
obligations (Note 31(@) ~ (M=E31(d) - - - - - 3,261 3,261
Revaluation of available- ~ AIftHESRAE
for-sale financial assets ~ HOE(EE
(Note 22) (FzE22) - - (4680) - - - (4680
Total other comprehensive Hfti2mE#EMKA
income - - (4,680) (17,932 - 3,261 (19,351)
Transactions with owners EEHAZXS
2013/14 final dividend paid £ 201314 % &
RERE - - - - - (375,851) (375851)
2014/15 interim B 201415 % F
dividend paid 8 - - - - ~ (324,009) (324,009)
- - - - - (699,860) (699,860
At 31 March 2015 R2015%53A31R 135,713 - 720 109,870 92,620 5,615,547 5,954,470
Representing: i
Reserves fafh 135,713 - 720 109,870 92,620 5,291,638 5,630,461
Proposed dividend RS - - - - - 324,009 324,009
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31H 135,713 - 720 109,870 92,620 5,615,547 5,954,470
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29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 f&fi§ (&)
Available-
for-sale
Capital financial
Capital redemption assets Exchange Statutory Retained
reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  reserves - earnings Total
AHHE
BXEE emEE
BF G 11 fiF ERRKE ZERE GERH ot ]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THT TET THRT THT TET THRT THT
(Note i) (Note 28(c)) (Note i)
(i) (MFE28(0) (i)
Representing: %
Reserves s 135,713 - 720 109,870 92,620 5,291,538 5,630,461
Proposed dividend RS = = = = - 324,009 324,009
At 31 March 2015 72015331 H 135,713 - 720 109,870 92,620 5,615,547 5,954,470
For the year ended HE20165F
31 March 2016 3A31HLEE
At 1 April 2015 M2015%4 /1R 135,713 - 720 109,870 92,620 5,615,547 5,954,470
Comprehensive income 2 A
Profit attributable to equity KA B A A
holders of the Company FEEER - - - - - 958,692 958,692
Other comprehensive Ht12 @A
income
Currency translation EHEE
differences - - - (152,887) - - (152,887)
Remeasurements of EERMEMLH
employee benefit EXitp-t
obligations (Note 31(d)) (Rt 31(d) - - - - - 12766 12,766
Revaluation of avallable-  A[tHHESREE
for-sale financial assets mEHEE
(Note 22) GEZA) = = (3,977) = = = (3,977)
Total other comprehensive Xt 2 E@i A
income - - (3,977) (152,887) - 12,766  (144,098)
Transactions with owners BEBAZXH
2014/15 final dividend paid 2 2014/15F &
RERRR 8 - = - - - (324,009) (324,009)
2015/16 interim dividend paid - 2 2015/16 /&
AR S = - - - - (185,569) (185,569)
2015/16 special dvidend paid 201516 &
BRI S - - - - - (138,440) (138,440)
Transfer to capital ERSEAEORE
redemption reserve (B5E28(c))
(Note 28(c)) - 200 - - - (200) -
- 200 - - - (648,218) (648,018)
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3 A31H 135,713 200 (3,257)  (43,017) 92,620 5,938,787 6,121,046
Representing: i
Reserves i 135,713 200 (3,257)  (43,017) 92,620 5,615,878 5,798,137
Proposed dividend BRI S = = - - - 322909 322,909
At 31 March 2016 R201643A31H 135,713 200 (3,257)  (43,017) 92,620 5,938,787 6,121,046
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RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

(i) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the board of directors of the relevant
Mainland China subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland China.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax of the Group is provided for in respect
of:

29 fkf (&)

BcE

0] AEEZ ERFEEREAEER 1097 FEAAR
FTUR BE T /B8 2 R 2 B 47 E B S 3k Wk AB B 1T A
RARMZEEMER 2 Z5E -

(i EEREI AR K - EEERFATIEE
B E R E AR EESRETE AL
REBRRIRPIRE

RIEFRSIR
ARG BIREFT ST T Bl T 51 & TR F B
t

30

Undistributed profit of
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on those subsidiaries in
allowances and tax losses closing inventories Mainland China Total
RENERBRAEGR BRERZKERAN  RRENEARKELRET #8
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THAL TET T TiEx TR TiEn TATL
At 1 Apr W4R1R (746) (2,737) 23,985 31,646 (80,635) (49,491) (57,396) (20,582)
Credited/(charged) to the 454 B %
consolidatedincome ~ Et A/ (41%)
statement (Note 11) (PzE11) 873 1,991 6,285 (7,661) 7,116 (31,144) 14,274 (36,814)
At 31 March R3A31A 127 (746) 30,270 23,985 (73,519) (80,635) (43,122) (57,396)
Representing: ¥ -
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSHEE 36,770 28,025
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFERERE (79,892) (85,421)
(43,122) (57,396)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profit is probable.
As at 31 March 2016, the Group had potential unrecognised
deferred tax assets amounting to HK$48,393,000 (2015:
HK$40,887,000) in respect of tax losses to be carried
forward against future taxable income. Cumulative tax
losses of HK$29,849,000 (2015: HK$23,088,000) can be
carried forward indefinitely; cumulative tax losses of
HK$170,094,000 (2015: HK$144,513,000) will expire (if not
utilised) within the next five years.

Uﬁ SHEEIEE o HIEEIRRE
A R AL B B R E R R A
m%awaméﬁzﬁ ° FR2016%F3A31H -
AEEBEBEAEREERIBAEEHRL
48,393,000 7T (2015 4F : 40,887,000 7%
TT) c A T EE IR B R ERR
WAz MIEREIE 25 B EEIE
29,849,000 7T (2015 4F : 23,088,000 %
L) AEREALE: REBIEEIE
170,094,000 7T (2015 4F = 144,513,000
T WAENA - AR ARR AT AER

Annual Report 2016 €38 163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

31

164

EhELE Ed ks

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS —
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2016
specifically designated for the Group’s employees was
completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited (2015: Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited),
using projected unit credit method.

31

EERARE - RUBEE

REZBEREGRD  AREEEIRE
THEAT  RERBAEE RS EEEZ
ETRERIERERBEN —RIER
IEO[@H,TAIETJ%E?EWEE\Z % (& #r
T M RBEBME - WHEAEBRK
AEETRASEEZHAEEZRER
7o AEEN BB EMEEFEREM
ﬁ%T;EZﬁi SEESENENF e

¥ @EAREZFRASERIMNER
,ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ

RERBEMEEEN T BEER DA
(2015 : BEBNB B AR A A) ATEET
BANEEEAEREALEEREE MER
2201643 A 31 HER#FEETA -

(@ The amount recognised in the consolidated balance @ REEEEABRERZFIEMN
sheet is as follows: N
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHEIT
Present value of defined benefit AEBAIEEZRE
obligations 23,918 34,008
(b) Movements in the net liability recognised in the b)) REEEERGBRBRZAEFE
consolidated balance sheet are as follows: g
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
At 1 April 73’A4ﬁ 1H 34,008 34,517
Expenses recognised in the RiFEBEaRERZAY
consolidated income statement 3,142 2,752
Income recognised in the consolidated 424 2 E A &
statement of comprehensive income B2 WA (12,766) (3,261)
Benefits paid directly by employer EEBEEIN @A (466) -
At 31 March M3A31E 23,918 34,008
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS — 31 ERBEFIRE - REOERH &G
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued)
(c) Expenses recognised in the consolidated income ) REFEEZRRBRIAZAOT

statement is as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FETT
Current service cost BNEAR S & 2,507 1,873
Interest cost F B 635 879
3,142 2,752
(d)  Income recognised in the consolidated statement of d) REFAEEERARKER WAL
comprehensive income is as follows: ™
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#ET FETT
Remeasurements of employee EERAETHNENT=E
benefit obligations (12,766) (3,261)
()  The expense is recognised in the following line items (€ FXIIR&EEEDKRATIIEBE
in the consolidated income statement: o
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 1,792 1,569
Administrative expenses THER 1,350 1,183
3,142 2,752
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS — 31 ERRFIRE — REERE£ @

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued)

() The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 )  M2016FE3A3THFERZEER
March 2016 (expressed as weighted average) are as HRE(CAMEEHZS)) AT :
follows:

2016 2015
Discount rate BhIR & 2.1% 1.9%
Future salary increment RIRFG S ILIE 3% 4%
Return of MPF balances SRIE R AERREI R 3% 3%

Impact on employee benefit obligations

HESRARENHEE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
B EH A% 18 Regimd
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 3.6% Increase by 3.8%
ALIR & 0.25% B 3.6% #N3.8%
Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 6.0% Decrease by 6.9%
FelEE 0.25% #N6.0% R 6.9%
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change LA F 8 E ST TR IR R R
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions MATEEMEBREEIE TS EH -
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and G |3 o =0 o Ny NI =1k = g 1=
changes in some of the assumptions may be BREE B A EEAEREE o
correlated.
32 BANK BORROWINGS 32 S$ITER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THRT FAT
Short-term bank borrowings, REIRITE R
unsecured IR 400,000 1,470,633
The bank borrowings were due for repayment within 3 RITEFRERSMEAR(20154F : 31EH)
months (2015: 3 months). B -
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32

33

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 32 MITE™ (M)
Bank borrowings of HK$400,000,000 (2015: A 2400,000,0008 L (2015 4F
HK$1,470,633,000) bore interest at floating rates. The 1,470,633,00078 7T ) KR 1T B 5KIL )2 &)
interest rates of the bank borrowings is 1.0% above Hong FERAB - SRITERZEMNMEN AEB
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (2015: 1.44% to 1.99%) per RITRER B IN1.0% (20155 : 1.44%
annum. £1.99%) °
The bank borrowings are denominated in the following RITEFATHEEHE
currencies:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHIT
HK$ BT 400,000 1,295,000
US$ ETT - 175,633
400,000 1,470,633
The fair value of the bank borrowings approximates their RITERMHRRE  BRIRFETR
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not KA SRITER AR BEERE
significant due to their short-term maturities. EEAES -
GOLD LOANS 33 EHEMEE

Gold loans were borrowings from banks which are pledged
with gold prices. They were designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2016, the gold loans are interest bearing at
1.2%—-2.5% per annum (2015: 1.2%), with original maturity
of 1-8 months from date of inception (2015: 2-3 months).

The net unrealised losses on gold loans arising from change
in fair value of HK$4,029,000(2015: net unrealised gains of
HK$8,687,000) has been recognised in ‘Other (losses)/
gains, net’ in the consolidated income statement.

BLBER/RTEN  YUNESERK
o EERRAREEABEZER
aE-

MR2016F3HA31H B4 EER12%
Z25%(20154F : 1.2%) 2 FEFT 8
RERBBELT1 23 A (20154 : 2
Z3fEA) B -

ECEERARBEEMEL 2 AER
B8 % 58 /5 4,029,000 7 7T, (2015 4F © k&

535 U 25 % 58 8,687,00078 7T ) IR A

Bk [Hab (B518) MWas - FRE] R
Annual Report 2016 £ 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Are S R M Rt

34 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 34 REBAERER
FLOWS
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&T
Profit before income tax R P15 25 A i A 1,161,085 1,982,818
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 17)  + i FRAE#ESS (MF3E17) 7,702 9,661
Depreciation of property, plant VI - BB R REITE
and equipment (Note 16) (M5 16) 127,542 146,766
Depreciation of investment properties EMENTE (HiE18)
(Note 18) 744 1,303
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERLEZEIER
plant and equipment (Note 8) (MF3£8) 994 755
Provision for long service payment RHEBARA < s (M 5E31(0))
(Note 31(b)) 3,142 2,752
Net realised losses/(gains) on BHEEZDHEEER (W)
gold loans (Note 9) FEE (F3E9) 3,577 (14,874)
Net unrealised losses/(gains) on BEEEEZREREE (WS
gold loans (Note 9) F 58 (fFEE9) 4,029 (8,687)
Interest income (Note 10) FEUA (FFFE10) (41,725) (48,874)
Interest expenses (Note 10) B (IFE10) 13,689 20,474
Fair value losses/(gains) on AmRES A AAEE
convertible bond (Note 9) BB (W) (H7E9) 20,600 (9,655)
Fair value losses on derivative TESRIAZARBEER
financial instruments (Note 9) (FFEQ) 5,225 -
Share of results of associates (Note 19) FMH@‘?%@E%% (F5E19) 79,103 21,793
Operating profit before working BEESEHALE R
capital changes 1,385,707 2,104,232
Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits Aememd,  (Em) 5,316 (26,907)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERD, (&) 947,853 (1,176,030)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables, & 5 FEWRE - 1R -
deposits, prepayments and T FOIA I E MR UL
other receivables I (3 hn), R (61,226) 75,746
Increase in amount due from/to Fﬂﬂl/fﬁﬂ?ﬁ%’&
associates FRIEIE BN (25,337) (30,012)
Decrease in derivative financial PTHES R T AR
instruments = 14,528
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, & Z RN - E bR FIE &
other payables and accruals FESHEIERE AN, CR) 5,865 (75,599)
Decrease in employee benefit obligations {& & & ¥ & £35 4 (M5 31(b))
(Note 31(b)) (466) -
Net cash generated from operations BEEE RS FRE 2,257,712 885,958
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35 COMMITMENTS 35 XKiE
(@) Capital commitments (a) BHEKiE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&T
Contracted but not provided for: BRTAEREL B
— Property, plant and equipment — V¥ WE MRS 5,376 9,832
— Investment in an available- —RE—FEHLESH
for-sale financial asset BE 6,588 -
Total capital commitments ERIAERIELBE 2 ER
contracted but not provided for EIELREE 11,964 9,832
As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, there are R20169F 3 A31H &20154F 3 A
no capital commitments which are authorised but not 318 - WESEFERFTA .2 &A%
contracted for. Eo
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) EEHFKIE
At 31 March 2016, the Group had future aggregate M2016EI 31 H  NEE# +
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable WRIEFRBETAREZELEHE
operating leases in respect of land and buildings as MR RIRIA 2 AR S R 4858
follows: mr
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Not later than one year —ER 689,403 681,149
Later than one year and not —FRETHEBRF
later than five years 768,733 845,227
Later than five years BiBEAF 321 6,025
1,458,457 1,632,401
The actual payments in respect of certain operating BETREHEERMNRINZ EXFT
leases are calculated at the higher of the minimum S EAEEBIE RGeS
commitments as noted above and the amounts HTEPHFETSHE IS EE
determined based on a percentage of the sales of the o

related outlets.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had on outstanding
financial guarantee amounting to HK$672,845,000 (2015:
HK$779,957,000) issued to several banks in respect of
banking facilities granted to an associate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the
BVI, which directly owns 39.75% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family including Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are
discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family Trust (the
“Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial owner of the entire
issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery &
Goldsmith Company Limited which is the beneficial owner
of 36.72% of issued shares of Luk Fook Control. The
remaining shares of Luk Fook Control are held by various
shareholders.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.
(@) The Group has entered into supplementary licensing
and maintenance agreement with GS Tech Company
Limited (92% owned by the Wong’s Family Trust) for
acquiring a license to use certain computer programs
and to receive maintenance services fees. For
the year ended 31 March 2016, license fees of
HK$3,453,000(2015: HK$1,394,000) and maintenance
services fees of HK$3,400,000 (2015: HK$3,135,000)
were capitalised in the consolidated balance sheet and
charged in the consolidated income statement,
respectively.

36

37

BRAR

MR2016 3 A31H » REEGEK TH# 2
REMRITRERE TRITHITHRE
2 B 1% ¥ 1R B 672,845,000 7T (2015
1 779,957,000/ 7T) °

REALTZEZS

RABZ EEBREANEFER) BRA
AI(TNBIER]) AR EBER RS
MK ZRAR EEHBEARDF
39.75%% 150 o ARFR TN D BFFE ©

EETEERERE (BEEEELEER
=W FE) AERRIEET(ETE) 2
ERZEAN ZEAETSHERERT
ERAGBIZHEBITRAZERHES
A HEEREXESTAERA 7%%%%
IR 36.72% B EETTRR D © /N tRiE
BRTIRINBZBREFFA o

HEBELE BEAELEMNEWRF

ANl

AEEDHESEZENERABRAT
(K% s mE KRG ETHESR)
ETI#—%#&Z&{WF* CAERET

BIGIR I 2 AP SR R 4 (S IR TS
£ HE2016F3A31HIEFE
¥ 51 #E B 3,453,000 7T (2015
4 1,394,000/ 7C) M EIEREE
3,400,0005% 7T, (20154 : 3,135,000
BILEDRIRGAEERBRE
KM RAREBEERAING

(a)
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 37 RIZEALZES (#)

(b) The Group has entered into a lease agreement of a (b) 7~ & E £ New Merit Corporation
premise with tenancy period of 36 months with New Limited (R EE B L ER BINRE
Merit Corporation Limited, an entity jointly controlled BUE=FHRAEHINELE) R
by Mr Wong Wai Sheung and other two independent —EWENEE Rz HEA36
third parties. For the year ended 31 March 2016, A HZE20164F3A31H ILF
rental deposits of HK$2,550,000 (2015: Nil) and rental B DRERGEEEAEREES
expenses of HK$8,831,000 (2015: Nil) were SEFREARBEIRE 2,550,000
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and Br(2015F : &) RAER X
consolidated income statement respectively. This 8,831,000 JT (20154 : #) » 3%
transaction was carried out at terms mutually agreed X5 TR AR ET 4977 B E 85
between the respective parties. TGETT

(c) Transactions with associates (c) EBBARZIXS

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P aE FET FHT

Sales HE 0] 75,711 67,109

Subcontracting fee paid ERSBEER i) 20,310 23,713

Rental income e WA 0] 1,329 455

Management fee income ERBIA 0] 724 846

Purchases BE (i) 1,181 -

Licensing fee paid BN REERER 0) 600 -

Interest income on the loan BERTF—REBE QA

to an associate 2 F BN 20 400 161

Notes: Bz -

[0} Sales, subcontracting fee paid, rental income, purchases, (i) RIEMEE R E T 2 IEFUURER 2 85
licensing fee paid and management fee income were charged E ENSBER HaWA B
at terms based on mutual agreements. B mEEBERREZERA -

(i As mentioned in Note 36, the Group had financial guarantee (i) FANPHFESE » AEEBR THE AR
amounting to HK$672,845,000 (2015: HK$779,957,000) RITRE S THRITRI TN BERR
issued to several banks in respect of banking facilities granted 672,845,000/ 7L(20154F : 779,957,000
to an associate. HIL)
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 37 RIZEALTZES (#)

(d) Year-end balances (d) FR#EeR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Loan to an associate BRT—FRKEEQF
— non-current (Note 20) —FEBNER (FFE20) 86,911 83,160
Loan to an associate ERT—REEE QA
— current (Note 20) — BDER (Fff 5 20) 20,000 20,000
Amount due from an FEU — KB & R FIRIR
associate (Note 19 (B35 19i) 56,374 30,076
Amount due to an BN —KE & R FRIE
associate (Note 19(iii)) (B3E 190ii) (2,235) (1,674)
(e) Key management compensation () TEEHEMS
Key management includes directors (executive and TEEREREEE(RITRIEHR
non-executive) and senior management of the Group. TEF)RAEESREEAS -
The compensation paid or payable to key TEEBIRME 2R M s EA =
management for employee services is shown below: EEBEZ MW ¢
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHT
Salaries, allowances and e R REYNZE
benefits-in-kinds 64,013 65,066
Performance and discretionary BRIVMIGE 2L
bonuses 24,797 36,576
Contributions to pension plan RIRE T2 565 572
89,375 102,214
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38 SUBSIDIARIES 38 BT
At 31 March 2016, the Company had the following principal R2016F3A31H » KRB Z X EKE
subsidiaries: NGIR N
Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/ registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
s/ BRIk FOTFE
3B BREXEE EEREML TEEH
2016 2015
Interests held directly: ERBEHG:
Luk Fook Investment (B.V..) Limited The BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
ERERRES 28T REAR
Interests held indirectly: MEHEHEE
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Authentication of gemstones
PEFRZETRLERAT Bl 28T ERER
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$12,100 100 100 Property holding
BIEREERAA ) 12,1007 BENE
Ice Collection (International) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
KE(EIR) BRAF B 10057 products
KEHERTERH
Jewellworld.com Limited The BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding, and provision
GELRBVI)ERAR RBEBRED 8,000,000/ of software development and
services relating to internet
RABER  RETHRER
HEEEBIEERS
Jewelworld.com Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51 51 Investment holding, and provision
GEtR (B8 ERAA BB 100387 of software development and
services relating to internet
RARER  RETHRER
HEEEREIEERS
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100 Gold bullion trading
MRS RARAR Bl 14,000,000 7T EEASE
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 MIELAT (#)

Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/ registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
M/ BRiTRE/ FORFE
IR EMEFHE BiEERES L TERB
2016 2015
Interests held indirectly: (Continued) FIERBEES : (&)
Luk Fook Ho\dings Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management services
NEEEBRAT B 2B to group companies and
wholesale distrioution of
gold and jewellery products
REEEERHTEELA
&S ﬁﬁ?ﬁ\/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuu
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Australia AUS$ 100,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Australia) Pty Limited 2 100,000£ T products in Australia
RENtEES RGEER
TEXK
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK) Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
Company Limited Bk 100787 products
NMERESTT (BB BRAT BERABERTERR
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Macau MOP 1,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Macao) Company Limited B 1,000,000:2F9 7 products in Macau
NMERE ST (ER) BRAF REFKEES RIAEER
TERH
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Canada CA$ 100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Canada) Limited nex 10018 AT products in Canada
RMEAREEE RIAEER
TEEH
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Singapore 81,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Singapore) Pte. Limited st 1,000,0005T 1% T products in Singapore
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 BT (1#)
Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/ registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
s/ BRTRE/ FOTME
FRL B EMEFHE EEREESL FERHB
2016 2015

Interests held indirectly: (Continued) FJERFEE : (&)

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith USA USD100 100 100  Retailing of gold and jewellery
(USA) Company Limited ES 100%7T products in USA
REBUERERHEER
TEXK
Luk Fook 3D Management Limited The BVI HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
REERRES 1A RERR
Max Forum Development Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Property holding
HEERARAA & 100787 ERES
Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 93.3  Manufacturing and wholesale
BRECEBRAR B 3,000,00077C distribution of jewellery products
WS BN EHEER
BMAEEHERRAR- Mainland China HK$60,000,000 93.3 933 Manufacturing, wholesale, retaiing
FEA 60,000,000 of gold and jewellery products and

provision of quality examination

services in Mainland China
RbBER R ERE  #E T8

BERGEERARREES

ETRE
BHE(EN) BHERAR- Mainland China HK$6,000,000 933 933 Manufacturing of jewellery
Bl 6,000,000 7 products in Mainland China

RP B REREER

BNFIREHERLRF" Mainland China HK$35,000,000 100 100 Property holding in Mainland China
RE R 35,000,000/ 7T RAE R ENE
NEER(HE)BRRE Mainland China 1SD200,000 100 100 Wholesale of polished diamond in
(formerly known as FER 200,000% 7T Mainland China
EREER(LE)BRAA) RAER R BEITE R

(MRENEER(LE)BRAR)

1:1
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 BT (1#)
Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/ registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company Principal activities
s/ BRTRE/ FOTME
FRL B EMEFHE EEREESL FERHB
2016 2015

Interests held indirectly: (Continued) FJERFEE : (&)

NEHE (LR BB AR Mainland China HK$29,750,000 100 100 Retalling of gold and jewellery
FEA 29,750,0007 7 products in Beljing,
Mainland China
AR RTEEER
REEM
BN ABEEREBRAR" Mainland China HK$2,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand
R 2,000,000/ T buiding and promotion in
Mainland China
R S ERE -
BIEREERE
NERBLHERE (RN BB AR Mainland China HK$8,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand
R 8,000,000/ 7T buiding and promotion in
Mainland China
R S ERE -
BIEREERE
NESRREH(ER)BRAE" Mainland China HK$50,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale of
FEA 50,000,000 gold and jewellery products in
Mainland China
R Bt e R R
B RAEER
NEREEMN(ER)BRAR" Mainland China HK$50,000,000 100 100 Retalling of gold and jewellery
FEA 50,000,000 7 products in Mainland China
ReERtEEE RAEER
TEEK
NEEHRE (EE)BRAR Mainland China HK$3,000,000 100 100 Trademark licensing, brand
RE R 3,000,0007%7C buiding, promotion and

provision of quality examination
services in Mainland China

KA BRI SHRRE - SRR
HEREUARRRESETRE
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38 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38 MELT (&)

Particulars of
Place of issued share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/ registered attributable interests
establishment capital held by the Company  Principal activities
M/ BRiTRE/ FORFE
IR BREXEE BiEERESL TEEH
2016 2015
Interests held indirectly: (Continued) FEERFHEE : (#)
BEENRUERRENIARAF Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing of gold products
FER AR 5,000,007 in Mainland China
ReERHEESEm
EERERGEAHERAR" Meinland China RMB10,000,000 100 100 Wholesale of polished diamond
FER AR H10,000,0007T and jewellery products in
Mainland China
RAEAHBEITEERR
KEEM
AREE (BN BRAR: Mainland China RMB10,500,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale of gold
FEIR AK#10,500,0007 and jewellery products in
Mainland China
R S RE R
HEEERAEER
BN RERHREERAF Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 51 51 Manufacturing of gold products
EA, AR5,000,0007 in Mainland China
RABEAEERSER
EEREREEHERAT Mainland China RMB50,000,000 51 - Retalling of gold and jewellery
EA, AR 50,000,0007C products in Mainland China
RAEREEESR
REEMTERHK
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises + ZEWBARARF EAMAK Y 2 2INED
in Mainland China. ¥

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

BREHAESN  LAMBERRHEE
RBEBKERT -

BEERR/ LRMIARRMBARE
%Tzliifiiﬂ%ﬁk 2 B4 B¥N L]

BEEFECER cEBERR - RMH

EMW%’AEZ#%Q%%M BRTTR °
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39 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 39 FAFIZEEARBRE
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG o 3,138,225 3,338,225
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NG S 1,528,711 1,359,225
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTERR 596,660 2,882
2,125,371 1,362,107
Total assets BmEE 5,263,596 4,700,332
EQUITY a2
Capital and reserves attributable Z A FHE2IFF A
to the equity holders of BEEE R
the Company
Share capital N 58,710 58,910
Share premium R 15 (B 2,494,040 2,522,983
Reserves s a 625,047 775,738
Proposed dividends R I8, 322,909 324,009
3,500,706 3,681,640
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities mEAR
Accruals FEFT IR 1,264 1,162
Amount due to subsidiaries FENR B AR RIE 1,285,583 159,400
Bank borrowings RITEX 400,000 650,000
Gold loans ESEE 76,043 208,130
1,762,890 1,018,692
Total equity and liabilities R EERE 5,263,596 4,700,332
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AR EEBBRIIAEEZZN 20164
Board on 23 June 2016 and was signed by the Directors 6H23AHENLH TIESKERESE -
below on its behalf.
WONG Wai Sheung CHAN So Kuen
B&E BR%RA
Director Director
o 4
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39 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 39 FAFZHEERMBAT W)

(Continued)
Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company S EAC AN =)
Capital
Contributed redemption Retained
surplus reserve earnings Total
ERES SXEORE 2®Z2EH L]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THET FTHET FTET FTERT
For the year ended #HE2016F

31 March 2016 SA31HLEE
At 1 April 2015 MR2015F4H1H 298,687 - 801,060 1,099,747
Profit for the year F R | - - 496,227 496,227
2014/15 final dividend paid 217 2014/15F

REARR B - - (324,009)  (324,009)
2015/16 interim dividend paid & 1 2015/16 £ [&

AR R - - (185,569)  (185,569)
2015/16 special dividend paid 2.1 2015/16 &

FERIIR B - - (138,440) (138,440)
Transfer to capital B3 5 & N HE O] A

redemption reserve (FF5E 28(c))

(Note 28(c)) - 200 (200) -

At 31 March 2016 M2016 3 H31 H 298,687 200 649,069 947,956
Representing: ¥ -
Reserves b1 298,687 200 326,160 625,047
Proposed dividend BORAR S - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2016 M2016 43 H31 H 298,687 200 649,069 947,956
For the year ended #HE2015F

31 March 2015 SA31HLEE
At 1 April 2014 M20145F4 A1 R 298,687 - 803,591 1,102,278
Profit for the year FREF - - 697,329 697,329
2013/14 final dividend paid &1 2013/14 & &

REAAR B - - (375,851) (375,851)
2014/15 interim dividend paid &1 2014/15 F[Z

 EIAR B - - (324,009) (324,009)
At 31 March 2015 R 2015F 3 H31H 298,687 - 801,060 1,099,747
Representing: ¥ -
Reserves i 298,687 - 477,051 775,738
Proposed dividend BRAR B - - 324,009 324,009
At 31 March 2015 7R 2015F 3 H31H 298,687 - 801,060 1,099,747
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary
shares of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired by the
Company during the Group’s reorganisation in 1997. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders,
provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of the
Company’s assets would thereby not be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and its
share premium. At the Group level, the contributed surplus
is reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

39

EAFIZEEARAERE)
RATZEHBBRIEARRNF R LUK
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited 2 &5 & 3¢

TEBRERMEBITRD  EEHEAQTR
1097 4F 7N 4= B 55 48 HA 1 Fr Uk B8 AR A B /28
REIZBEFEMEZER - RIEASE
E(981 FRANE) (IER]) » BEHA%
ARE TR - AR R B EHMEBIK
I EE - BN B BRI EE S ERS
RARBZEENERERYTE IR
HER HEBETHRARERMDEEZ
B RAKEEAME @ LEMZR
KEFHDHEASEBWNB AR ZHEEDD

e
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